

ONeSOURCE Client and Web Help

© 2025 O'Neil & Associates, Inc. All rights reserved.

All trademarks referenced in this manual are the property of their respective owners.



www.oneil.com

Table of Contents

Introduction	1
For Installation Help Purpose and Scope Customer Configuration	
Accounts (Web Client only)	2
Registration Automatic Logout	
Home Page - Key Features	
Introduction. Client Ribbon. Main Search Window. Browse Content. Previously Viewed Content.	4 5 5 6 7
Main Search	
Entering a Search Selecting a Previous Search Selecting a Search Suggestion Selecting a Search Filter Before Running a Search Using the Serial Number Search Filter Search Results Limit.	
'Find Within' Search	
'Find Within' Searching	
Browsing Content	
Browsing Products Browsing Parts Previously Viewed Content	
Content Families	
Narrative Publications Parts Publications Knowledge Model and Diagnostic Troubleshooting Publications Interactive Schematics Content Families and Sub-Types	
Narrative Publications	40
Operating and Service Publications Viewer Printing Narrative Content	



	45
Parts Viewer	45
Line Items	47
Using Parts Line Item Flyouts	
Link to Part Details Page from Line Item Description	55
Attachment Icons	
Hotspots	
Using Hotspot Flyouts	
Viewing Profit Matter	03
Viewing Supersession Information	69
Master Parts - Management Rank	
Filtering Line Items by Product-Level Applicability	74
Filtering Line Items by Model	79
Filtering Line Items by Serial Number Applicability	82
Filtering Line Items by Serial Number	84
Serial Number Toggle Behavior	
Filters Icon Indicators.	
Printing Parts Content	
Parts Search	
Filtering Search Results	94
Exporting Search Results	
Pick Lists	
Introduction to Pick Lists	101
Introduction to Pick Lists Creating a Pick List	101 105
Introduction to Pick Lists Creating a Pick List Adding Parts to a Pick List	
Introduction to Pick Lists Creating a Pick List Adding Parts to a Pick List Removing Parts from a Pick List	
Introduction to Pick Lists Creating a Pick List Adding Parts to a Pick List Removing Parts from a Pick List Using the "Save As" Function	
Introduction to Pick Lists Creating a Pick List Adding Parts to a Pick List Removing Parts from a Pick List Using the "Save As" Function Printing a Pick List.	
Introduction to Pick Lists Creating a Pick List Adding Parts to a Pick List Removing Parts from a Pick List Using the "Save As" Function Printing a Pick List E-mailing a Pick List	
Introduction to Pick Lists Creating a Pick List Adding Parts to a Pick List Removing Parts from a Pick List Using the "Save As" Function Printing a Pick List E-mailing a Pick List Exporting a Pick List Deleting a Pick List.	
Introduction to Pick Lists Creating a Pick List Adding Parts to a Pick List Removing Parts from a Pick List Using the "Save As" Function Printing a Pick List E-mailing a Pick List Exporting a Pick List Deleting a Pick List	
Introduction to Pick Lists Creating a Pick List Adding Parts to a Pick List Removing Parts from a Pick List Using the "Save As" Function Printing a Pick List E-mailing a Pick List Exporting a Pick List Deleting a Pick List Knowledge Models & Diagnostic Troubleshooting Publications.	
Introduction to Pick Lists Creating a Pick List Adding Parts to a Pick List Removing Parts from a Pick List Using the "Save As" Function Printing a Pick List E-mailing a Pick List Exporting a Pick List Deleting a Pick List Mowledge Models & Diagnostic Troubleshooting Publications How to Use a Knowledge Model	
Introduction to Pick Lists Creating a Pick List Adding Parts to a Pick List Removing Parts from a Pick List Using the "Save As" Function Printing a Pick List E-mailing a Pick List Exporting a Pick List Deleting a Pick List Mowledge Models & Diagnostic Troubleshooting Publications How to Use a Knowledge Model How to Use a Diagnostic Troubleshooting Publication.	
Introduction to Pick Lists Creating a Pick List Adding Parts to a Pick List Removing Parts from a Pick List Using the "Save As" Function Printing a Pick List E-mailing a Pick List Exporting a Pick List Deleting a Pick List Mowledge Models & Diagnostic Troubleshooting Publications How to Use a Knowledge Model How to Use a Diagnostic Troubleshooting Publication Saving a Session to Resume Later	
Introduction to Pick Lists Creating a Pick List Adding Parts to a Pick List Removing Parts from a Pick List Using the "Save As" Function Printing a Pick List E-mailing a Pick List Exporting a Pick List Deleting a Pick List Mowledge Models & Diagnostic Troubleshooting Publications How to Use a Knowledge Model How to Use a Diagnostic Troubleshooting Publication Saving a Session to Resume Later Resuming a Saved Session	
Introduction to Pick Lists Creating a Pick List Adding Parts to a Pick List Removing Parts from a Pick List Using the "Save As" Function Printing a Pick List E-mailing a Pick List Exporting a Pick List Deleting a Pick List Deleting a Pick List How to Use a Knowledge Model How to Use a Knowledge Model How to Use a Diagnostic Troubleshooting Publications Saving a Session to Resume Later Resuming a Saved Session Viewing Session History	
Introduction to Pick Lists Creating a Pick List Adding Parts to a Pick List Removing Parts from a Pick List. Using the "Save As" Function. Printing a Pick List E-mailing a Pick List Exporting a Pick List Deleting a Pick List Deleting a Pick List Knowledge Models & Diagnostic Troubleshooting Publications How to Use a Knowledge Model How to Use a Diagnostic Troubleshooting Publication Saving a Session to Resume Later Resuming a Saved Session Viewing Session History Reordering of Process Flows Based on Past Responses	
Introduction to Pick Lists Creating a Pick List Adding Parts to a Pick List Removing Parts from a Pick List Using the "Save As" Function Printing a Pick List. E-mailing a Pick List. Exporting a Pick List Deleting a Pick List Knowledge Models & Diagnostic Troubleshooting Publications. How to Use a Knowledge Model How to Use a Diagnostic Troubleshooting Publication Saving a Session to Resume Later Resuming a Saved Session Viewing Session History Reordering of Process Flows Based on Past Responses. Schematics Viewer .	
Introduction to Pick Lists. Creating a Pick List. Adding Parts to a Pick List. Removing Parts from a Pick List. Using the "Save As" Function. Printing a Pick List. E-mailing a Pick List. Exporting a Pick List. Deleting a Pick List. Knowledge Models & Diagnostic Troubleshooting Publications . How to Use a Knowledge Model. How to Use a Diagnostic Troubleshooting Publication. Saving a Session to Resume Later. Resuming a Saved Session. Viewing Session History. Reordering of Process Flows Based on Past Responses. Schematics Viewer . How to View Interactive Schematics.	
Introduction to Pick Lists Creating a Pick List Adding Parts to a Pick List Removing Parts from a Pick List Using the "Save As" Function Printing a Pick List. E-mailing a Pick List. Exporting a Pick List Deleting a Pick List Knowledge Models & Diagnostic Troubleshooting Publications How to Use a Knowledge Model How to Use a Diagnostic Troubleshooting Publications Saving a Session to Resume Later Resuming a Saved Session Viewing Session History Reordering of Process Flows Based on Past Responses Schematics Viewer How to View Interactive Schematics Viewing Circuits	



Commonly Used Icons	
Commonly Used Icons Contents Icon Details Icon Notes Icon Feedback Icon.	163 163 165 167 170
Announcements and Alerts	
Announcements Announcement Management Alerts	
User Profile	177
User Profile - Introduction Managing Your Profile	177 178
Help	
Help	
Support Page (Feedback)	
Support Page Sending Feedback Viewing Feedback History Editing Feedback - User	
Configuration Page (Installed Client Only)	193
Configuration Page Updating Datasets Installing Datasets Uninstalling Datasets	
Troubleshooting Client Issues	198
Troubleshooting Client Issues Clearing Browser Cache Sending Client Logs	
Administration - Announcements	
Managing Announcements. Creating an Announcement. Editing an Announcement. Deleting an Announcement. Assigning Priority to an Announcement. Setting Start and Expiration Dates for Announcements. Requiring Announcements to be Acknowledged. Viewing Announcements.	
Administration - Feedbacks	234



Managing Feedbacks	234
Viewing All Feedback Entries	234
Editing Feedbacks - Administrator	
Exporting All Feedback Entries	
Administration - User Management	247
User Management - Introduction	
What is a User?	
What is a Group?	
What is a Role?	248
What is an Applicability?	
What is a Permission?	
Effective Permissions	
Content Families.	
Innerited Applicability	
Users	
Adding/Editing Users	
Managing All Users	
Groups	279
Adding/Editing Groups	
View Group Applicability	
View Parent Group Applicability	
Edit Default Group	
Edit Guest Group.	
Manage All Groups	
Roles	
Adding/Editing Roles	311
Managing All Roles	
User Management Search Field	
Appendix A - Mobile Device Screenshots	324
Mobile Device Screenshots	
Mobile - Client Ribbon	
Mobile - Previously Viewed Products and Publications	325
Mobile - Main Search Window	
Mobile - Product Details Screen	327
Mobile - Operating and Service Publications	
Mobile - Parts List Screens.	
Mobile - Parts List - Cart Icon	
Mobile - Schematics Manuals	
Mobile - Pick Lists	

Introduction

For Installation Help

This document covers topics related to using and searching content available in the ONeSOURCE Client. For help with installing and uninstalling the application for the installed version of the ONeSOURCE Client, refer to the ONeSOURCE Installation Guide for your product.

For help with installing, updating, or uninstalling datasets for the installed version of the ONeSOURCE Client, refer to the Configuration section, Configuration Page, for instructions.

Purpose and Scope

The purpose of this user guide is to describe the different types of content available in the ONeSOURCE Client and to help users search and use this content.

The ONeSOURCE Client comes in one of two versions: a desktop Client or a web-based Client. The desktop Client is installed on the user's machine and uses datasets that have to be installed prior to use. The web-based Client uses a URL that users access and the data is already included; no installation is necessary on the part of the user.

Both versions of the ONeSOURCE Client have their advantages. Once a dataset has been installed to the desktop it is self-sufficient and can be used in the field without an internet connection. Both the application and data are stored on the user's machine. Users of the installed Client need to periodically connect to the internet in order to apply updates to installed datasets. For users with a constant internet connection, the web-based Client is practically maintenance-free. Both the application and data are stored externally on a server and updated automatically to keep them up to date.

A key difference between the installed and web versions of the ONeSOURCE Client is that the web version includes a User Management section for Administrators, as well as management of announcements and feedbacks. The installed version of the Client does not include these.

The goal of both versions is to put all of the resources customers need to do their jobs in a single application that is easy to use and up to date.

Customer Configuration

This document covers all features that are part of the base configuation of the ONeSOURCE Client. Base features are available to **all** users. In addition to the base features, there are additional ones that can be configured for specific Client versions. As a result, there will be features described in this Help that some individual end users may not see in the version they are using. To add one of these additional features to their Client version, it needs to be configured, or activated, before the feature will display and can be used. All end users belonging to a specific organization will have access to the additional features that have been configured for it.

The terms *customer configuration* refer to the set of base and additional features that make up an organization's version of the ONeSOURCE Client. Throughout this document, the reader will notice references to the user's customer configuration when discussing features that must be activated by their organization in order for them to see them.



Accounts (Web Client only)

Registration

When registering a new account, users must create usernames and passwords on the Registration screen. If either does not conform to system requirements, an error message will be displayed with details of what a valid username or password must contain.

Usernames

If a user enters a character in the username field that is not valid, the following error message will display:



Figure 2-1. Registration Screen - Username

Passwords

If a user enters a character in the password window that is not valid, the following error message will display:



Figure 2-2. Registration Screen - Password

Automatic Logout

Users of the web version of the ONeSOURCE Client should be aware their accounts will be logged out after **30** minutes of inactivity. If this happens, users will be directed to the Login screen to log in once again. If users encounter any problems logging back in to their accounts, they should contact their Administrator for assistance.

Session has timed out. Click Ok to return to the login page.



Figure 2-3. Session Timeout Message

NOTE: The timeout limit of 30 minutes can be altered to suit an organization's needs.



Home Page - Key Features

Introduction

The home page of the ONeSOURCE Client can be divided into four areas: a ribbon across the top with tabs to assist the user, the main search window, one or more browse sections (depends on the customer's configuration), and a section for previously viewed content:

Announcements (2)	Help Support							joe.user
			Search for	Products or Parts	Filter V Q			
				Browse Proc	lucts			
	Conta	ainer Handlers		Automated Pallet Trucks	Heavy	r Trax DoD		
	< Heavy	y Trax		Reach Trucks	Zero	Turn terbalanced	×	
					-			
			\frown	Browse Pa	rts			
		0			ledia			
	<	Sys		Organization sy	s Structure subsy	/s 9547 Syst		
		esta Subsys	9547 Subsys	2 New	9548 Sys	9548 Sub3	Terres	
				Previously Vi	ewed			
			ACME PARTS DEMO-PM	CVM9179SL15S-PM	Wright Flyer - SCHEM	Wright Flyer Industries-PM		
	Prod	ications	tk_demo_0001	Microwave Oven CVM9179SL1SS	A modern take on an old classic WrightFlyer	Wright B Flyer Wright B Parts		
			Demo Parts List			Wright B Flyer		

Figure 3-1. Client Home Page

It is from the home page of the Client that users select the information they are looking for be it a publication, a parts list, or an individual part. The main search window is a powerful tool to find new content, content that was previously searched, or content suggested by the system based on a user's search. If users are not looking for anything in particular and just want to browse content included in the ONeSOURCE Client, they can select items from the browse sections displayed on the home page just by clicking on them. If users would like to view content they've viewed before, they can select the items from the section showing previously viewed content.

Client Ribbon

The Client ribbon appears across the top of the ONeSOURCE Client with tabs to assist users while they are using the application:

CONEIL Announcements 3 Help Support Administration	user.name
---	-----------

Figure 3-2. Client Ribbon

Table 3-1.

Feature	Function
Company Logo	Serves as home button to return user to home page when another button is not available.
Announcements	Contains announcements posted by customer administrator
Help	Opens the ONeSOURCE Client help document in a separate window
Support	Opens the Feedback page
Shopping Cart	Contains items added by the user to one or more pick lists
Username	Used to open the user profile or log out of the Client

Main Search Window

The main search window displays below the Client ribbon in the center of the page:



Figure 3-3. Main Search Window

Depending on customer configuration, users may see helper text in the search window (e.g., "Search for Products or Parts...") as well as a drop-down list of available filters to set prior to running the search. After entering a search without selecting a previously searched term or a system-generated search suggestion, click on the magnifying glass icon or press the Enter key to run the search.

See Entering a Search for more details.



Browse Content

Depending on customer configuration, users may see one or more sections to browse from. In the screenshot, users can browse products or parts. The items shown are provided by the system based on the content available in the Client.



Figure 3-4. Browsing Content

See Browsing Products for more details.

Previously Viewed Content

Content the user has previously viewed will be listed here. Previously viewed content is divided into product and publication categories, which can be selected by the user. Navigation buttons allow users to scroll through the list if there are more items than can be displayed on one page.



Figure 3-5. Previously Viewed Content



Main Search

Entering a Search

Searches performed in the application, including searches entered in the main search window, are "starts with" searches as opposed to "contains" searches, meaning the system will look for the search string at the beginning of the content and not in the middle of the content.

The main search window appears at the top of the landing page of the application.

Announcements	Help	Support			
			Search for Products or Parts	Filter	~ Q

Figure 4-1. Main Search Window

To enter a new search

1. Place the cursor in the search window and click the left mouse button. The list of previously entered searches will display.

Search for Products or Parts	Filter	~	Q
web help			
help			
bic2000			
help documents			
knowledge model			
wright			
bicycle			
schematic			
bic2000 parts catalog			
cyclops			

Figure 4-2.	List of	Previous	Searches
-------------	---------	----------	----------

2. The list of previous searches will disappear once you start typing.



3. After entering three characters, search suggestions will display based on the text you entered.

one	Filter	~	Q
ONEIL			
ONePUBS_Training			
ONeil Parts Catalog			
ONeil425468-1			
ONEIL Motorized Bike			

Figure 4-3. Search Suggestions

4. Depending on the customer's configuration, users must enter a minimum of one to three characters before a search can be executed. If a user tries to run a search containing less than the minimum number of characters and presses the Enter key, a message will display telling them to enter the minimum number of characters. Likewise, they will also see the message if they attempt to click on the magnifying glass icon.

wh		Filter	~ Q
	Please enter at least 3 characters.		

Figure 4-4. Tooltip to Enter More Search Characters

NOTE: The minimum number of characters that needs to be entered prior to executing a search may vary depending on your configuration.

5. If no previous search or search suggestion is selected, the system will execute a search on the text entered when the user presses Enter or the maginifying glass icon.





- WEB HELP DOC Search Results Home WEB HELP DOC Brand: HELP Region: HELP DOCUMENTS Product Line: HELP DOC PL Q. Find within WEB HELP DOC c. All Serial Number Ranges English \sim Publications Search term 12 General Wright Flyer - SCHEM CVM9179SL1S ΡM ACME PARTS DEMO-Demo Model 123-PM PM A modern take on an old clas.. Microwave Oven LAWN TRACTOR WrightFlyer CVM9179SL1SS tk_demo_0001 Pouln PB195H42LT Σ \odot Demo Parts List Lawn Tractor Wright Flyer BIC2000 Parts CT660 Truck-PM Demo Model 123-OM Catalog-PM Industries-PM Wright B Flyer Wright B Parts BIC2000_IPC CT660-Parts Lawn Mower BIC2000 Parts Catalog Wright B Flyer CT660-Temp Parts
- 6. Search results are displayed for the text entered.

Figure 4-6. Search Results

NOTE: If the search term(s) are found in the data, the system will highlight it in the results.



Selecting a Previous Search

Users can retrieve searches they have run previously:

1. Place the cursor in the search window on the main screen and click the left mouse button:



Figure 4-7. Main Search Window

2. A list of previously entered searches will display, up to a maximum of 10 searches:

Search for Products or Parts		Filter	~	Q
help				
chassis				
bicycle				
microwave oven				
red				
widget				
oneil				
bic2000				

Figure 4-8. Previous Searches

3. If you find the search you want to run again, select it by clicking on the left mouse button:

Search for Products or Parts	Filter	~	Q
help			
chassis			
bicycle			
microwave oven			
red			
widget			
oneil			
bic2000			
bic200			
bic			



4. The system will run the search again.

Selecting a Search Suggestion

Users can choose search suggestions provided by the system:

1. Place the cursor in the search window and click the left mouse button:



Figure 4-10. Main Search Window

2. A list of previously entered searches will display:

Search for Products or Parts	Filter	~	Q
help			
chassis			
bicycle			
microwave oven			
red			
widget			
oneil			
bic2000			

Figure 4-11. Previous Searches

- 3. Start entering your new search. The list of previous searches will disappear.
- 4. After entering 3 characters of the new search, up to 10 suggestions will display based on the characters entered:



Figure 4-12. Search Suggestions

5. Select one of the suggestions from the list to have the system retrieve results.

NOTE:

- a. The suggestions displayed are based on content that exists in the ONeSOURCE Client.
- b. If a search filter is used, search suggestions will be limited to the filter selected (i.e., just to parts if the parts filter is selected).



Selecting a Search Filter Before Running a Search

Users may use one of the available search filters to narrow their search results:

1. The list of available filters can be displayed by clicking on the drop-down list.





NOTE:

- a. When the word "Filter" is displayed, it means no filter is applied. This is the default setting.
- b. Some customer configurations may include "PDF Publications" in the list of search filters. This filter is for searching PDFs without product-level applicability.
- 2. Select one of the filters available per your customer configuration.



Figure 4-14. Search Filter Selected

NOTE: With the parts filter selected above, the system will only search for parts that match the search entered.

3. Enter a search, select a previous search, or select a suggested search and press **Enter** or click on the magnifying glass icon to run the search.

Using the Serial Number Search Filter

To Filter Your Search by a Serial Number

1. Enter a serial number in the main search window and select the serial number filter from the dropdown list:



Figure 4-15. Main Search Window with Serial Number Filter Selected

2. Press **Enter** or click the maginifying glass icon to execute the search:



Figure 4-16. Serial Number Search Results



3. Open a search result:



Figure 4-17. Product Details Screen

NOTE:

- a. The serial number toggle button is turned on by default. Toggle it off to display more results.
- b. By turning the serial number toggle off, you will see all of the content for the selected item (in this example, the OD-TReX). You can confirm this by looking at the numbers displayed in the content filter badges on the left change accordingly.



Figure 4-18. With Serial Number Toggle Off

NOTE: Compare the number of results in this screenshot to the results for Library and Reference Material categories in the previous screenshot.

4. After searching a serial number-specific product, the product card for that product, displaying the serial number previously entered, will appear in the Previously Viewed section of the home page.



Figure 4-19. Prevoiusly Viewed Content



Search Results Limit

The application will display up to 1,000 results following a search in the main search window. If more than 1,000 results are returned, the following message will display to users:

Your search has generated over 1,000 results. All available filters are shown but may not yield results. Consider refining your search using specific keywords for more targeted information.

Figure 4-20. Too Many Search Results Message

If the search is run with a single filter applied, such as "Products", and more than 1,000 results are returned, the message above will display on the same screen as the results.

	pneumatic	Products	~ Q
	_		
	Your search has generated over 1,000 results. All	available filters are sho	wn but may not
	yield results. Consider refining your search using information.	specific keywords for r	nore targeted
Searc	h results for "pneumatic" (5416)	Results	

Figure 4-21. Search Run With Filter

NOTE:

- 1. The "Products" filter has been applied prior to running the search on the term "pneumatic".
- 2. If the "Export Results" is clicked, and the total number of results is greater than 1,000, only the first 1,000 results will be exported.

If the search is run without filters and more than 1,000 results are returned in a category such as Products, Parts, Publications, etc., the message will display when the user clicks on the "See All" link above the category.

	pneumatic		Filter	~ Q	
Search results for "pneumatic" (5416)		Top Product Results	;		See All

Figure 4-22. Search Run Without Filters

NOTE: Users can click "See All" to view search results for the category (e.g., "Products"). If there are more than 1,000 results, the message and the first 1,000 results will display.

If they are configured to have them, users can apply filters to the results and refine the search to narrow it down to 1,000 results or less.

If the customer's configuration does not include the use of search filters to refine their search, users will need to revise their intitial search if they want to narrow their results down to fewer than 1,000.



Find within WEB HELP DOC c.

Q

'Find Within' Search

'Find Within' Searching

The 'Find within' search window, like filters, allows users to narrow down search results to find the content they are looking for quickly and easily. 'Find within' searches are run *after* a search has been run in the main search window. 'Find within' searches, like searches performed in the main search window on the ONeSOURCE Client home page, are "starts with" searches as opposed to "contains" searches, meaning the system will look for the search string at the beginning of the content and not in the middle of the content.

The 'Find within' search window appears in multiple places throughout the ONeSOURCE Client:

- Home
 Search Results
 WEB HELP DOC

 Image: Constraint of the search of the sea
- Product and Parts Details Page



✓ English

~

 Viewer for (Parts, Service, Schematic, Knowledge Model, and Diagnostic Troubleshooting publications)

All Serial Number Ranges



Figure 5-2. Parts List Viewer Shown

• TOC Overlay

	Home Search Results WE	B HELP DOC		Find within Wright Flyer Indu Q
Wright Flyer Industries- PM Wright B Plyer Wright B Parts Wright B Plyer	Contents Wright Flyer Industries-PM CHASSIS DRIVE ENGINE STEERING	ElC2000 Operations Manual-OM	Demo Model 123-OM	ACME PARTS DEMO-PM

Figure 5-3. TOC Overlay

As with the main search window, users must enter at least three characters in the "Find within" search window in order to perform a search.

The "Find within" helper text will appear in the search window but the text after "Find within" will change depending on the source that is associated to the "Find within" window. When the user presses the Enter key after typing in a search in the "Find within" search window, the helper text will disappear.

The "Find within" search window is good for narrowing down a set of search results if the user is looking for a specific search term. If you want to narrow down search results according to various criteria defined by your customer configuration, use the available filters that display on the search results page.

		mast		Filter	~ Q
	/				
Selected Filters: 0	Clear all	Search results for "ma	st" (3) 🗈 Export Results		
System	~		New Master PN: New Master		
Subsystem	~				
Manufacturer	\sim				
			Alt Master PN: Alt Master		
			BRACKET PN: 123456		

Figure 5-4. Search Results Page

Refer to Filtering Search Results for more details.



Browsing Content

Browsing Products

Depending on the user's configuration, a Browse Products section may display on the ONeSOURCE Client home screen below the main search window.



Figure 6-1. Browse Products

Up to six products can be displayed at a time on the home screen. If there are more than six, navigation arrows display on either side of the Browse Products section so users can scroll through the carousel of the complete list of sources. In addition, dots below the two rows of products indicate how many browse product screens there are. The dot for the active screen is filled in. An empty dot indicates a screen is available but not currently shown.

To select a source from Browse Products, click on it with the left mouse button to open the Product Details screen.



Figure 6-2. Product Details Screen

1. Expand the "More Information" dropdown, when one is available, to display additional information about the product.





Figure 6-3. More Information Displayed

2. Click the Home link in the breadcrumb or the back button to return to the home screen.



Figure 6-4. Home Page Links

NOTE: Clicking the customer logo in the upper left corner of the browser may also return the user to the home screen.

Browsing Parts

Depending on the user's configuration, a Browse Parts section may display on the ONeSOURCE Client home page below the main search window and Browse Products section.



Figure 6-5. Browse Parts

Up to 10 parts sources can be displayed at a time on the home page. If there are more than 10, navigation arrows display on either side of the Browse Parts section so users can scroll through the carousel of the complete list of sources. In addition, dots below the two rows of parts indicate how many browse parts screens there are. The dot for active screen is filled in. An empty dot indicates a screen is available but not currently shown.



To select a source from Browse Parts, simply click on it with the left-mouse button to open the Parts Details screen.



Figure 6-6. Parts Details Screen

Previously Viewed Content

After browsing content in the ONeSOURCE Client, a list of previously viewed products and publications will be displayed at the bottom of the home page.



Figure 6-7. Previously Viewed Content

Previously Viewed Products

This is the default view users see when looking at the **Previously Viewed** content section. When there are more products that can fit on one screen, users can use navigation buttons to scroll to other previously viewed products. Clicking on a product image will open its product details page.

Previously Viewed Serial Numbers

After entering a serial number in the main search window and selecting an associated model, the serial number will be added to the Product card displayed in the list of previously viewed products in the **Previously Viewed** section.



Figure 6-8. Previously Viewed Serial Number Products

When users click on a Product card with a serial number displayed, they will be taken to the Product Details screen with content filtered based on that serial number.



Previously Viewed Publications

To view previously viewed publications, click Publications and the list will switch from a list of products to a list of publications.



Figure 6-9. Previously Viewed Publications

Clicking on a specific publication image will open its publication details page.

NOTE: In the screenshot above, publication titles are shown in bold. In addition to the publication's title (Title 1), fields for a secondary title (Title 2), ID1, and ID2 will display on the publication cards shown in the screenshot if they are populated. One of the publication cards above shows a value for ID1. ID1 and ID2 can be used, for example, to identify media content associated to a publication. Depending on the customer configuration, all four fields can be authored in the ONeSOURCE Content Management System (CMS).

NOTE: After viewing a module and returning to the Product details page, the family content that was previously selected will be selected by default.

Content Families

Narrative Publications

Unlike Parts lists that mostly display line items and graphics, Narrative Publications can display narrative text (paragraphs), tables, lists, links, and both embedded and stand-alone graphics. Operating and service manuals fall into the narrative publication category.

The contents of narrative publications, the sections and subsections, display as cards or tiles on the left of the viewer, while images corresponding to the sections display on the right. Users can open the contents of the section/subsection by clicking either the card or its image.



Figure 7-1. Operating and Service Publication Viewer

NOTE: Users can expand and collapse the list of contents by clicking on the arrows to the left of the cards.



lcon	Function
ß	Hides or displays the table of contents
	Print
2	Enter full screen mode
*	Exit full screen mode
•	Display details - displays additional details about the item in a pop-up window
	Add note - Adding a new note in the pop-up window will change the note icon green
9	Send feedback - opens a pop-up window to enter and submit a feedback on the item
\oplus	Select language - opens a pop-up window of translations

Table 7-1. Legend to Icons
Parts Publications

1. Individual parts lists display as a list of tiles on the left of the viewer, with corresponding parts images on the right. All of the cards or tiles in the contents are part of the same Parts publication.



Figure 7-2. Parts Publication Viewer



2. Users can use the icon bar to the left of the contents list to perform different actions. There are additional icons across the top for viewing details, adding notes, or sending feedback. There are also icons inside each line item to view part-specific details and to add the part to the pick list.



Figure 7-3. Parts Viewer Icons

lcon	Function
Ξ	Hides or displays the line items for the selected parts list
6	Hides or displays the table of contents (line items)
	Hides or displays the toolbar (shown in blue at the top of the part image)
	Print
~	Enter full screen mode
, *	Exit full screen mode
0	Display parts list details
	Add note - Adding a new note in the pop-up window will change the note icon green
9	Send feedback - opens a pop-up window to enter and submit a feedback on the item
Q	Adds the line item/part to the selected pick list
0	Display the parts line item flyout
	Select Language - Opens a pop-up window of available translations

Table	7-2.	Leaend	to	Icons
TUDIO	1 2.	Logona	.0	100110

See the section Using Parts Line Item Flyouts and other sections under Parts Publications for more details.



Knowledge Model and Diagnostic Troubleshooting Publications

Knowledge Models and Diagnostic Troubleshooting publications belong to a content type that provides interactive solutions designed to assist users during troubleshooting. Knowledge Models start with observed symptoms and direct the user through a series of steps to resolve the issue. Diagnostic Troubleshooting publications use diagnostic troubleshooting codes (DTC) to investigate causes and arrive at solutions.

The user interface in the ONeSOURCE Client for both are very similar. Below is an example of a Knowledge Model publication.

To view and interact with knowledge models

1. Select a Knowledge Model source.



Figure 7-4. Knowledge Model Viewer

2. Click on a symptom (e.g., Attachment Hub leaking) from the list of symptoms on the left, or click the image corresponding to the symptom on the right.







3. Use the various icons on the left when going through the Knowledge Model.

lcon	Function
Ō	Displays individual Knowledge Model sessions
Ê	Displays causes
	Displays the log
6	Hides or displays the table of contents
	Print
2. 2.	Enter full screen mode
y ^{ge}	Exit full screen mode
•	Display details
	Add note - adding a new note in the pop-up window will change the note icon green
٩	Send feedback - opens a pop-up window to enter and submit a feedback on the item

Table 7-3. Legend to Icons

4. Refer to Knowledge Model and Diagnostic Troubleshooting Publications for more details on performing the troubleshooting steps.

Interactive Schematics

An interactive schematic is a diagram designed to assist users when troubleshooting.

To view and interact with diagrams

1. Schematics contents display as a list of cards or tiles on the left of the viewer with corresponding schematics on the right.





Figure 7-6. Schematics Viewer

2. Use the icon bar to the left of the contents list to perform different actions. There are additional icons for viewing details, adding notes, or sending feedback.







lcon	Function
Ē	Hides or displays components
&	Hides or displays circuits
6	Hides or displays the table of contents
www	Hides or displays the toolbar
	Print
2. A.	Enter full screen mode
y ^{ee}	Exit full screen mode
•	Display details
	Add note - adding a new note in the pop-up window will change the note icon green
٩	Send feedback - opens a pop-up window to enter and submit a feedback on the item

Table 7-4. Legend to Icons

3. Refer to How to View Interactive Schematics for more details.

Content Families and Sub-Types

When a product is selected, users will see the Product Details page, with the content grouped by content families, and then by sub-types within each content family. This makes it easier for users to find the source they're looking for, as they can select the sub-type with the content they want to search.

A user's customer configuration determines which content families and sub-types they will see. Below are examples of a product that has publications in multiple content families. The first content family listed is Parts and, as shown by the counter in the bubble to the left of the word Parts in the screenshots below, there is one associated parts publication.

There are up to nine different content families in the ONeSOURCE Client:

- 1. Training Publications
- 2. Operator & Maintenance Publications
- 3. Knowledge Model Publications
- 4. Service Manuals
- 5. Parts Publications



- 6. General Publications
- 7. Newsletters
- 8. Diagram/Schematic Publications
- 9. Videos (MP4s with maximum file size of 300MB)

NOTE: Depending on the customer configuration, users may have access to some or all of the content families listed above.







CONTENT FAMILIES



Next, if we click on Service, we will see there are three associated publications.

Figure 7-9. Product Details Page - Associated Service Publications

Lastly, if we click on Diagnostics and Troubleshooting, that are also three associated publications.



Figure 7-10. Product Details Page - Associated Troubleshooting Publications



Narrative Publications

Operating and Service Publications Viewer

More than other content types, operating and service publications use a variety of markup such as text, tables, lists, hypertext links, videos, and both embedded and stand-alone graphics. The user interface in the ONeSOURCE Client, however, looks very similar to the other content types.

	Home	Search Results WEB HELP DOC	Demo Model 123-OM		Find within Demo Model 123-OM	2
	829	Contents Demo Model 123-OM	2.2 HOW TO US	E YOUR TRACTOR		*
	SAFET	YRULES		ADANGER		
•	PROD	JCT SPECIFICATIONS	The operation of tractor or perform	any tractor can result in foreign objects thrown into the eyes, which can result in severe eye damage. Always wear safety gli ing any adjustments or repairs. We recommend standard safety glasses or a wide vision safety mask worn over spectacles.	asses or eye shields while operating your	
	CUSTO	MER RESPONSIBILITIES	To Set Parking B	rake		
	> Assem	bly	Your tractor is equ off the engine.	pped with an operator presence sensing switch. When engine is running, any attempt by the operator to leave the seat with	out first setting the parking brake will shut	
			Depress cluto	h/brake pedal (B) all the way down and hold. See Figure 2-2.		
	✓ Operat	ions				
	KNOW YOUR TRACTOR HOW TO USE YOUR TRACTOR BEFORE STARTING THE ENGINE			B		
	MOW	ING TIPS				
				Figure 2-2. Parking Brake		
	> Mainte	nance	Pull parking b brake will hol	rake lever ©) up and hold, release pressure from clutch/brake pedal (B), then release parking brake lever. Pedal should rem d tractor secure.	iain in brake position. Make sure parking	
	> Service	and Adjustments	Stopping			
			Mower Blades -			
	> Storag	e	To stop mowe	er blades, place attachment clutch control in the "DISENGAGED" position. See Figure 2-3.		
	> Appen	lix				

Figure 8-1. Operating Manual Viewer

Home Zero Turn Counterbalanced OD-3We Demo M	odel 123-OP	Q Find within Demo Model 123-OF
Contents Demo Model 123-OP	4.1.1 TRACTOR	
Contents Demo Model 123-OP SAFETY RULES PRODUCT SPECIFICATIONS CUSTOMER RESPONSIBILITIES Assembly CUSTOMER RESPONSIBILITIES Assembly CUSTOMER RESPONSIBILITIES SASEmbly CUSTOMER RESPONSIBILITIES SASEmbly SASEmbly CUSTOMERATION ENGINE SUBJECT SUBJECT	<section-header><section-header><section-header><section-header><section-header><section-header><list-item><list-item><section-header><section-header></section-header></section-header></list-item></list-item></section-header></section-header></section-header></section-header></section-header></section-header>	
LIMITED WARRANTY	C Figure 4-1. Mover Deck	

Figure 8-2. Service Manual Viewer

When an Operator or Service manual has been translated into languages other than English, the Select Language icon will display at the top of the list of contents.

1. Click the Language icon at the top of the list of Contents.



Figure 8-3. Language Icon



2. A pop-up window showing available languages for the content will open.

Available Translations	×
English	
Español	
Français (Canada)	

Figure 8-4. Available Translations Pop-Up

3. Select a language by clicking on it.

Available Translations ×

English
Español
Français (Canada)

Figure 8-5. Select a Language

NOTE: Both the content and user interface will display in the selected language.



Printing Narrative Content

When printing content for a narrative publication, users will be prompted to print the currently selected module or the whole narrative publication. Narrative publications are publications that contain text (paragraphs), figures, lists, tables, etc. They are distinct from Parts publications. Service and Operating manuals are examples of narrative publications.

To Print Narrative Content

- 1. Select a narrative publication.
- 2. Click the Print icon from the left pane of the Narrative Publication viewer.

	Home	WEB HELP DOC		Demo Model 123-OM		
	020	Co Demo M	nter Iodel 1	its 123-OM		
,	SAFET	YRULES				
e'	PRODU	JCT SPECIFICATION	3			
	CUSTOMER RESPONSIBILITIES					
	> Assembly					
	✓ Operations					
	KNOW	YOUR TRACTOR				
	HOW	TO USE YOUR TRAC	TOR			
	BEFO	RE STARTING THE E	NGIN	E Selected mod	lule	
	MOWI	NG TIPS				

Figure 8-6. Print Icon



3. A Print Narrative Content pop-up window will open.

Print Narrative Content	×
Selection: C Entire Narrative Publication Current Module	
Print	Cancel

Figure 8-7. Print Narrative Content Pop-Up

- 4. Check the appropriate radio button for the desired print job. Selecting the current module will only print the module displayed in the viewer (e.g., "Mowing Tips" in the example above).
- 5. Click the Print button.
- 6. A print dialogue window will open to review printer properties and change selections.
- 7. Click the Print button to print the selection.

Parts Viewer

Parts Viewer

The Parts viewer displays parts lists interactively allowing users to select either line items or hotspots to quickly locate about information about the part.



Figure 9-1. Sample Parts List

When a Parts manual has been translated into languages other than English, the Select Language icon will display at the top of the list of contents next to the Send Feedback icon.

1. Click the Language icon at the top of the list of Contents.



Figure 9-2. Language Icon



2. A pop-up window showing available languages for the content will open.

Available Translations	
English	
Español	

Figure 9-3. Available Translations Pop-Up

3. Select a language by clicking on it.

Available Translations	×
English	
Español	



NOTE: Both the content and portions of the user interface will display in the selected language.



Line Items

Line items are the items that comprise a parts list. They usually correspond to hot spots in the parts illustration, although this may not always be the case. Clicking on a line item will highlight the corresponding hot spot in the parts illustration, when a matching hot spot exists. Clicking on the information icon associated to the line item will open the line item flyout box.

1. Open a parts list.



Figure 9-5. Sample Parts List

NOTE: Parts line items should display on the left of the viewer and the parts illustration should display on the right.



2. Click a line item in the parts list.



Figure 9-6. Sample Line Item

NOTE: The line item and corresponding hot spot(s), when one exists, will be highlighted. Clicking on a line item associated to more than one hot spot (e.g., when there is more than one hot spot with the same label/number) will highlight all of the hot spots in the parts illustration.

NOTE: The From and To in the above example are configurable and can be turned on or off based on what the customer wants to see in the line item.

3. Refer to Using Parts Line Item Flyouts for details on using line item flyouts.

Using Parts Line Item Flyouts

1. Individual line items in a parts list display an info icon that, when clicked, opens a flyout displaying additional information for the selected part. Users can view details, enter a note, send feedback, and view an image of the part, if available.



Figure 9-7. Information Icon

2. Details about the part are displayed by default.



Figure 9-8. Parts Line Item Flyout



If the customer's ONeSOURCE Client application is so configured and the information is available, a line item can display extended applicabilities. In this example, Fuel Type information is displayed.

Parts List BIC2000 IPC			
		🔅 Details	
19 PN: 18133	Qty:1	212/222 DC MOTOR A 18155	SSY WITH WIRE
Customer: ONEIL Motorized Bike	-	Qty: 1	UOM: EA
212/222 DC MOTOR ASSY WITH WIRE		Fuel Type: Gasoline	Extended applicability
PN: 18155	Qty:1	From: To:	
Customer: ONEIL Motorized Bike		Sourced: False	

Figure 9-9. Extended Applicability

NOTE: The extended applicability displayed is specific to the customer's configuration.

Additionally, a line item can display an effective date or a serial number range for the selected part.

🔅 Details				
Washer 13/32 x 13/16 x 16 Ga. 19131316 Qty: 1 From: 2021-05 Upto: 2021-10	UOM: EA			
 Notes Feedback 				



NOTE: The example above shows the part's effective from and to dates.

Viewing Parts Images in Line Item Flyout

When an image of the part is available, it will display in the Details portion of the Line Item Flyout. When more than one image is available, users can scroll through the images by using the navigation arrows displayed over the images or by clicking on the bubbles that display below the images.





8	Parts List COOLING COMMON PARTS	
1	HOSE RUBBER UP	1
	PN: 93B0110200	Qty:1
2	HOSE RUBBER LWR	0
	PN: 93B0100300	Qty:1
3	CLIP HOSE	C
	PN: 91A0102400	Qty:4
4	SHROUD ASSY	C
	PN: 93B0110400	Qty:1
5	HOSE CLAMP	C
	PN: 91A0101900	Qty:2
6	GUARD, RADIATOR L.H.	C
	PN: 91A0121300	Qty:1
7	GUARD, RADIATOR R.H.	G
	PN: 91A0121400	Qty:1

Figure 9-12. Line Item Flyout - Parts Image 2 of 2



To view an enlarged image of the part, click on the image in the Line Item Flyout. Use the navigation arrows or bubbles to scroll to other images, if present. Click on a portion of the screen away from the image to close the enlarged image view.



Figure 9-13. Enlarged Parts Image

3. Content authors may add a note to the line item (master part) in the Content Management System (CMS) which will show up in the Details section of the Line Item Flyout.

🕕 Details					
BOLT					
ME031865					
See Supersession					
Qty: -					
From: To:					
M/R: Slow					
R/P: CNG: SEQ:					
Note: Aftermarket parts acceptable.					
Notes					
- Feedback					
Supersession					

Figure 9-14. Note Added to Details in Line Item Flyout

NOTE: If the note is lengthy, an ellipsis will follow the note text that is visible. Users can read the full text of the note by hovering the mouse over the text.



4. Clicking on the other options in the Line Item Flyout (Notes or Feedback) will collapse the Details section and open the selected section. From here, users can view an existing note or add a new note or feedback.



Figure 9-15. Parts Line Item - Notes

Parts List GRAB HANDLE REAR SHELF	=	
PN: 06013164-02700	Qty:1	🔅 Details
(14) BH SEAL 40.00	0	Notes
PN: 06013164-04000	Qty:1	- Feedback
1 Bolt Hex 7/16-20 x 4 x Gr. 5-1.5	θ	Issue Type:
PN: 173937	Qty:1	Select Issue Type
2 BRACE LOWER FRONT RH	Q	Description of the issue (required)
PN: 22822244	Qty:1	
3 BRACKET SEAT MOUNT LH (E-350 and E-450)	0	//
PN: 22815852	Oty:1	First Name:
		Your first name (required)
BRACKET SEAT MOUNT RH (E-350 and E-450)		Last Name:
PN: 22815853	Qty:1	Your last name (required)
5 BRACKET SUPPORT FRONT STRUCTURE	0	Company Name:
PN: 22822258	Qty:1	

Figure 9-16. Parts Line Item - Feedback

Link to Part Details Page from Line Item Description

When parts search is enabled, line item descriptions are linked and will take users to the Part Details page for the specific part. The Part Details page typically provides more information about the part than what is available in the parts list.

- 1. Select a parts publication.
- 2. Click on a contents card or graphic.





3. The parts list will open displaying the line items and parts illustration.



4. If parts search is enabled for the customer configuration, line item descriptions will display a link when the user moves the mouse over it.



Figure 9-18. Linked Line Items

5. Click on the link in the line item description to go to the Part Details page.







6. Click the back button in the browser to return to the parts list.

Attachment Icons

Depending on your customer configuration, it is possible to have attachments for master parts that users can open for supplemental information about the specific master part.

When an attachment is present, an icon will display beside the cart icon. The design of this icon may vary for different customer configurations.

Below is an example of a master part with an attached PDF bulletin.



Figure 9-20. Master Part Attachment

In addition to icons for individual attachments, there will also be a paper clip icon to display a list of all attachments associated to a parts list. It displays to the right of the feedback icon at the top of the parts list.



Figure 9-21. Attachments Icon



Click on this icon to display the full list of associated attachments sorted by line item.



Figure 9-22. List of All Attachments



Hotspots

Hotspots, also referred to as callouts, are labels assigned to items in a parts illustration. Clicking on a hotspot will highlight the corresponding line item number in the parts list. Also, when the parts line items are hidden, clicking on a hotspot will display the hotspot flyout box.

1. Open a parts list.



Figure 9-23. Sample Parts List

NOTE: Parts line items should display on the left of the viewer and the parts illustration should display on the right.

2. Click on a hotspot displayed in the parts illustration.



Figure 9-24. Sample Hot Spot

NOTE: The hot spot and corresponding line item will be highlighted.



3. Clicking a hotspot that is associated to more than one line item (e.g., when there are two line items with the same label/number) will highlight all of the associated line items in the parts list.



Figure 9-25. Hotspot Associated to Multiple Line Items

4. Refer to Using Hotspot Flyouts for details on using hot spot flyouts.

Using Hotspot Flyouts

Users can view part meta data, shopping cart icon, and an image of the part (if available) when selecting an interactive hotspot on a parts diagram when the list of line items is collapsed.

To view hotspot flyouts:

- 1. Open a parts list.
- 2. Collapse the line items by clicking the parts list icon.







3. Click on a hotspot to display the flyout.



Figure 9-27. Hotspot Flyout



4. When an image of the part is available, it will display in the Hot Spot Flyout. When more than one image is available, users can scroll through the images by using the navigation arrows displayed over the images, or by clicking on the bubbles that display below the images.



Figure 9-28. Hotspot Image 1 of 2

5. To display the parts list items, click the parts list icon or the line item hotspot displayed in the flyout.



Figure 9-29. Hotspot Image 2 of 2

6. To view an enlarged image of the part, click on the image in the hotspot flyout. Use the navigation arrows or bubbles to scroll to other images, if present. Click on a portion of the screen away from the image to close the enlarged image view.



Figure 9-30. Enlarged Parts Image

Viewing Front Matter

When there is front matter associated with a parts publication, users will be able to view it in the Parts Viewer along with the parts list(s). Front matter is content, usually in narrative format (paragraphs of text, tables, lists, figures, etc.), that is related to the parts list(s) that follow.

1. To View Parts List Front Matter

Select a parts list publication that has front matter. The TOC overlay will display. Click on a section in the TOC to open the parts list in the Parts Viewer.

	Contents Demo Model 123	GUIDE FOR USE OF PARTS LIST
⊻ ■	GUIDE FOR USE OF PARTS LIST	
	Change Summary Log	
	✓ Mechanical System	
_	> SIDE SHIFT FORK	
•	> FORK POSITIONER	
	> ROTATING FORK	
	> ROTATING CLAMP	



NOTE: The Guide and Change Summary Log is front matter associated to the parts publication.

- 2. The parts lists start with the Mechanical System section.
- 3. Click on the Contents icon (shown highlighted in blue above) to toggle the TOC on or off.

Viewing Nested Parts Lists

A nested parts lists, or sub-assemblies, can appear within the main parts list. These nested lists, in turn, can also have parts lists nested within them.

1. The presence of a nested parts list is indicated by a plus sign on the line item.



Figure 9-32. Nested Parts List Indicator

2. Click the plus sign to expand the nested parts list.



Figure 9-33. Expanded Nested Parts List

NOTE: The parent and children line items of the nested parts list are highlighted as shown when the nested parts list is expanded. The highlight color is configurable and will vary by customer.

- 3. When expanded, the plus sign changes to a horizontal dash.
- 4. To collapse a nested parts list, click the horizontal dash.
- 5. When collapsed, the horizontal dash changes back to a plus sign.

Levels of Nesting

1. Here is an example of a parts list that contains a nested parts list within a nested parts list.





Figure 9-34. First Nested Parts List Plus Sign


2. Click on the plus sign to expand the nested parts list.

Figure 9-35. Second Nested Parts List Plus Sign



- 0 8 Parts List Chassis V Drawbar, Upper Ē 2 P i PN: 412280 Qty:1 Dash E 5 i PN: 197783X428 Qty:1 ~ Hood F 14 i PN: 183393X428 Qty:1 Lens Grille LH Ē 15 i PN: 183834X599 Qty:1 Grille -18 i PN: 183828 Qty:1 Lens Grille RH 2 25 i PN: 183835X599 Qty:1 Screw 5/16-18 x 3/4 F 36 i Qty:1 PN: 17060512 Fender 37 E Qty:1 PN: 414872X428
- 3. Click on the plus sign to expand the nested parts list.



NOTE:

- a. The highlighting of the parent line item and children line items from the previous nested parts list is lighter than it was originally, and the highlighting of the parent line item and children line items of the currently expanded nested part list is darker.
- b. Subsequent levels of nested parts lists will follow the same pattern, with the last opened level of nested line items showing the darker highlighting and previous levels having the lighter highlighting.
- c. The color used for highlighting the different levels of nested parts list items is set by the customer's configuration.

Viewing Supersession Information

Superseded parts are easy to overlook in a parts list. If the superseded part number is known, the Find within.... search feature can be helpful in making them easier to find.

1. Select and open a parts publication.







Figure 9-37. Parts Publication

2. Enter a part number that has been superseded into the **Find within** search window and press **Enter**.



Figure 9-38. Superseded Part Number

3. The parts lists that contain the superseded part number will be highlighted.



Figure 9-39. Parts Lists That Contain Superseded Part(s)

4. Select one of the highlighted parts lists.





5. The parts list will open and the line item with the superseded part will be highlighted.

Figure 9-40. Parts List with Superseded Part Highlighted



6. Click the **Superseded** link to display the Parts List flyout.

Part	s List s List A				
			Details		
1	Qtv:1		Notes		
2 INJECTOR ASSY, FUEL			Feedback		
PN: 91H2016690-CHAN	GE Qty:1	S	Supersession	E has been	
3 BICYCLE	0	supe	rseded. The following replacen able:	nent parts a	re
 PN: 888888	Qty:1		Part No. Description	Qty	
6 new part	0	0	91H2026690 INJECTOR ASSY,FUEL	1	æ
PN: 6589654	Qty:1	0	91H2036690 INJECTOR ASSY-FUEL	1	۲

Figure 9-41. Parts List Flyout Showing Supersession Details

NOTE:

- a. The part number of the superseded part, the part that was entered in the **Find within** search window, is also highlighted in the flyout.
- b. You can also select the parts list first and use the **Find within** search window on that screen as well.
- 7. The supersession history displays below the Feedback section of the flyout.
- 8. To add a replacement part, click on the shopping cart displayed on the row.
- 9. Symbols in the first column of the supersession table indicate the following.

Tabl	е	9-	1	
iasi	0	0		•

Icon	Meaning
•	Single (Ahead)
0	Single (Interchangeable)
•	Multiple (Ahead)



Table 9-1.	(Continued)
------------	-------------

lcon Meaning	
	Many to One (Interchangeable)



Master Parts - Management Rank

"Management rank" refers to customer demand for the specified part (high, medium, or low). This knowledge is helpful in managing parts stocking and inventory.



Figure 9-42. Part Showing Management Rank

The values for management rank may vary for different regions or customers, but the basic concept is as described above.

Filtering Line Items by Product-Level Applicability

Users can filter line items in a parts list they are viewing to display only the line items they want to see based on the selected product applicabliity. You must have this feature turned on per your customer configuration.

To filter line items:

- 1. Select a parts publication.
- 2. Click on a contents card or graphic.



Figure 9-43. Select Parts Publication

- 3. The parts list will open displaying the line items and parts illustration.
- 4. Product level applicability, if present, will display at the bottom of the line item.



Figure 9-44. Line Item Showing Product Applicability

NOTE: A line item may have more than one product level applicability. The descriptor used to show the product level applicability is configurable for each customer (e.g., Customer, Model, etc.)



5. To filter line items by product level applicability, click on the Filters icon (looks like a funnel) to the left of the parts list.





6. Click on the desired filter from the list of available filters to display the choices.

	Home	Search Results	EZ-Rider		BIC2000 Parts Catalog	
Ξ	View Filtered	Parts List			<u>C</u>	lear All
	Customer	produce	ct-level filte	r		>
7						
B						

Figure 9-46. List of Product Filters

7. Select one or more of the filters using the checkboxes.



Figure 9-47. List of Products under Customer Filter



8. Click on View Filtered Parts List to apply the filters to the parts list.



Figure 9-48. View Filtered Parts List Link

9. The parts list will be displayed with the line items that match the selected filter(s).



Figure 9-49. Filtered Parts List and Filter Icon Counter

NOTE: The parts list now only displays the line items that have the selected applicability. The counter on the Filters icon indicates the parts list has been filtered and that one product applicability filter has been applied.



10. To clear or remove a filter, click on the Filters icon to deselect the box for that applicability. To clear all filters, click on the Filters icon and then on Clear All.



Figure 9-50. Clearing Filters

11. To display the parts list, click View Filtered Parts List or click on the Parts List icon above the Filters icon.

	Herne Search Results EZ-Rider	BIC2000 Parts Catalog
Ξ	View Filtered Parts List	<u>Clear Al</u>
	Customer	\sim
\mathbf{V}	Cyclops	
B	Dorothy Gale Limited	
	EZ-Rider	
G	Hybrid	
	ONEIL Motorized Bike	
2	RMB (Rugged Mountain Bike)	

Figure 9-51. Return to Parts List



Filtering Line Items by Model

When a user's configuration includes parts serial numbers and Bill of Materials (BOM) data is available, and the user has entered a valide serial number in the main search window, they can filter the parts list by choosing a line item applicability. In turn, the hotspots for the line items that have been removed due to the line item applicability they selected will be grayed out.

This is similar to how things work when turning the serial number toggle on or off, if one is available.

The following example illustrates the behavior.

- 1. User has entered a valid serial number or model search in the main search window and BOM data is available for the serial number.
- 2. User opens a part list associated to a specific model and sees the parts list displayed for the selected model. Also, the Filters icon shows one model has been selected. In this example, there are several models associated to the parts list, not all of which include every line item.



Figure 9-52. Parts List for Selected Model

NOTE:

- a. Several of the line items display line item applicability. If the line item applies to specific models, these models are listed.
- b. Multiple models can be associated to a line item.
- c. Multiple model filters can be selected using the Filters icon for one parts list.
- d. Line items that are not included for the selected model will be filtered out of the parts list and the corresponding hotspot(s) in the parts illustration will be grayed out.



3. To select a different model filter, click on the Filters icon, uncheck the box for any currently selected models and check the box for the desired model(s).

	Denotes one filt	er is	
Ξ	selected	Filters	
P	View Filtered Parts List		Clear All
	Model		~
B	1S1L15NE	Click to uncheck box	── ♥
	1S1L15NV		
	1S1L18NE		
~	1S1L18NV		
2	1S1L20NE		

Figure 9-53. Currently Selected Model

Ξ		Filters	
9	View Filtered Parts Li	<u>st</u>	Clear All
	Model		\sim
6	1S1L15NE		
	1S1L15NV	Click to select new model	━→ ☑
	1S1L18NE		
,	1S1L18NV		
≰	1S1L20NE		\Box

Figure 9-54. Newly Selected Model

NOTE: When models are selected, a counter will display by the Filters icon and show how many filters have been selected. To remove all filters, click on the Clear All link.

4. Click the link labeled View Filtered Parts List to display the parts list with the new applicability (model).





- 5. Click the View Filtered Part List link to return to the parts list. The parts list will display the line items associated to the currently selected model or models.
- 6. Multiple models can also be selected at the same time.



Figure 9-56. Multiple Models Selected



Filtering Line Items by Serial Number Applicability

Users can filter line items displayed in a parts list to those based on the serial number they have selected. They must have this feature turned on per their customer configuration.

To filter line items by serial number:

1. Enter a serial number in the main search window and select the serial number filter from the dropdown list.



Figure 9-57. Enter a Serial Number

- 2. Press Enter or click the magnifying glass icon to execute the search.
- 3. Select a search result and parts publication.





- 4. Select a parts list.
- 5. The parts list will open displaying the line items and parts illustration.



Home Search Results EP20KT CHASSIS, MAST, OPTIONS AND INTER	Serial Number: ETB5B50645
Home Search Results EP20KT CHASSIS, MAST, OPTIONS AND INTER Image: Comparison of the second secon	Serial Number: ETB5BB50645

Figure 9-59. Parts List and Parts Illustration

NOTE: The serial number toggle button is turned on by default and line items associated with the serial number are displayed.

6. By turning the serial number toggle off, all line items in the parts list are displayed whether or not they are associated to the serial number.







7. When the serial number toggle is turned on and no line items in the parts list are associated to the selected serial number, the following pop-up message will momentarily display at the bottom of the screen.



Figure 9-61. Serial Number Toggle On

Filtering Line Items by Serial Number

When the user's customer configuration includes parts serial numbers and there are BOMs associated to the serial numbers, the system grays out the hotspot in the parts illustration when the serial number toggle button has been turned on and the line item has been filtered out. When the serial number toggle button is turned off, the line item will be displayed and the hotspot will not be grayed out.

The following example illustrates the behavior.

- 1. User has entered a valid serial number in the main search window and BOM data is available for the serial number.
- 2. User opens a part list associated to the serial number.
- 3. User will see that with the serial number toggle button turned on, some line items will be filtered out in the parts list and the accompanying hotspots will be grayed out in the parts illustration.





Figure 9-62. Serial Number Toggle On - Line Items Filtered Out

4. When the serial number toggle button is turned off, line items that had been previously filtered out will display and the accompanying hotspots will not be grayed out.



Figure 9-63. Serial Number Toggle - Line Items Not Filtered Out



Serial Number Toggle Behavior

Generally, when the Serial Number toggle is off, all line items in a parts list are displayed (as they are not associated to a specific serial number). When the toggle is turned on, some of the line items are not displayed (as some line items are only associated to a specific serial number).

There is another scenario where a serial number can be searched that is not associated to a BOM, but is within a serial number range. In this situation, the Serial Number toggle will display in the off position, disabled and not clickable. If the user hovers over or attempts to click on the toggle, they will see a tooltip that says "No serial specific content is available".

- 1. User searches on a serial number that is not associated to a BOM but is within a serial number range and associated to content.
- 2. When the user views the product details page, they will see the serial number toggle is on, and content is filtered by the serial number.



Figure 9-64. Product Details Page - Serial Number Toggle On



a. Turning the serial number toggle off displays all content (e.g., additional sources show up on the Product Details page).



Figure 9-65. Product Details Page - Serial Number Toggle Off

3. With the Serial Number toggle on, select a parts publication from the Product Details page.



Figure 9-66. Product Details Page - Serial Number Toggle On



4. When the part list opens, the serial number toggle will be off even though at the Product Details page it was on, and a message will display at the bottom of the screen that says no serial specific content is available.



Figure 9-67. Serial Number Search With No Serial-Specific Content Available

NOTE: The message will close after a few seconds, but if the user hovers over the serial number toggle, the same message will display as a tooltip.

Serial Number: AT81F20345
 No serial specific content is available.

5. None of the line items are hidden because there is no BOM to filter anything.

Filters Icon Indicators

Filters Icon

Depending on availability of this feature to customers or line item applicability, the Filters icon may not be active or may be grayed out.

Active with no applicability applied

7

Figure 9-68. Filters Icon - No Applicability Applied

Status: Line item filtering is available but no product-level applicability has been applied.

Active with applicability applied: Icon:

7

Figure 9-69. Filters Icon - Applicability Applied

Status: Line item filtering is available and one or more line items in the parts list have had product-level applicability applied.

Inactive (grayed out) Icon:

Figure 9-70. Filters Icon - Inactive

Status: Line item filtering is available but none of the line items in the parts list have product-level applicability that matches any of the filters.



Icon does not display at all



Figure 9-71. Filters Icon Not Available

Status: Line item filtering is not available under the current customer configuration; if it were available, the Filters icon would display between the parts list and contents icons (indicated by red pointer above).

Printing Parts Content

When printing content for a parts publication, users will be prompted to print the currently selected parts list or the whole parts publication. They will also be prompted to print both the parts list(s) and parts illustration(s), or just the parts list(s) or just the parts illustration(s).

To Print Parts Content

- 1. Select a parts publication.
- 2. Click the Print icon from the left pane of the Parts Viewer.



Figure 9-72. Print Icon

3. A Print Parts Content pop-up window will open.



Figure 9-73. Print Parts Content Pop-Up



- 4. Check the appropriate print options for the desired print job.
- 5. Click the Print button.
- 6. A print dialogue window will open to review printer properties and change selections.
- 7. Click the Print button to print the selections.

Parts Search

Filtering Search Results

Users can apply filters to Parts search results to narrow down the list of parts and quickly find the desired content.

After running a search, the search results page will display.





1. In the example above, there are filters for System and Subsystem. Click on a filter to expand the tile and display the available choices.

Selected Filters: 1	<u>Clear all</u>	Search results for "e" (1) 🕼 Export Results	
System	0 ~	Pulley Engine	
Chassis		UOM: EA	
Drivetrain			
System 1			
Subsystem	~		
Cooling			
Engine			
Steering			
Subsys1			
Suspension			

Figure 9-75. Parts Filters

NOTE:

- a. As filters are selected (by checking the box to the right of the filter name), the search results will automatically change and display only the results that apply to the selected filter(s).
- b. The number of choices (checkboxes) for a given filter will vary by source and can get quite lengthy, depending on the parts search that was performed.
- c. If a filter or filters are selected and no results match the filters, a pop-up message will display that says "No results found. Try removing filters to see more results."
- 2. To return to the original search results, uncheck the filters that are selected.
- 3. Filtered results can be exported to the user's local machine via the Export Results link. Refer to Exporting Search Results for more details.



Exporting Search Results

Users can export parts, product or parts details Where Used search results to a .csv file that can be saved to their computer. This allows them to access the results later outside of the ONeSOURCE Client.

NOTE: When the total number of results returned by the search is 1,000 or fewer, the exported file will contain all of the items within the file. When there are more than 1,000 results, the exported file will contain the first 1,000 items only.

To export search results:

1. From the search results page, click on the displayed link labeled Export Results.



Figure 9-76. Parts Search Results

PARTS VIEWER



Figure 9-77. Products Search Results





Figure 9-78. Parts Details Where Used Results

2. A .csv file will be downloaded to the user's machine.

3. Users can access the file by clicking on the file displayed at the bottom of the browser, or by going to the Downloads folder on their machine.



Figure 9-79. Opening Exported Search Results



- 4. Double click the file to open it.
- 5. The following default fields will be output: Name, Description, Type, Brand, and Product.



Figure 9-80. .CSV File in Excel

6. To save the .csv file, select Save or Save as to save the file in the desired location.

PARTS VIEWER

Pick Lists

Introduction to Pick Lists

For customers configured with access to the shopping cart and pick lists, adding a part to the Shopping Cart adds the part to the pick list that is active. All customers so configured have access to at least one pick list ("Pick List 1" by deftault), however, they can create additional pick lists if needed. Creating multiple pick lists allows users to group parts into separate lists depending on business needs. They can be used to group parts for a specific brand or model, or to create a list for commonly ordered parts. Toggling between pick lists is easy allowing users to work on more than one pick list per session.

Users have access to the shopping cart in the following locations in the ONeSOURCE Client:

• Parts Line Item cards

2 ECU, T/M 8-9T 3SP	0
PN: 16A2212001	Qty:1 (1

Figure 9-81. Parts Line Item

Hotspot Flyouts



Figure 9-82. Hotspot Flyout

· Supersession section of Line Item Flyout

1 ECU,T/M 8-9T 3SP PN: 16A2212000 <u>Superseded</u> From: To:	Cty:1	() () () () () () () () () () () () () (Details Notes Feedback Supersession		
2 ECU,T/M 8-9T 3SP PN: 16A2212001 From:	Qty:1	Part I The f	Number 16A2212000 has been ollowing replacement parts are Part No. Description 16A2212001	available:	ed.
To:		8 8 8	ECU,T/M 8-9T 3SP 16A2212002 ECU,T/M 8-9T 3SP 16A2222000 ECU T/M 8-9T 3SP	1	E E
		0	16A2222001 ECU,T/M 8-9T 3SP	1	Æ





• Supersession Overlays



Figure 9-84. Supersession History Overlay

Parts Details Page



ECU, T/M 8-9T 3SP

SEAT, GRAY FABRIC

1102678

Figure 9-85. Parts Details Page
• Parts cards on search results page



Figure 9-86. Parts Cards - Search Results

• Browse Parts module on the landing/home page

	0	9547 System	I	MORE INFORMATION V
E	Browsing for Parts		Find within 9547 System	Q
		CIRCUIT BREAKE LOADMASTER ST WASTE ONLY) PN: 17P1E1202	R ASSY, FORWARD ATION (WATER AND	•
		CIRCUIT BREAKE SINGLE BUTTON, AMP (3841CB001) PN: 1526-066-3	R, THREE POLE, PUSH-PULL, SIZE E	3, 3 D

Figure 9-87. Parts Cards - Browse Parts

Pick lists can be viewed via a quick view or a full view via the pick list page. From the full page view, supersession history can be viewed for parts on the pick list that have been superseded and the pick list can be saved as (e.g., copied) a new pick list, e-mailed, or exported.



Pick List Quick View

1. To open a quick view of the pick list, click on the shopping cart icon.



Figure 9-88. Shopping Cart Icon

NOTE: The number shown in the shopping cart represents the number of items (e.g., parts) in the active pick list.

2. The quick view of the active pick list will display.

Pick List 2		~ ①
	View Pick List	
E	CIRCUIT BREAKER, TRIP FREE PUSH-PULL, 5 AMP (3841CB002)	Qty: 1
	8600-005-6	UOM: EA
a ?	"FAN	Qty: 1
6 Per	92A0103700	UOM: EA
	112/212 COMPUTER	Qty: 1
	18143	UOM: EA
	SCREW PHILLIPS HD M5*10L	Qty: 4

Figure 9-89. Pick List Quick View

NOTE: If there is more than one pick list, a drop-down menu is provided for the user to select the desired list.

3. Parts information is displayed, including images if they are available, for each part that has been added. Parts cannot be added to the pick list from the quick view, but parts can be removed and quantities can be changed.



Pick List Page

4. To open the full pick list page, click on the View Pick List link on the Pick List quick view screen (see above).

Home Pick List						
Title:	Pick Li	st 2				
Description:	(option	al)				
Pick List:	Pick I	.ist 2 🗸 🗸				
			Save As Create New Print Email Export	Ca	ncel De	elete
Part Numb	per	Part Description	Note	UOM	Quantity	
Add Part Enter Part #						
8600-005-0	6	CIRCUIT BREAKER, TRIP FREE PUSH-PULL, 5 AMP (3841CB002)		EA	1	×
92A010370	00	"FAN		EA	1	×
18143		112/212 COMPUTER		EA	1	×
18094		SCREW PHILLIPS HD M5*10L		EA	4	×
1800		BOLT BUTTON HEAD ALLEN M8*1.25*16L CR		EA	15	×

Figure 9-90. Pick List Page

- 5. Users can do a variety of actions with the selected pick list through a series of buttons that display above the pick list.
- 6. Pick lists can be created and edited using a desktop PC or portable devices like phones or laptops.

Creating a Pick List

Pick List 1 is the default pick list name created by the system and is initially empty. Users may edit this default name as well as create new pick lists and then switch among them during a session.

To Create a Pick List:

1. Click on the cart icon in the upper right of the screen.



Figure 9-91. Cart Icon



2. If there are no items in the cart, an empty pick list will display.



Figure 9-92. Pick List is Empty

NOTE: This display is called the pick list quick view. It shows the default pick list, Pick List 1, that is created by the system.

3. If you already have a pick list that contains items but wish to start a new pick list, click on the plus + icon on the right of the pick list drop-down.



Figure 9-93. Click to Create a New Pick List

4. The **Create a New Pick List** pop-up window displays:

Create a New Pick List.	
Title:	Pick List 2
Description:	optional
	Save
Figure	9-94. Create New Pick List Window

- 5. Users can enter their own title for the pick list or they can keep the title the system has provided. An optional description can also be entered.
- 6. Click the **Save** button to save the information and close the pop-up window.
- 7. The newly created pick list becomes the active pick list until the user switches to a different pick list.
- 8. To switch to a different pick list, click on the shopping cart icon again to bring up the pick list quick view:



Figure 9-95. Quick List View

9. Click on the down arrow to open the drop-down list and select the desired pick list:



Figure 9-96. Select Desired Pick List

10. The desired pick list now becomes the active pick list and the quick view window will close.



Adding Parts to a Pick List

Remember that while there can be multiple pick lists, only one of them is active at a given time. Users choose the pick list they wish to be active by selecting it from the drop-down list after clicking on the shopping cart icon. Users should be aware that all parts added to the shopping cart icon will be added to the active pick list until they choose another pick list to become the active one.

Add a Part to a Pick List:

- 1. Open a Parts Publication. Refer to Parts Publications for more details.
- 2. The system displays the parts corresponding to the selected parts list.



Figure 9-97. Parts List Line Items

- 3. Click the shopping cart icon to the right of the part to add it to the pick list. A confirmation pop-up will display briefly after each part is added.
- 4. The counter inside the shopping cart icon at the top of the browser will display the total number of parts that have been added to the pick list and will increment by one each time a new part is added.



Figure 9-98. Shopping Cart Icon

5. Repeat the process to add more parts to the pick list.

Add a Part to a Pick List from the Pick List Page

- 1. Select the desired pick list by clicking on the shopping cart icon at the top of the browser. Use the drop-down list to select the desired pick list if more than one pick list exists.
- 2. Click on the View Pick List on the pick list quick view.

Pick List 2		~ ()
	View Pick List	
E	CIRCUIT BREAKER, TRIP FREE PUSH-PULL, 5 AMP (3841CB002)	Qty: 1
	8600-005-6	UOM: EA
A C	"FAN	Qty: 1
Le Ber	92A0103700	UOM: EA
	112/212 COMPUTER	Qty: 1
	18143	UOM: EA
	SCREW PHILLIPS HD M5*10L	Qty: 4

Figure 9-99. Pick List Quick View

3. The Pick List page opens.

Home Pic	k List							
Title:	[Pick List 2						
Description:		optional)						
Pick List:	[Pick List 2 🗸						
			Save Save A	As Create New Print	Email Export	Car	ncel De	elete
	Part Number	Part Description	Note			UOM	Quantity	
Add Part Er	nter Part #							
TEN	8600-005-6	CIRCUIT BREAKER, TRIP FREE PUSH-PULL, 5 AMP (3841CB002)				EA	1	×
10	92A0103700	'FAN				EA	1	×
	18143	112/212 COMPUTER				EA	1	×
	18094	SCREW PHILLIPS HD M6*10L				EA	4	×
	1800	BOLT BUTTON HEAD ALLEN M6*1.25*16L CR				EA	15	×





- 4. There are two ways to add parts to a pick list from the Pick List page:
 - a. Clicking on a part description for a part that is already on the pick list.
 - b. Entering the master part number in the Enter Part # window and then clicking the + Add Part button.

Adding a Part to a Pick List by Clicking on Part Description

- 1. Click on the part description (it will be linked if the part is a master part).
- 2. The Part Details page will display.
- 3. Select the desired source.
- 4. Open the parts lis.
- 5. Follow the steps to add a part to a pick list from a parts list.

Adding a Part by Entering a Part Number

1. Enter the part number in the **Enter Part #** window.

NOTE: The part entered must be a master part for it to be found by the system. After entering the master part, the **+ Add Part** button should become active.

- 2. Click the **+ Add Part** button.
- 3. The part is added to the pick list.

Removing Parts from a Pick List

NOTE: Once a part is removed from a Pick List, it cannot be undone. Users must either add the part number to the list again, or find the part on a parts list and add it back to the selected pick list.

To Remove a Part from the Pick List Quick View

1. Click on the shopping cart icon at the top right of the browser and select the desired pick list.





2. Click on the x that appears to the right of the part:





Figure 9-102. Remove Item from Pick List

- 3. A confirmation pop-up will appear. Click Yes to confirm the removal.
- 4. The part is removed from the pick list.

To Remove a Part from the Pick List Page

1. Click on the shopping cart icon at the top right of the browser and select the desired pick list:



Figure 9-103. Select Desired Pick List

2. Click on View Pick List to open the Pick List Page.

Pick List 1		~	0
	<u>View Pick List</u> 🗲		
Battery		Qty: 1	×
163465		UOM:	EA

Figure 9-104. Open Pick List Page



3. Click on the x that appears to the right of the quantity box.

Home Pick L	ist				
Title:	Pick List 1				
Description:	Parts for Yp	osilanti Plant			
Pick List:	Pick List 1				
		Save		Delete	
	Part Number	Part Description	M	Quantity	
A. C.	92A0103700	"FAN	Ā	1	×
2=	8600-005-6	CIRCUIT BREAKER, T	Ā	1	×
	16A2212000 Superseded	ECU,T/M 8-9T 3SP	A	1	×
	F182510025	"BOLT	A	1	×
Add Part Enter	r Part #				



4. There is no confirmation pop-up to confirm the removal. The part is removed immediately; however, a warning appears to let you know that the change to the pick list has not been saved.

Warning! You have unsaved changes to your Pick List

Figure 9-106. Warning

- 5. Click the Save button to save your changes.
- 6. Any changes made to the pick list, including the part removal, are saved.
- 7. To undo a part removal prior to clicking the Save button, click on another part of the ONeSOURCE Client such as the Home tab, the shopping cart in the upper right of the browser, or the View Pick List link. A pop-up message will appear asking you if you want to leave the page. Click the Leave button to exist the pick list page and discard your changes.

	Leave site? Changes you made may not be saved.			
F		Leave	Cancel	

Figure 9-107. Confirmation Message

8. To undo a part removal after clicking the Save button, you'll need to add the part number to the pick list again, if known, using the + Add Part button on the pick list page or go to the desired parts list and add it to the pick list.



Figure 9-108. + Add Part Number Window



Using the "Save As" Function

To Print a Pick List

NOTE: Pick lists can only be printed from the pick list page.

1. Click on the shopping cart icon in the upper right of the browser. The pick list quick view will open.



Figure 9-109. Pick List Quick View

- 2. Select the desired pick list, using the drop-down list if needed.
- 3. Click on View Pick List to open the pick list page.

PARTS VIEWER

Home Pick L	ist						
Title:	Pick List 1						
Description:	Parts for Y	Parts for Ypsilanti Plant					
Pick List	Pick List	Save Save As Create New	Print Email Export Cance	el	Delete		
	Part Number	Part Description	Note	UOM	Quantity		
2	92A0103700	"FAN MOTOR"		EA	1	×	
1050	8600-005-6	CIRCUIT BREAKER, TRIP FREE PUSH-PULL, 5 AMP (3841CB002)		EA	1	×	
	16A2212000 Superseded	ECU,T/M 8-9T 3SP		EA	1	×	
	F182510025	"BOLT		EA	1	×	
Add Part Enter	r Part #						

Figure 9-110. Pick List Page

4. Click on the **Print** button on the pick list page.





- 5. A print preview window will open.
- 6. Check the print settings and then click the **Print** button.



9/8/22, 8:51 AM	851 AM ONeSOURCE - Pick List					Print		1 sheet of paper	
ONeSC	OURCE						Destination	e anna agus	aleitei an 💌
Title: Description:	Pick List 1 Parts for Ypsilanti P	lant					Pages	All	•
	Part Number	Part Description	Note	UOM	Quantity		Copies	1	
	18143	112/212 COMPUTER		EA	1				
	91H2016010	BOLT		EA	1		More settings		~
	91H2006690 Superseded	INJECTOR ASSY,FUEL		EA	1				
R.	92A0103700	"FAN		EA	1				
-	8600-005-6	CIRCUIT BREAKER, TRIP FREE PUSH-PULL, 5 AMP (3841CB002)		EA	1				
	16A2212000 Superseded	ECU,T/M 8-9T 3SP		EA	1				
								Print	Cancel
oneilweb.44.tst.oneiling	.net/picklist					1/1			Calicer

Figure 9-112. Print Preview Page



Printing a Pick List

To Print a Pick List

NOTE: Pick lists can only be printed from the pick list page.

1. Click on the shopping cart icon in the upper right of the browser. The pick list quick view will open.



Figure 9-113. Pick List Quick View

- 2. Select the desired pick list, using the drop-down list if needed.
- 3. Click on View Pick List to open the pick list page.



Home Pick L	ist					
Title:	Pick List 1					
Description:	Parts for Y	Parts for Ypsilanti Plant				
Pick List:	Pick List	1 v Save Save As Create New	Print Email Export Cance	el	Delete	
	Part Number	Part Description	Note	UOM	Quantity	
1.	92A0103700	"FAN MOTOR"		EA	1	×
79-94	8600-005-6	CIRCUIT BREAKER, TRIP FREE PUSH-PULL, 5 AMP (3841CB002)		EA	1	×
	16A2212000 Superseded	ECU,T/M 8-9T 3SP		EA	1	×
	F182510025	"BOLT		EA	1	×
Add Part Enter	Part #					

Figure 9-114. Pick List Page

4. Click on the **Print** button on the pick list page.





- 5. A print preview window will open.
- 6. Check the print settings and then click the **Print** button.

8/22, 8:51 AM			ONeSOURCE - Pick List				Print		1 sheet of paper
ONeSC	URCE						Destination	ē and	00),C2040941 av
Title:	Pick List 1 Parts for Ypsilanti P	fant					Pages	All	•
	Part Number	Part Description	Note	UOM	Quantity		Copies	1	
	18143	112/212 COMPUTER		EA	1				
	91H2016010	BOLT		EA	1		More settings		~
	91H2006690 Superseded	INJECTOR ASSY,FUEL		EA	1				
2.	92A0103700	"FAN		EA	1				
e v	8600-005-6	CIRCUIT BREAKER, TRIP FREE PUSH-PULL, 5 AMP (3841CB002)		EA	1				
	16A2212000 Superseded	ECU,T/M 8-9T 3SP		EA	1				
									/
web.44.tst.oneilinc.	net/picklist					1/1			Print Cancel

Figure 9-116. Print Preview Page

NOTE: Printing on portable devices is not currently supported.



E-mailing a Pick List

To E-mail a Pick List

Users can e-mail a pick list to themselves or others from the pick list page. The pick list will appear in the body of the e-mail and also as a .csv file attachment.

1. Click on the shopping cart icon at the upper right of the browser.

Announcements (2)	Help	Support	→ ₽
Figure 9	-117. Sho	opping Cart Icon	

2. Select the desired pick list using the drop down list.



Figure 9-118. Select Pick List

3. Click on View Pick List to open the pick list page.

Title:	Pick Li	st 2				
Description	(option	al)				
Pick List	Pick	ist 2	~			
		Same Same Ad	s Create New Prink Emails Export	Californi	Ue	8010
	Part Number	Part Description	Note	UOM	Quantity	
	Part Number 18143	Part Description 112/212 COMPUTER	Note	UOM EA	Quantity	×
	Part Number 18143 18094	Part Description 112/212 COMPUTER SCREW PHILLIPS HD M5*10L	Note	UOM EA EA	Quantity 1 4	× ×

Figure 9-119. Pick List Page

4. Click on the **E-mail** button on the pick list page.

Save	Save As	Create New	Print	Email	Export	Cancel	Delete		
	Figure 9-120. E-Mail Button								

5. The Send Pick List window will open.

		Send Pick List	×
		Email Address	
		joe.user@oneil.com	
		Message: (optional)	
		1000 characters may	//
		Send	Cancel
		Figure 9-121. Send Pick List Window	
6.	Enter a va	alid e-mail address and optional message.	
		Send Pick List	×

Email Address	
sally.user@abc-company.com	
Message: (optional)	
Hello Sally, Here's the pick list we discussed. Regards, Joe	
1000 characters max	
	Send Cancel

Figure 9-122. Enter E-Mail and Optional Message

NOTE:

- a. Only one e-mail address can be entered.
- b. Be careful not to hit the Enter key instead of the Send button while in the middle of composing your message as doing so will send the pick list to the e-mail recipient immediately.



- 7. Click on the **Send** button when ready.
- 8. A confirmation pop-up message will display on the screen and an e-mail with the pick list file attached will be sent to the e-mail address entered.



Figure 9-123. Confirmation Message

9. The attached pick list will contain the line items without images.

(TST) Picklist from ONeSOURCE Client		75		
ONeSOURCE <noreply@oneil.com></noreply@oneil.com>	S Reply	% Reply All	-> Forward	
To Subject Sub		<u>^</u>	Sun 5/8/2022	9:50 AM
pick-list-2-20220508.csv v 550 bytes				

Hello Joe, Here's the pick list we discussed. Regards, Mike

Pick List 2

Part No.	Part Description	Notes	UOM	Quantity
1800	BOLT BUTTON HEAD ALLEN M8*1.25*16L CR		EA	15
18094	SCREW PHILLIPS HD M5*10L		EA	4
18143	112/212 COMPUTER		EA	1

Figure 9-124. Pick List E-Mail

Exporting a Pick List

To Export a Pick List

NOTE: Pick lists may be exported to Microsoft Excel only.

1. Go to the desired Pick List page.



PARTS VIEWER

2. Click on the **Export** button on the pick list page.



Figure 9-125. Export Button

3. The download will begin immediately and display in the bottom left corner of the browser.



Figure 9-126. Downloaded File

4. Use the up arrow to the right of the exported pick list to reveal display options.

	Open Always open files of this type
	Show in folder
	Cancel
pick-list-1-202202csv	~

Figure 9-127. Display Options

5. Exported pick lists may also be found in the Downloads folder of the user's local machine.





6. Here is what an exported version of the pick list above looks like in an Excel spreadsheet.

Figure 9-128. Pick List Output

Deleting a Pick List

NOTE:

- a. Once a pick list has been deleted, it cannot be recovered. Users can only delete a pick list when more than one pick list is available. The system keeps one of the remaining pick lists as the default.
- b. Pick lists can only be deleted from the pick list page.
- 1. Click on the shopping cart icon in the upper right of the browser. The pick list quick view will open.

Q	7 3			
	Pick Li	ist 1	~	Ð
		View Pick List		
	2.	"FAN	Qty: 1	×
	<u> </u>	92A0103700	UOM: EA	
		CIRCUIT BREAKER, TRIP FREE PUSH- PULL, 5 AMP (3841CB002)	Qty: 1	
		8600-005-6	UOM: EA	
		ECU,T/M 8-9T 3SP	Qty: 1	×
		16A2212000	UOM: EA	

Figure 9-129. Pick List Quick View

2. Select the desired pick list, using the drop-down list if needed.



3. Click on View Pick List to open the pick list page.

Home Pick	List					
Title:	Pick List 1					
Description:	Parts for Y	silanti Plant				
Pick List:	Pick List '	~				
		Save Save As Create New	Print Email Export	Cancel	Delete	
	Part Number	Part Description	Note	UOM	Quantity	
Real Providence	92A0103700	"FAN MOTOR"		EA	1	×
8	92A0103700 8600-005-6	"FAN MOTOR"		EA EA	1	×
	92A0103700 8600-005-6 16A2212000 Superseded	"FAN MOTOR" CIRCUIT BREAKER, TRIP FREE PUSH-PULL, 5 AMP (3841CB002) ECU,T/M 8-9T 3SP		EA EA	1	× × ×

Figure 9-130. Pick List Page

4. Click on the **Delete** button on the pick list page:

Save Save As	Create New	Print	Email	Export	Cancel	Delete

Figure 9-131. Delete Button

5. A pop-up window will open.

Confirm Delete	×
This action will remove this Pick List and all its contents and cannot be undone. Are you sure?	
Yes No	

Figure 9-132. Delete Pop-Up Window

6. Click Yes to delete the pick list. When it has been deleted, the next available pick list page will display in its place.

.

Knowledge Models & Diagnostic Troubleshooting Publications

How to Use a Knowledge Model

Knowledge Model sources appear with the following content type thumbnail image.





Knowledge Model publications will appear under Diagnostic and Troubleshooting sources as shown below.



Figure 10-2. Diagnostic and Troubleshooting Sources

1. Select the desired Knowledge Model publication.



2. The Knowledge Model opens and the troubleshooting process begins.

Causes Backup Audible Alarm Will Not Sound	
The following items have been identified as suspected ca for this symptom:	uses
Filter by Condition: All	
Faulty 10-amp fuse F020.	Ø
Condition: Undetermined	
Faulty backup alarm	Ø
Condition: Undetermined	
Faulty ground circuit	Ø
Condition: Undetermined	
faulty wire 822	Ø
Condition: Undetermined	
No power on circuit	Ø
Condition: Undetermined	0600

Figure 10-3. Knowledge Model Session

NOTE: Prior to starting the Knowledge Model session, all conditions for the causes are shown as Undetermined. Once you start going through the Knowledge Model steps, these conditions will change to Believed Bad or Believed Good, based on the answer the user provided.

3. Use the Find within search field at the top right of the page to search for data within the Knowledge Model.

Q Find within Bicycle Knowledge Mo...

Figure 10-4. Find Within



KNOWLEDGE MODELS & DIAGNOSTIC TROUBLESHOOTING PUBLICATIONS

4. Perform each test when prompted and select your result.



Figure 10-5. Sample Test Question

5. Click on the **Back** button at the bottom right of the page to return to a prior step. Click on the **End** button to end your Knowledge Model session.





6. As you progress through the Knowledge Model, the condition status will update for each suspected cause in the list based on your responses.



Figure 10-7. Updated Condition Status



7. Use the **Filter by Condition** drop-down menu to filter the list of suspected causes.

Ō	Causes Attachment Hub leaking			
	The following items had for this symptom:	ave been identifie	d as suspected causes	
	Filter by Condition:	Undetermined V		
6	(A200) Lubrica	Good Bad Undetermined	Lubrication ©	

Figure 10-8. Filter by Condition Drop-Down

8. Once a cause has been identified, perform the action requested and click on the **Complete** button.

Complete	\bigcirc
----------	------------

Figure 10-9. Complete Button

9. When there are no more tests/questions to answer, and the issue has been resolved, a confirmation pop-up message will be displayed.



Figure 10-10. Confirmation Pop-Up Message

KNOWLEDGE MODELS & DIAGNOSTIC TROUBLESHOOTING PUBLICATIONS

How to Use a Diagnostic Troubleshooting Publication

Diagnostic Troubleshooting sources appear with the following content type thumbnail image.



Figure 10-11. Diagnostic Troubleshooting Thumbnail Image

They will appear under Diagnostic and Troubleshooting sources as shown below.



Figure 10-12. Diagnostic and Troubleshooting Sources

- 1. Select the Diagnostic Troubleshooting publication.
- 2. Select one of the diagnostic troubleshooting codes.



KNOWLEDGE MODELS & DIAGNOSTIC TROUBLESHOOTING PUBLICATIONS

	Contents DIAGNOSTIC TROUBLESHOOTING - DTC
	✓ ELECTRICAL SYSTEMS 1
	9024a 🔶
	9041
	12812
•	13056
	13057



3. The viewer displays a list of possible causes and starts the session.

	Causes 9024a The following items have been identified as suspected causes for this symptom: Filter by Condition: All Cable terminal Condition: Undetermined	Re-Key DTC Operational Check (WP/CB) a. Power off the truck b. Wait 60 seconds c. Power on the truck d. Verify if Diagnostics Troubleshooting Code is still present.
¢^	Intermittent fault @ Condition: Undetermined Phase Cable Condition: Undetermined	Intermittent fault
		Is the code still present? Yes No, fault may be intermittent.

Figure 10-14. Possible Causes

NOTE: Prior to starting the diagnostic troubleshooting session, all of the conditions for the causes are shown as Undetermined. Once you start going through the diagnostic troubleshooting steps, these conditions will change to Believed Bad or Believed Good, based on the answers the user provides.

4. Use the Find within search field at the top right of the page to search for data within the Diagnostic Troubleshooting source.



Figure 10-15. Find Within

5. Perform each test when prompted and select a response.

Is the code still present?			
Yes	٢	No, fault may be intermittent.	9

Figure 10-16. Select a Response

6. Click on the **Back** button at the bottom right of the page to return to the prior step. Click on the **End** button to end the troubleshooting session.

۲
0

Figure 10-17. Back and End Buttons

7. As you progress through the session, the condition status will update for each suspected cause in the list based on your results.



KNOWLEDGE MODELS & DIAGNOSTIC TROUBLESHOOTING PUBLICATIONS



Figure 10-18. Updated Condition Status

8. Use the **Filter by Condition** drop-down menu to filter the list of suspected causes.

Filter by Condition:	All 🗸
	All
Cable termina	Good
easie termina	Bad
Condition: Believe	Undetermined

Figure 10-19. Filter by Condition Drop-Down Menu

9. Once a cause has been identified, perform the action requested and click on the **Complete** button.



Figure 10-20. Complete Button



10. When there are no more tests to perform/questions to answer, and the issue has been resolved, a confirmation pop-up message will display.



Figure 10-21. Confirmation Pop-Up Message

Saving a Session to Resume Later

Users can suspend a session and resume it later.

To End and Save a Session

- 1. Open and run a knowledge model or diagnostic troubleshooting session. Refer to How to Use a Knowledge Model or How to Use a Diagnostic Troubleshooting Publication for assistance in starting a session.
- 2. Click on the **End** button.

Back	۲
End	0

Figure 10-22. End Button

3. A confirmation pop-up message displays.







- 4. Click on the **Yes** button.
- 5. Enter an optional description for your knowledge model session and click on the **Save** button.

Troubleshooting Session - Attachment Hub leaking			
Properties Suspected Causes	Log		
Name:	Attachment Hub leaking]	
Description:			
Date/Time Last Accessed:	3/1/2018 5:01 PM		
Status:	In Progress		
Remove	Resume Save Cance	ł	

Figure 10-24. Enter an Optional Description

6. The session will be saved to the log and can be resumed at a later time.

Resuming a Saved Session

If a session has been saved before it could be completed, it can be resumed by performing the following steps:

1. Open the knowledge model or diagnostic troubleshooting source.

KNOWLEDGE MODELS & DIAGNOSTIC TROUBLESHOOTING PUBLICATIONS



LM-20180613 Lawn Mower Guide

Figure 10-25. Select Source

2. Select the symptom you worked on previously.



Figure 10-26. Select Symptom

3. Click on the Sessions icon.



KNOWLEDGE MODELS & DIAGNOSTIC TROUBLESHOOTING PUBLICATIONS



Figure 10-27. Select Sessions Icon
4. A list of sessions will display.

Ō	Sessions
	Below is a list of your troubleshooting sessions for Troubleshooting Guide - KM:
	Engine Hard To Start Last Accessed: 7/14/2022 10:16 AM Status: In Progress
	Engine Hard To Start Last Accessed: 7/14/2022 9:59 AM Status: Suspended
	Cutting Not Accurate Last Accessed: 7/13/2022 11:39 AM Status: Completed

Figure 10-28. List of Previous Sessions

5. Find the session you would like to resume.



6. Click on the Play button (right arrow).

Sessions
Below is a list of your troubleshooting sessions for Troubleshooting Guide - KM:
Engine Hard To Start
Last Accessed: 7/14/2022 10:16 AM
Status: In Progress
Engine Hard To Start
Last Accessed: 7/14/2022 9:59 AM
Status: Suspended
Cutting Not Accurate
Last Accessed: 7/13/2022 11:39 AM
Status: Completed

Figure 10-29. Click the Play Button to Resume Session

NOTE: To end the session, click on the Stop button (square); to remove the session, click on the X button.

7. The troubleshooting session will resume where you left off.



Figure 10-30. Session is Resumed

8. Alternately, you can open the session details by clicking inside the session card or box for the desired session.



٢	Sessions	
	Below is a list of your troubleshooting sessions for Troubleshooting Guide - KM:	
0 63	Engine Hard To Start Last Accessed: 7/14/2022 10:16 AM Status: In Progress	
2	Engine Hard To Start Last Accessed: 7/14/2022 9:59 AM Status: Suspended Click in here to op screen	on session details
	Cutting Not Accurate Last Accessed: 7/13/2022 11:39 AM Status: Completed	

Figure 10-31. List of Previous Sessions

The session details window will open. 9.

Troubleshooting Session	- Engine Hard To Start ×
Properties Causes Lo	og
Name:	Engine Hard To Start
Description:	Description of the session (optional)
Date/Time Last Accessed:	7/14/2022 9:59 AM
Status:	In Progress

Figure 10-32. Session Details

NOTE: To remove the session, click on the **Remove** button.



10. Click on the **Resume** button to continue the troubleshooting session.

roubleshooting Session	- Engine Hard To Start
Properties Causes Lo	bg
Name:	Engine Hard To Start
Description:	Description of the session (optional)
Date/Time Last Accessed:	7/14/2022 9:59 AM
Status:	In Progress

Figure 10-33. Resume Button

Viewing Session History

The ONeSOURCE Client keeps a record of a user's individual troubleshooting sessions. These can be accessed via the sessions icon where users can review the details of a session such as the name of the knowledge model or DTC, the date and time of the session, the suspected causes for the symptom, and a list of the actions performed during the session.

To look at a session's history

1. Open a previously run knowledge model source by clicking on a symptom or DTC.





Figure 10-34. Select a Knowledge Model

2. Click on the sessions icon from the icon bar on the left side of page.



Figure 10-35. Sessions Icon

3. A list of past sessions will display in the left pane.

۲	Sessions
	Below is a list of your troubleshooting sessions for Troubleshooting Guide - KM:
	Engine Hard To Start Last Accessed: 8/24/2022 8:17 AM Status: In Progress Engine Hard To Start Last Accessed: 7/14/2022 9:59 AM Status: Suspended
	×
	Cutting Not Accurate
	Last Accessed: 7/13/2022 11:39 AM Status: Completed
	Cutting Not Accurate
	Last Accessed: 6/21/2022 12:02 PM

Figure 10-36. List of Previous Sessions

4. Select the desired session by clicking in the session card or box.



5. A pop-up window will open displaying three tabs: Properties, Causes, and Log.

Troubleshoo	Troubleshooting Session - Engine Hard To Start					
Properties	Causes Log					
Name:		Engine Hard To Start				
Description:		Description of the session (optional)				
Date/Time La	st Accessed:	7/14/2022 9:59 AM				
Status:		Suspended				
		•				
Remove		Resume Save Cancel				

Figure 10-37. Properties Tab

6. Users can edit two fields on the Properties tab: Name and Description. Edit as needed and click the **Save** button to save any changes.

Troubleshooting Session	- Engine Hard To Start
Properties Causes L	og
Name:	Engine Hard To Start
Description:	Description of the session (optional)
Date/Time Last Accessed:	7/14/2022 9:59 AM
Status:	Suspended
Remove	Resume Save Cancel





7. The Causes tab lists the suspected causes. A scroll bar is provided if there are more causes than can fit within the window.

roubleshooting Session - Engine Hard To Start							
roperties	Causes	Log					
he following) have been i	dentified as	s suspected causes	for this sympto	m:		
Belt is ti	ight and i	n good (condition				
		hoo					
Condition	: Believed G	000					1
Condition: Voltage	is presen	t				Ø] I
Condition: Voltage Condition:	is presen	t ood				٢]
Condition: Voltage Condition: Battery	is presen Believed G Believed G voltage is	t ^{ood}	t			Ø]
Condition: Voltage Condition: Battery Condition:	is presen is presen : Believed G voltage is : Undetermin	t ood s presen	t			Ø	

Figure 10-39. Causes Tab

8. The Log tab lists the actions taken during the sesson. A scroll bar is provided if there are more actions than can fit within the window.

Properties Causes Log		
Below is a list of all actions taken during this tr	oubleshooting session.	
7/13/2022 2:12 PM		ור
Engine Hard To Start Verify Que	stion	
When asked: Does the engine start?		
When asked: Does the engine start? You selected: No		
When asked: Does the engine start? You selected: No 7/13/2022 2:12 PM		
When asked: Does the engine start? You selected: No 7/13/2022 2:12 PM Checking the Battery Test]
When asked: Does the engine start? You selected: No 7/13/2022 2:12 PM Checking the Battery Test When asked: Is the charge on the battery I	less than 12v?.	

Figure 10-40. Log Tab



Reordering of Process Flows Based on Past Responses

When a user runs through a symptom a few times and a specific process flow is the solution, the next time the user starts a session for the same symptom, the system will reorder the process flows so that the solution arrived at in the previous session is presented first. To represent this visually, if the Knowledge Model is initially structured like this:

- Symptom 1
 - Process Flow 1
 - Step A
 - Step B
 - Step C
 - Process Flow 2
 - Step D
 - Step E
 - Process Flow 3
 - Step F
 - Step G

When the user runs through Symptom 1 a few times and the solution is reached at Process Flow 3, the next time they start a session on this symptom (Symptom 1), it will reorder the process flows so that Process Flow 3 will be first, followed by Process Flows 1 and 2, like this:

- Symptom 1
 - Process Flow 3
 - Step F
 - Step G
 - Process Flow 1
 - Step A
 - Step B
 - Step C
 - Process Flow 2
 - Step D
 - Step E

Users need to be aware that this can happen when using knowledge models. The number of times a user has to provide the same answers to the questions before the system reorders the process flows varies by symptom, but it is usually after three to four sessions. The intent of the reordering is to save users time while troubleshooting by looking at previous sessions and presenting what has been the most likely solution first.

By doing this, however, the other process flows originally at the beginning are no longer displayed when the user starts another session on the same symptom. This reordering will be permanent and the only way to view the original process flows is to select another product that contains the same Knowledge Model, or, if the user is running the installed Client, to uninstall and reinstall the ONeSOURCE Client as well as the affected dataset.



Schematics Viewer

How to View Interactive Schematics

To help users navigate within a schematic, a toolbar is available that contains several icons to perform different actions.

When the ONeSOURCE Client is displaying a schematic, the toolbar will display in the list of icons on the left. Display of the toolbar can be toggled on and off by clicking on it.



Figure 11-1. Schematics Toolbar is Off



Figure 11-2. Schematics Toolbar Toggle is On



When toolbar is on, it will display at the top left of the schematic.



Figure 11-3. Schematic Toolbar

Table 11-1. Legend to Icons

lcon	Function
Гя	Toggle between small and larger toolbar icons
ж м	Best fit (also shift + b)
1	Fit width (also shift + w)
1	Fit height (also shift + h)
Ð	Zoom in (also scroll mouse wheel up)
đ	Zoom out (also scroll mouse wheel down)
q	Zoom selection (also ctrl + left mouse button and drag)
4	Pan (also shift + left mouse button)
	Select circuits
	Show/hide unselected circuits
ŧ	Go to previous diagram
1	Go to next diagram

NOTE:

- a. Toolbar buttons may vary depending on customer configuration.
- b. When the schematic is fully zoomed, users can scroll left/right or up/down by using the shift key and moving the mouse wheel.



Viewing Circuits

Users can view circuit information for the schematic they are viewing by clicking on the circuit's icon.

To Display Circuit Information

1. Select a schematic publication.



Figure 11-4. Schematic Publication

- 2. Select a schematic by clicking on the card in the contents list or the corresponding diagram.
- 3. Click on the circuits icon to open the circuits pane.



Figure 11-5. Circuits Pane

NOTE: The Circuits pane is initially blank until a circuit is selected in the schematic.



4. Select a circuit to highlight it (circuit will change color). The circuit is added to the circuits pane.



Figure 11-6. Circuits Pane After Selecting a Circuit

5. Select another circuit. The circuit will be added to the Circuits pane.

	Hor	ne WEB HELP	DOC	Wright Flyer - SCHEM						
딦	•	10	Cir Power D	Cuits Distribution			11 POWER DISTR	I 10 RIBUTION		9
	↓ (▲ (↓)	Circuit 7 Circuit 13 Type: DC Other Diagrams Components	Power E	Vistribution	•	G F E D			2403 2403 1103 2402	
								U104 1 2 3 4 5 P104 1 2 3 4 5		MOTOR

Figure 11-7. Circuits Pane (Continued)

6. To change the color of the selected circuit, click on the paint icon.





7. Select a color from the Change Circuit Color palette.



Figure 11-9. Change Circuit Color



8. The circuit color is changed.



Figure 11-10. Circuit Color Change

9. To rename a circuit, click on the pencil icon.

	Home Wright Flyer - SCHEM	
딦	Circuits Flight Controls	
	Circuit 7	0
	Type: DC	-
	 Other Diagrams Components 	
2		

Figure 11-11. Pencil Icon

10. Enter the new circuit name and click the **Save** button.



Figure 11-12. Rename Circuit

11. The circuit name is changed.



Figure 11-13. Circuit is Renamed

12. Click the arrows next to Other Diagrams and Components to expand their contents.



딦	•	Power Distribution	
*	Þ	Circuit 7	0
B	4	DC Power	0
		Type: DC	
		Other Diagrams Flight Controls	
2		Components 2706	_

Figure 11-14. Other Diagrams and Components

13. Like the schematic's toolbar, the circuits pane can be toggled on or off by clicking on the circuits icon on the left. Toggling the circuits pane off may be desirable when viewing the schematic on a portable device where screen space is limited. The system will remember the setting to hide or display the circuits pane until the user clicks the circuits icon again to change it.

	Home Wright Flyer - SCHEM					
_			11	10	9	8
ᇤ	Circui	ts	POWER DISTR	IBUTION		
_	Power Distr	bution				
ŝ.	Circuit 7	G				
P	Circuit 15	•				
_	Type: DC					
		Circuits icon is highlighted,				
	Other Diagrams	indicating Circuits pane displ	ay is			
	 Components 	on. Click the icon to turn Cin	cuits			
	Components	pane off				
£			-			
		E				
			850	24A3-1	2400 U103 P103	
						r
			1 L	–⊐' ^∿		î
				2403	_2402	
				(A)		
		-	BODY			
				- NST/		
		_			24A3 MOTOR	
				P104		

Figure 11-15. Circuits Pane - On



Figure 11-16. Circuits Pane - Off



Viewing Components

Users can view components for the schematic they are viewing by clicking on the components icon.

To Display Components

1. Select a schematic publication.



Figure 11-17. Select Schematic Publication

- 2. Select a schematic by clicking on the card in the contents list or the corresponding diagram.
- 3. Click on the components icon to open the components pane.



Figure 11-18. Components Icon

4. Expand an entry in the **Components** tree by clicking on a component type (e.g., Circuit Breakers, Component, Connectors, etc.).



Figure 11-19. Components Tree

5. You may also use the **Filter by type** drop-down menu to filter the list of components.



Figure 11-20. Filter by Type Drop-Down

	Home	Wright Flyer - SCHE	EM	
T	€≡٩	Comp Power D	onents Distribution	
\$.	Filter by type	e: Connectors v	~	
6	▷ Connec	tors		
ć				

Figure 11-21. Filter Selected

6. Click on a component to locate it on the schematic. A red ring will display momentarily around the component so it can be readily identified on the schematic.



Figure 11-22. Select a Component

7. For most all of the component types, there are icons for adding notes or sending feedback.





8. Like the schematics toolbar, the Components pane can be toggled on or off by clicking the Components icon on the left. Toggling the Components pane off may be desirable when viewing a schematic on a portable device where screen space is limited. The system will remember the setting to hide or display the Components pane until the user clicks the Components icon again to change it.



Figure 11-24. Components Pane Toggle - On





Figure 11-25. Components Toggle - Off

Commonly Used Icons

Commonly Used Icons

There are several icons that appear in several places throughout the ONeSOURCE Client and across all content types:

Table 12-1.

6	Contents
0	Details
9	Feedback
	Note

These icons help users access the content they want to see, and perform tasks like adding notes or submitting feedback.

Contents Icon

The Contents icon appears on the left pane and is available for all content types.



Figure 12-1. Contents Icon



Using the sample parts list below, the initial view is the parts list and parts illustration (the Contents icon is not filled in):



Figure 12-2. Contents Icon (Inactive) - Full Parts List Displayed

1. Clicking on the Contents icon displays the contents of the parts publication (the Contents icon is filled in):

	Contents Wright Flyer Industries-PM	No.2009. ANTIO, NAMEN THE FAMILY DAMAGENER, MILLS FOR THE AREA
Y B	> CHASSIS	
	> DRIVE	
	> ENGINE	Second Se
2	STEERING List of contents; each entry is a parts list; active parts list appears	SEAT ILLUSTRATION AND ASS 🔁 🚍 🗲
	✓ SEAT is highlighted	
	SEAT ILLUSTRATION AND ASSOCIATED PARTS	
	> DECALS	
	> WHEELS AND TIRES	

Figure 12-3. Contents Icon (Active) - List of Publication Contents Displayed

2. Click on the Contents icon again. The list of contents is now hidden, showing only the thumbnail image of the parts diagram:



Figure 12-4. Contents Icon (Inactive) - Parts Illustration Displayed Only

3. Click on the Contents icon. The list of contents is displayed.

Details Icon

The Details icon, like the Notes and Feedback icons, appears in several places throughout the Client and across all content types. The details that are displayed vary depending on the location of the details icon within the Client.

		Details - Demo Model 123-PM	×
Demo Model 123-PM LAWN TRACTOR Pouln PB195H42LT	Home Contents Demo Model 123-PM Chassis Schematic Electrical Drive	Title 1: Demo Model Title 2: LAVN TRAC ID 1: Pouln PB195 ID 2: Lawn Tractor System: 00-NON-DEF System: 00-NOn-Defin System: T-Two Digit Brand: ONEIL Serial Number Range: HLP0001-HL	123-PM TOR H42LT INED ONE SYSTEM CODES ed Group Codes for Legacy ONEIL Systems and Group Codes P1000
	Engine Steering	BIC2000 Ops	Lawn Mower B. D.

Figure 12-5. Table of Contents Overlay - Parts Manual Level

NOTE: If you have extended applicability assigned for the parts list (as part of your customer configuration), then it will show up in the Details pop-up. In the screenshot above, System and Subsystem are extended applicabilities. The specific details shown will vary based on the customer.





Figure 12-6. Individual Parts List Thumbnail Images



Figure 12-7. Individual Parts Lists



Figure 12-8. Line Item Flyouts

Notes Icon

The Notes icon, like the Details and Feedback icons, appears in several places throughout the Client and across all content types.

1. TOC Overlay

	Contents Troubleshooting Guide - KM	The second second
	Cutting Not Accurate	
Troubleshooting	Engine Hard To Start	
Guide - KM	Park brake does not release	
LM-20180613 Lawn Mower Guide		Cutting Not Accurate

Figure 12-9. TOC Overlay

2. Contents Pane

Causes Park brake does not release The following items have been identified as suspect for this symptom:	cted causes	Check for DTC trouble code a. Using diagnostic service w	ith WA
10-amp fuse F003. Condition: Undetermined	ø		
5-amp Fuse F014 Condition: Undetermined	Ø		

Figure 12-10. Contents Pane



×

3. Flyout for Each Line Item

Parts List Rear Bumper Options				23	
ASY 10" RR G/S BMP W/REC (SPECIFY UNI		0	Details	click the information badge (i) to open the line item	//
PN: 01902305-Width	Qty:1		Notes	flyout	
2 BUMPER 10"G/STRUT SHOCK MTG (SPECIE SIZE)					
PN: 01903014-Width	Qty:1				
3 WASHER RIBBON (SPECIFY LENGTH)	0				
PN: 06917212-Length	Qty:1				
4 BUMPER RUBBER D 2" × 12"	0		0	//	1
PN: 1102890	Qty:1		Save		1
5 BRKT BUMPER MNT W/SHOCK ABSORBER	0	Ξ	Feedb	ack	1

Figure 12-11. Flyout for Each Line Item

To Add a Note

1. Click on the note icon for the desired item of content.

Edit Notes - Rear Bumper Options

2. A blank pop-up window will open.

lotos:				
iotes:				
			Save	Cance

Figure 12-12. Notes Window

3. Enter the note. You can resize the notes window according to preference by dragging the mouse on the lower right corner of the window.

Notes:	
	Click and drag with left mouse button to desired size
	K

Figure 12-13. Resizing the Window (optional)

- 4. Click on the **Save** button when finished.
- 5. The Notes window will close and the Notes icon will change to green to indicate a note is available.



Figure 12-14. Active Note Indicator

NOTE: The tooltip text will change from Add Note to View Note when the user hovers the mouse over the Note icon.



Feedback Icon

The Feedback icon, like the Details and Notes icons, appears in several places throughout the Client and across all content types.

1. On the TOC Overlay

	Contents Wright Flyer - SCHEM	anama (s), altrast
-ee-	Power Distribution	
Wright Flyer - SCHEM	Flight Controls	
A modern take on an old classic	Lights and Communication	
WrightFlyer		Power Distribution 🔅 🗐 🧧
		Demo Parts Lis
		Lights and Communication 🛛 🤁 🗖

Figure 12-15. TOC Overlay

NOTE: In the screenshot above, there are feedback icons at the publication level (Wright Flyer - SCHEM) shown in the list of contents, as well as at the chapter or section level (individual schematic sheets like Power Distribution, Lights and Communication, etc.).

2. On the Components Pane for Schematic Publications







NOTE: In the screenshot above, there are feedback icons at the Schematic sheet level (Power Distribution) and at the component level (e.g., DC Converter).

3. On Line Item Flyouts for Parts Lists



Figure 12-17. Line Item Flyout

NOTE: In the screenshot above, there are feedback icons at the parts list level (BIC2000 IPC) as well as the line item level (by clicking the information badge).

Users should use the feedback icon closest to the item in the viewer they want to submit feedback on. For example, if there is an issue with a specific line item in a parts list, use the feedback icon for that line item instead of the feedback icon applicable to the whole parts list.

To Submit a Feedback

1. Click on a feedback icon. In this example, an issue was found with a specific line item in a parts list.







2. Click on the information icon for the line item to open the flyout and select the Feedback tab.



Figure 12-19. Line Item Flyout - Feedback Tab

3. Select an issue type from the drop-down list.



Figure 12-20. Feedback - Issue Type Drop-Down

4. Enter a brief description (required).



Figure 12-21. Short Description Window

5. Add a detailed description.

Click and drag this corner to resize window if desired

Detailed Description:

Use this feedback form to report issues on product content. Please be as specific as possible when describing the issue such as the truck, source or manual name, and in the case of missing data, details on what is missing.

Figure 12-22. Feedback - Detailed Description Window

- 6. Click on the **Submit** button to send the feedback to the support team.
- 7. Click on the information badge again to close the line item flyout.



Announcements and Alerts

Announcements

Announcements are stored under the **Announcements** tab on the ribbon across the top of the Client. Unread announcements are indicated by a badge or bubble that appears beside the announcements tab.

		Announcements 1	Help	Support
--	--	-----------------	------	---------

Figure 13-1. Announcements Tab

NOTE: The number of unread announcements will be displayed inside the badge or bubble.

1. Click on the Announcements tab to display all announcements.

Announcements

Microsoft has announced it will end support for Internet Explorer 11 (IE11) web browser on August, 17, 2021. To maintain the best user experience and ensure maximum security, all users running IE11 should update to the latest version of a supported web browser before that date.	
The End-of-Support Date is the last date that application will be enhanced, tested, and standard support services will be provided for use with the IE11 browser. We will continue to enhance and support our applications for current versions of supported web browsers, including Microsoft Edge and Google Chrome.	
In sem justo, commodo ut, suscipit at, pharetra vitae, orci. Duis sapien nunc, commodo et, interdum suscipit, sollicitudin et, dolor. Pellentesque habitant morbi tristique senectus et netus et malesuada fames ac turpis egestas. Aliquam id dolor. Class aptent tacif sociosqu ad litora torquent per conubia nostra, per inceptos hymenaeos. Mauris dictum facilisis augue. Fusce tellus. Pellentesque arcu. Maceenas fermentum, sem in pharetra pellentesque, velit turpis volutpat ante, in pharetra metus odio a lectus. Sed elit dui, pellentesque a, faucibus vel, interdum nec, diam. Mauris dolor felis, sagittis at, luctus sed, aliquam non, tellus. Etiam ligula pede, sagittis quis, interdum ultricies, scelerisque eu, uma. Nullam at arcu a est sollicitudin euismod. Praesent dapibus. Duis bibendum, lectus ut viverra rhoncus, dolor nunc faucibus libero, eget facilisis enim ipsum id lacus. Nam sed tellus id magna elementum tincidunt.	1
Etiam posuere quam ac quam. Maecenas aliquet accumsan leo. Nullam dapibus fermentum ipsum. Etiam quis quam. Integer lacinia. Nulla est. Nulla turpis magna, cursu sit amet, suscipit a, interdum id, felis. Integer vulputate sem a nibh rutrum consequat. Maecenas lorem. Pellentesque pretium lectus id turpis. Etiam sapien elit, consequat eget, tristique non, venenatis quis, ante. Fusce wisi. Phasellus faucibus molestie nisi. Fusce eget urna. Curabitur vitae diam non enim vestibulum interdum. Nulla quis diam. Ut tempus purus at lorem.	s

Figure 13-2. Displayed Announcements

2. Once the announcements are opened, the badge beside the Announcements tab will disappear.






3. If the announcement requires an acknowledgement, the announcement will display as soon as the user logs onto the Client. They will then need to click on the **Acknowledge** button before doing anything else.



Figure 13-4. Acknowledge Button

4. Once the announcement is acknowledged, it will disappear but will still be accessible on the Announcements tab.



Announcement Management

Administrators should refer to Managing Announcements for managing announcements.

Alerts



Figure 13-5. Alerts Tab

The Alerts tab was designed for users of the installed version of the ONeSOURCE Client to alert them to updates for their installed datasets. Users of the web version of the Client will not see the Alerts tab.

When there is a counter inside the Alerts badge or bubble, that means there are alerts available. To read the alerts, hover the mouse over the word Alerts. The alert should display in a pop-up window.



Figure 13-6. Alerts

Click on the View Updates link to go to the Configuration page and apply the updates.

User Profile

User Profile - Introduction

Users of the installed Client will see the Profile tab on the ribbon across the top.



Figure 14-1. User Profile - Installed Client

Users can select the language of the User Interface (UI) from here.

Home Pi	rofile	
Profile		
	Language:	· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·
	* All fields are requ	ired English
		Deutsch Español
		Français Français (Canada)
		Italiano Nederlands
		Português 日本

Figure 14-2. Select Language

NOTE: The list of languages displayed in the Language drop-down list is determined by user configuration. The list shown above lists all of the languages currently available.

Users of the web-based Client can find their profile by hovering the mouse over their username on the far right of the ribbon at the top of the page and clicking on the **Profile** button.

Announcements 1	Help	Support					, ,	joe.u	user	Î.
							Prof	ile		
			Search for Products or Parts	Filter	~	Q	Log	out		
			-							

Figure 14-3. User Profile - Web-Based Client



The Profile on the web-based Client has several fields the user may edit.

First Name:	Joe	
Last Name:	User	
Company Name:	ABC Company	
Email:	joe.user@oneil.com	
Phone Number:	1-937-555-1212	
Language:	English	~
* All fields are required		Save
		Cancel

Figure 14-4. Profile Screen

Managing Your Profile

To Edit Profile Information:

1. Click on the **Profile** button in the drop-down under the user name.

Announcements	Help	Support					۴	Guest
						\rightarrow	Profile	
			Search for Products or Parts	Filter	~ Q		<u>Log in</u>	

Figure 14-5. Profile Button

2. The Profile page displays.

Home Profile Profile		
	First Name:	John
	Last Name:	Smith
	Company Name:	Your Company
	Email:	john.smith@company.com
	Phone Number:	123456789
	Language:	English
	* All fields are required	Save
		Cancel





3. Edit any fields as needed.

NOTE: Please note that all fields are required. If any field is not filled, the system will not save any changes to the profile.

4. Click the **Save** button to save your edits.



Help

Help

Click on the Help tab on the ribbon that displays across the top of the ONeSOURCE Client to open a PDF of the Help document. Based on the language the user selected in the user's Profile, the Help document should display in the language they selected.



Figure 15-1. Help Tab





Figure 15-2. Help Document PDF



Table of Contents

Introduction	1
For Installation Help Purpose and Scope Customer Configuration	1 1 1
What's New	2
Change History	235
Home Page - Key Features	6
Introduction	5 7 7 8 9
Main Search Window10)
Entering a Search. 10 Selecting a Previous Search. 12 Selecting a Search Suggestion. 14 Selecting a Search Filter Before Running a Search. 15 Using the Serial Number Search Filter. 16 Search Results Limit. 16) 3 4 5 3 9
Browsing Content)
Browsing Products	2 3
Content Families	5
Narrative Publications. 25 Parts Publications. 27 Knowledge Model and Diagnostic Troubleshooting Publications. 26 Interactive Schematics. 37 Content Families and Sub-Types. 33	5 7 9 1 3
Narrative Publications	6
Operating and Service Publications Viewer	6

Figure 15-3. Help Document TOC (Excerpt)

Refer to User Profile - Introduction for more details on setting the default language.

Support Page (Feedback)

Support Page

The Support tab that appears at the top of the ONeSOURCE Client is another avenue for users to submit feedback to the support team.



Figure 16-1. Support Page Link

While the other feedback icons are appropriate for sending feedback on specific items of content at the publication or lower level, users can use the Support tab to submit feedback on the ONeSOURCE Client in general, or on installation or update issues for users of the installed version of the Client.

See the section Feedback Icon for details on other feedback options throughout the Client.

Sending Feedback

The Support tab displays the Send Feedback page as well as a support e-mail address to contact for assistance.

To Submit Feedback

1. Click on the Support tab in the ribbon across the top of the ONeSOURCE Client screen.



Figure 16-2. Support Page Link



2. The Send Feedback page will open.

Support		View All Feedback
	Send Feedback	
	Issue Type:	· ·
	Short Description:	Short Description of issue (required)
	Detailed Description:	Use this feedback page to report issues with the ONeSOURCE application, data that is missing, or to provide general feedback or ask a question. Please be as specific as possible to describe the issue you're experiencing including the steps to reproduce it if possible.
		Submit Cancel
	For posistance with the ONECOUDCE system.	
	For assistance with the ONeSOURCE system: Email: <u>demo@oneil.com</u>	

Figure 16-3. Support Page

NOTE: The View All Feedback link on the Send Feedback page allows users to view feedbacks they have submitted in the past. Refer to Viewing Feedback History for more information.

3. Select an issue type from the drop-down list.

	I I I I I I I I I I I I I I I I I I I	ssue Type Drop-Down List
Send Feedback		
Issue Type:		~
Short Description:	Application Related General / Question Missing Product Data	

Figure 16-4. Issue Type Drop-Down List

- 4. Add a brief description of the issue (required).
- 5. Enter details in the Detailed Description text box. The text area can be resized by clicking and dragging on the bottom right corner of the text box.

Detailed Description:	Use this feedback page to report issues with the ONeSOURCE application, data that is missing, or to provide general feedback or ask a question. Please be as specific as possible to describe the issue you're experiencing including the steps to reproduce it if possible. Click and drag this corner to resize the window
-----------------------	---



6. Click the **Submit** button to send the issue to the support team.



NOTE: Some customer configurations may also include an applicability field on the Send Feedback form that can be used by Administrators to sort and view feedbacks on this applicability. As an example, a customer's ONeSOURCE Client instance could be configured to include a region applicability. The field would display above the Issue Type field.



To Send an E-mail to the Support Team

1. Click on the e-mail address provided at the bottom of the Support page.

For assistance with the ONeSOURCE system:

Email: demo@oneil.com

Figure 16-7. Support E-Mail Address

NOTE: E-mail address in the screenshot shown as an example.

2. A blank e-mail should open addressed to the support e-mail address.

NOTE: If a new e-mail does not open, copy the support e-mail address and open your mail application manually to create the e-mail.

Viewing Feedback History

Users of the web version of the ONeSOURCE Client can view feedbacks they previously submitted via a link on the Support page. This link is not present in the installed version of the Client.

1. To open the Support page, click on the Support tab displayed at the top of the ONeSOURCE Client.



Figure 16-8. Support Page



- 2. The Support page will open.
- 3. Click the **View All Feedback** link from the top of the feedback section.

Home	Support	
Suppo	ort	
		View All Feedback
	Send Feedback	
	Issue Type:	×
	Short Description:	Short Description of issue (required)
	Detailed Description:	Use this feedback page to report issues with the ONeSOURCE application, data that is missing, or to provide general feedback or ask a question. Please be as specific as possible to describe the issue you're experiencing including the steps to reproduce it if possible.
		Submit Cancel

Figure 16-9. View All Feedback Link

4. The Feedback page will open.

Home Support Fe	edback				
Feedback					
					Export
ID T Filter	Short Description	Issue Type Trilter	Created Date	Last Updated: TFilter	State
FB00013	Incorrect Information	Incorrect Information	6/16/2022		New
FB00014	General	General	6/17/2022	6/20/2022	New

Figure 16-10. Feedback Page

NOTE: Displayed feedback is feedback the user has submitted up to this point. If it is difficult to find a specific feedback, users can enter keywords in the various filter windows to reduce the number of feedback records appearing in the list.

5. From the Feedback page, users can open old feedback entries by clicking on the feedback ID.

Feedback

ID	
T Filter	
FB00013 	

Figure 16-11. Feedback Entry ID



6. The Manage Feedback page will open.

Home	Support Feedbac	k Manage Feedback	
Mana	ge Feedback	<	
		Back To All Feedback	Bread Crumb Path: HELP >> HELP DOCUMENTS >> HELP DOC PL >> WEB HELP DOC >> BIC2000 Parts Catalog-PM >> BIC2000 IPC >> 18143
	ID:	FB00407	Bread Crumb URL
	Email:	@onell.com	Add Comment
	Phone Number:	1234567	
	Created Date:	04/05/2023	
	Closed Date:		
	Issue Type:	General / Question	Save
	State:	New	04/05/2023 13:56:57
	Short Description:	Incorrect Information	Checked with Admin on status of this feedbackmgk-
	Detailed Description:	Part number for this should be 18142 not 18143	
		Save Cancel Reopen	

Figure 16-12. Manage Feedback Page

- 7. If no changes are needed, users can click on the **Back to All Feedback** link or the browser back button to return the Feedback page.
- 8. Users can make changes to non-shaded fields and add new comments if desired, and then save their changes by clicking on the **Save** button.
- 9. By clicking on the **Bread Crumb URL** link, a new browser window will open and take users directly to the source data where the feedback was initiated.

Editing Feedback - User

Users can go back and edit feedback entries they have submitted (only included in the web version of the ONeSOURCE Client).

1. To edit a previously submitted feedback, click the **Support** tab at the top of the ONeSOURCE Client.



Figure 16-13. Support Page Link

2. Click the **View All Feedback** link on the Support page.



Home S	support	
Support		
		View All Feedback
	Send Feedback	
	Issue Type:	×
	Short Description:	Short Description of issue (required)
	Detailed Description:	Use this feedback page to report issues with the ONeSOURCE application, data that is missing, or to provide general feedback or ask a question. Please be as specific as possible to describe the issue you're experiencing including the steps to reproduce It if possible.
		Submit Cancel

Figure 16-14. View All Feedback Link

3. Click the ID of the desired feedback entry.

Home Support Feedback	x				
Feedback					
ID ≎ ▼Filter	Short Description 🗘	Issue Type ≎ ▼Filter	Created Date \$	Last Updated \$	State 🗘 TFilter
FB00407	Incorrect Information	General / Question	4/5/2023	4/5/2023	New
FB00408	Data Out of Date	General / Question	4/5/2023		New

Figure 16-15. Feedback Entry ID

4. The Manage Feedback page will open.

Home Support Feedbac	ck Manage Feedback	
Manage Feedback	K	
	Back To All Feedback	Bread Crumb Path: HELP >> HELP DOCUMENTS >> HELP DOC PL >> WEB HELP DOC >> Demo Model 123-OM Bread Crumb URL
ID:	FB00408	
Email:	@oneil.com	Add Comment
Phone Number:	1234567	
Created Date:	04/05/2023	
Closed Date:		Save
Issue Type:	General / Question 🗸	
State:	New	No comments have been added
Short Description:	Data Out of Date	
Detailed Description:	A newer version of this operating manual is available.	
	Save Cancel Reopen	





NOTE: The **Save**, **Cancel**, and **Reopen** buttons are inactive until the user has made edits to the feedback or it has been closed.

- 5. When the user clicks the **Save** button, the user's edits are saved and they are returned to the list of feedback entries.
- 6. When the user clicks the **Cancel** button after making a change to the feedback, the following popup window will display.

You are abou	t to undo all yo	our changes. A	Are you sure?
	Yes	No	

Figure 16-17. Pop-Up Message

- 7. By clicking the **Yes** button, the user's changes will not be saved and the user will be returned to the Feedback page with the list of all feedback entries.
- 8. By clicking the **No** button, the pop-up window will close and keep the user on the Manage Feedback page.
- 9. If the feedback has been closed (indicated by Closed in the State field and by all fields being inactive), users may click the **Reopen** button to change the status from Closed to Active in order to make new edits.
- 10. When a feedback is updated by the user, the system will send an e-mail to both the user and the Administrator with the following information:
 - Feedback ID number
 - Company (user's company name)
 - State (set by the Administrator)
 - Issue Type
 - Short Description
 - Detailed Description
 - Application Version
 - Dataset Version
 - Username
 - Breadcrumb (if one exists)
 - Comment By (name of person who left a comment)
 - Comment
 - Summary of change made
 - A link to the Manage Feedback page for the specific feedback



11. Following is a sample e-mail received by the user after editing a feedback.

(TST) Feedback from ONeSOURCE ONA Client

6	

3	← Reply	🏀 Reply All	→ Forward	I	

Wed 10/30/2024 10:36 AM

The feedback issue 392 has been updated. Please review the feedback summary below.

Issue Summary	
Feedback ID:	<u>392</u>
Feedback From:	
Company:	O'Neil
State:	Active
Assigned To:	

Issue Type:	Incorrect Information
Short Description:	Part is for LH not RH
Detailed Description:	Brace shown in the parts diagram is actually for the LH, not the RH.

Changes:

Assigned To: changed from not assigned

Although this e-mail and any attachments are believed to be free of any virus or other defect which might affect any computer system, it is the responsibility of the recipient to check that it is virus-free and the sender accepts no responsibility or liability for any loss, injury, damage, cost or expense arising in any way from receipt or use thereof by the recipient.

The information contained in this electronic mail message is confidential information and intended only for the use of the individual or entity named above, and may be privileged. If the reader of this message is not the intended recipient, you are hereby notified that any dissemination, distribution or copying of this communication is strictly prohibited. If you have received this transmission in error, please contact the sender immediately, delete this material from your computer and destroy all related paper media. Please note that the documents transmitted are not intended to be binding until a hard copy has been manually signed by all parties.

Thank you.

© 2024





Configuration Page (Installed Client Only)

Configuration Page

The Configuration page is where users of the installed Client can uninstall and install datasets, and apply updates to them and the ONeSOURCE Client application. From this page, users can also set datasets to be updated automatically.

Updating Datasets

Since content for sources is updated regularly, it is necessary to periodically update installed datasets in order to bring them up to date with the latest content. The ONeSOURCE Client provides ways for users to update installed datasets, within the application, either automatically or manually on demand.

Updating Datasets Automatically

To apply updates automatically, place a check mark in the Automatically Update box beneath each installed dataset, which is located on the Configuration page of the Client. The Client will then check once a day for new content and update the dataset if new content is found.





Updating Datasets Manually

Updates can also be applied manually. Even if the box is not checked to apply updates automatically, the tool checks for updates in the background and sends alerts if updates are available. There are a few ways the application notifies users of dataset updates:

a. Receiving Alerts

The Alerts tab displays on most screens of the application. When an alert is present, a bubble displays next to the Alerts tab with a number indicating the number of alerts present. By hovering the mouse over this tab, a pop-up window will display the alert.



Figure 17-2. Alerts



Clicking on the View Updates link takes users to the Configuration page where they can apply the updates.

b. Checking the Configuration page

When an update is available, a notification appears next to the dataset on the Configuration page.

CONEIL Announcements Alerts Profile Help	Support Configuration	۹
Home Configuration Application:		
DEMO ONePARTS Client © 2020 O'Neil & Associates, Inc. All Rights Reserved.	Current Version: 3.0.0 Last Updated: 10/5/2020	Application is up to date.
Datasets:	Current Version: 1.15.507	Update Available: v 115 508
Installed: C:\ProgramData\ONeSOURCE\Data © 2020 O'Neil & Associates, Inc.	Last Updated: 10/20/2020	31.0 MB

Figure 17-3. Configuration Page

Clicking on the **Update** button applies the update.

Checking for Updates

Clicking on this button checks for updates to both the application and installed datasets.

CONEIL Announcements Alerts Profile Help Support	Configuration		۹	۴
Home Configuration Application: DEMO ONePARTS Client	Current Version: 3.0.0 Last Updated: 10/5/2020	Application is up to date.		
© 2020 O'Neil & Associates, Inc. All Rights Reserved.	Automatically Update			
DEMO (PROD) Installed: C:\ProgramData\ONeSOURCE\Data © 2020 O'Neil & Associates, Inc. Uninstall	Current Version: 1.15.507 Last Updated: 10/20/2020	Dataset is up to date.		
DEMO (PROD2) Installed: C:\ProgramData\ONeSOURCE\Data © 2020 O'Neil & Associates, Inc. Uninstall	Current Version: 1.3.507 Last Updated: 10/20/2020 ☑ Automatically Update	Dataset is up to date.		
		Check For Updates	III Datase	t





CONFIGURATION PAGE (INSTALLED CLIENT ONLY)

If updates are available, the following pop-up message displays.

Update		>
	Dataset updates are available.	
	Ok	

Figure 17-5. Pop-Up Message

The status displayed next to the dataset will change from **Dataset is up to date** to **Update Available**. Clicking the **Update** button will apply the update.

ONEIL Announcements Alerts Profile	Help Support Configuration	Q Y
Home Configuration Application:		
DEMO ONePARTS Client © 2020 O'Neil & Associates, Inc. All Rights Reserved.	Current Version: 3.0.0 Last Updated: 10/5/2020 Automatically Update	Application is up to date.
Datasets:		
DEMO (PROD) Installed: C:\ProgramData\ONeSOURCE\Data © 2020 O'Neil & Associates, Inc.	Current Version: 1.15.507 Last Updated: 10/20/2020 Automatically Update	Update Available: V 1.15.508 37.0 MB
Uninstall		
		Check For Updates Install Dataset

Figure 17-6. Update Button

The system may also prompt the user to Restart the ONeSOURCE Client following an update. When it does, click on the Restart button to do the restart. After it's complete, the dataset will show that the dataset is up to date.

Datasets:			Click to restart Client
DEMO (PROD)	Current Version: 1.15.663 Last Updated 12/14/2022	Updating: Waiting for restart	Restart
Installed: C:\ProgramData\ONeSOURCE\Data © 2022 O'Neil & Associates, Inc.	☑ Automatically Update		
Uninstall			
	Figure 17-7. Restar	t Button	



If no updates are available, this pop-up message will display instead.

Update		×
	No updates available.	
	Ok	

Figure 17-8. Pop-Up Message

Installing Datasets

Users of the installed Client must install datasets in order to use the application. This is usually done at the same time the application is installed on the user's desktop. Use the following instructions to install another dataset or to uninstall a currently installed dataset and install it again.

1. Download the dataset to the user's local machine to a location you can easily remember. Recommended locations are the Downloads folder or the desktop.

NOTE: Depending on the user's configuration, the user may need to click on a link to download the dataset or download it from a third-party application.

- 2. Open the ONeSOURCE Client and go to the Configuration page.
- 3. Click on the Install Dataset button.
- 4. Click on the Browse button and navigate to the location of the dataset you downloaded in step 1.
- 5. Once the dataset is located, click the Select button.

NOTE: If you do not see the dataset listed, make sure the dataset you downloaded has an extension of .ona. Some customers may download the dataset as a zipped file and may need to unzip the file first to get to the .ona file.

6. The application will start installing the dataset provided there is enough space on the user's machine. When installation is complete, the progress bar should show 100% and the Continue button should be active.

NOTE: Some customers may need to enter a product key prior to installing the dataset. If so, the user will be prompted to enter it.

- 7. Click on the Continue button.
- 8. The application should take the user to the Client home page.
- 9. Refer to instructions for updating datasets. There is a good possibility incremental updates have been made to the dataset since it was posted for download.
- 10. There is no bulk installation utility to install multiple datasets, so if you need to install more than one dataset, repeat the dataset installation process described above.
- 11. Refer to Uninstalling Datasets for instructions on uninstalling datasets.

Uninstalling Datasets

To uninstall a dataset, follow these steps.

- 1. Go to the Configuration page.
- 2. Click on the Uninstall button next to the dataset you want to uninstall.
- 3. Click the Yes button in the confirmation pop-up message that appears.
- 4. The application will uninstall the dataset and refresh the list of installed items on the Configuration page.

NOTE: If you uninstall all datasets, you will get a message that the application cannot be used until at least one dataset is installed.



Troubleshooting Client Issues

Troubleshooting Client Issues

This section includes tips for resolving common issues users encounter while using the ONeSOURCE Client. For issues with content such as missing or incorrect data, users should use the feedback icons located throughout the Client screens as well as the Support tab across the top of the browser.

Clearing Browser Cache

To fix display issues or to see changes made to the content following a specific fix, clearing the cache of the selected browser can often resolve things without having to submit a feedback to the support team.

Following are instructions for clearing cache for three different browsers: Google Chrome, Microsoft Edge, and Internet Explorer

Google Chrome

1. Click on the three dots in the upper right of the browser and select **Settings**.



Figure 18-1. Settings



2. From the settings page, click on **Clear browsing data**.

Chrome chrome://settings	
arks () 🛛 🗘 🗘 🔝 🗯	ESOP 🥱 GE Appliances ONe 🗿 O'Neil & Associates 🤹 ONeSOURCE - HYG 🤹 Customer Support
	Q [Search settings
gle	Chrome can help keep you safe from data breaches, bad extensions, and more
: security	Privacy and security
	Clear browsing data Clear history, cookies, cache, and more

Figure 18-2. Clear Browsing Data

3. A pop-up window will open where you can check what items you want to clear. After checking the desired boxes, click **Clear data**.

Basic				Advance	d
Time	e range	All time	•		
	Brows	ing history			
	Clears	history from all signe	ed-in devices. Yo	ur Google Accor	int may have
	other f	orms of browsing his	tory at myactivit	y.google.com.	
	Peoble	a and other site data			
	Signe	es and other site data	Vou'll stay size	ed in to your One	inta tecount so
-	VOUR ST	mced data can be cle	ared.	eo in co your oor	rgie Account ac
		10 II. (2000)			
~	Cache	d images and files			
	Frees	up 915 MB. Some sib	es may load mor	e slowly on your	next visit.
				Connol	Class data

Figure 18-3. Clear Data



Microsoft Edge

1. Click on the three dots in the upper right of the browser and select **Settings**.

ť	6	≲็≡	Ē	(Not	syncing		
	Nev	w tab					Ctrl+	-T
	Nev	w window	,				Ctrl+	N
Ę	Nev	w InPrivat	e windo	w		Ctrl	+Shift+	N
	Zoc	om			_	100%	+	2
է็≡	Fav	orites				Ctrl	+Shift+	0
Ē	Col	lections				Ctr	l+Shift+	۰Y
5	Hist	tory					Ctrl+	Н
$\underline{\downarrow}$	Dov	wnloads					Ctrl	+J
B	Арр	os						>
¢	Exte	ensions						
÷	Perf	formance						
Ø	Prin	nt					Ctrl+	-P
Ø	We	b capture				Ctr	l+Shift+	+S
C	We	b select				Ctr	l+Shift+	-X
ė	Sha	ire						
ූ	Find	d on page	2				Ctrl+	۰F
A»	Rea	d aloud				Ctrl	+Shift+	U
	Мо	re tools						>
ŝ	Set	tings						

Figure 18-4. Settings

2. From the settings page, select **Privacy, search, and services**.



Figure 18-5. Privacy, Search, and Services

3. In the Clear browsing data section of the screen, click on **Choose what to clear**.

Clear browsing data				
This includes history, passwords, cookies, and more. Only data from this profile will be deleted. Manage your data				
Clear browsing data now	Choose what to clear			
Choose what to clear every time you close the browser	>			

Figure 18-6. Select What to Clear



4. Check the desired boxes and then click **Clear now**.



Figure 18-7. Clear Now Button

Microsoft Internet Explorer

NOTE: Microsoft stopped supporting Internet Explorer on August 17, 2021. Users are encouraged to switch to Google Chrome or Microsoft Edge if they are currently using Internet Explorer.

1. Click the icon that looks like a gear in the upper right of the browser.



Figure 18-8. Gear Icon

2. Select Internet options.

Print	>
File	>
Zoom (110%)	>
Safety	>
Open with Microsoft Edge	Ctrl+Shift+E
Add site to Apps	
View downloads	Ctrl+J
Manage add-ons	
F12 Developer Tools	
Go to pinned sites	
Compatibility View settings	
Internet options	
About Internet Explorer	

Figure 18-9. Internet Options



3. Under Browsing history, click the **Delete** button.

General Security	Privacy Content	Connections	Programs	Advanc	e
No. of Concession, Name					
Home page					
	eate nome page tabs	, type each aoc	ress on its (own line.	
inter	p://login.oneil.com/			~	
- L -				~	
-	1000		14		
	Use current	Use default	Use n	ew tab	I,
Startup					-
O Start with	tabs from the last se	ssion			
Start with	home page				
Tabe					
Tabs Change how	ushanaas nea disalau	ad in take	т	ahe	i
Tabs Change how v	webpages are display	ed in tabs.	T	abs	1
Tabs Change how v Browsing history	webpages are display	ed in tabs.	T	abs]
Tabs Change how v Browsing history Delete tempor	webpages are display / ary files, history, co	ed in tabs. okies, saved pa	T.	abs d web	1
Tabs Change how v Browsing history Delete tempor form informati	webpages are display /	ed in tabs. okies, saved pas	sswords, an	abs d web	1
Tabs Change how v Browsing history Delete tempor form informati	webpages are display / rary files, history, co ion. wsing history on exit	ed in tabs. okies, saved par	T. sswords, an	abs d web	1
Tabs Change how v Browsing history Delete tempor form informati	webpages are display v rary files, history, co ion. wsing history on exit	ed in tabs. okies, saved par	Ti sswords, an	abs d web	
Tabs Change how v Browsing history Delete tempor form informati	webpages are display /	ed in tabs. okies, saved pas Delete	Ta sswords, an Set	abs d web tings]
Tabs Change how v Browsing history Delete tempor form informati Delete bro Appearance —	webpages are display / rary files, history, co on. wsing history on exit	ed in tabs. okies, saved par Delete	Ta sswords, an Set	abs d web tings	
Tabs Change how v Browsing history Delete tempor form informati Delete brow Appearance — Colors	vebpages are display rary files, history, cou ion. wsing history on exit Languages	ed in tabs. okies, saved pas Delete Fonts	Ta sswords, an Set	abs d web tings ssibility	
Tabs Change how v Browsing history Delete tempor form informati Delete brow Appearance — Colors	webpages are display rary files, history, cou ion. wsing history on exit Languages	ed in tabs. okies, saved par Delete Fonts	Ta sswords, an Set Acce	abs d web tings ssibility	

Figure 18-10. Delete Browsing History

4. Check the boxes of the items you want to delete and then click the **Delete** button.



Figure 18-11. Select What to Delete



Sending Client Logs

Logs are created automatically by the application and stored in a folder on the local machine each time a session of the ONeSOURCE Client is initiated. The logs can be very useful to the support team in determining the cause of an issue when other means have not been successful. For issues that cannot be resolved quickly, ONEIL support will ask users to send the log files.

1. From the user's machine, navigate to the logs folder by right-clicking on the ONeSOURCE Client desktop icon and select "Open file location".

	Open
ONeSOUR	Open file location 🔫
Client	Print
	Restore previous versions
	Send to >
	Cut
	Сору

Figure 18-12. Open File Location

2. Open on the logs folder.

Local Disk (C:) > ProgramData >	ONeSOURCE > Client >		√ Ō	
^	Name	Date modified	Туре	Size
	📙 approot	2/28/2023 9:50 AM	File folder	
	📙 logs	3/3/2023 9:14 AM	File folder	
	OnaClient.dat	3/3/2023 2:49 PM	DAT File	628 KB
	P ONeSOURCE Client	4/2/2021 11:04 AM	Internet Shortcut	1 KB

Figure 18-13. Select Logs Folder

3. The list of log files will display.

Local Disk (C:) > ProgramData >	ٽ ~	Search logs		
^	Name	Date modified	Туре	Size
	OnaClientWebHost-2023.02.28	2/28/2023 5:24 PM	Text Document	810 KB
	OnaClientWebHost-2023.03.01	3/1/2023 11:55 PM	Text Document	80 KB
	OnaClientWebHost-2023.03.02	3/2/2023 4:56 PM	Text Document	388 KB
	OnaClientWebHost-2023.03.03	3/3/2023 2:24 PM	Text Document	4 KB

Figure 18-14. List of Log Files



- 4. At a minimum, copy the log file for the date the issue occurred. Sending a copy of a log file when the application was working properly is good for comparison purposes.
- 5. Paste the log file(s) into a new e-mail as attachments.

\triangleright	From 🗸	@oneil.com		
Send	То			
	Cc			
	Всс			
	Subject			
OnaClientWebHost-2023.03.03.log ~ 4 KB				

Figure 18-15. Blank E-Mail

6. Send the e-mail to the address of the ONEIL support team.



Alternate Method for Accessing the Log Files

7. Open a File Explorer window by right-clicking on the File Explorer icon in the task bar selecting File Explorer.



Figure 18-16. File Explorer

8. When the File Explorer window opens, paste the following path to the logs in the search window: C:\ProgramData\ONeSOURCE\Client.

🖈 C:\ProgramData\ONeSOURCE\Client			$\sim \rightarrow$
	Frequent folders (6)		
	Desktop	Downloads	Documents
	This PC	This PC	This PC
	Pictures	Music	Videos
	This PC	This PC	This PC

Figure 18-17. File Explorer Window

NOTE: The ProgramData folder is typically a hidden folder and cannot be accessed directly by clicking on the C: drive. The path must be pasted in as shown in the above screenshot.

- 9. Press Enter and double-click the logs folder to display the logs.
- 10. Follow steps 4 and 5 under Sending Client Logs to copy the log files and send them to ONEIL Support.

Administration - Announcements

Managing Announcements

Managing announcements is done under the Administration section in the web version of the ONeSOURCE Client. Here the administrator can create, edit, and remove announcements, assign a display priority, require an acknowledgement, and specify start and expiration dates.

Refer to Viewing Announcements under the Announcements and Alerts section for more information.

Creating an Announcement

To create a new announcement:

1. Click the Adminstration tab.

	Announcements	Help	Support	Administration
Administration	Qs	earch for a p	roduct	
Users	Admi	inistratior	1 Home	
Groups				
Roles				
Announcements				

Figure 19-1. Administration Tab





2. Click Announcements on the left.

Figure 19-2. Announcements
3. The Announcements page will open.

4	Add Announcement										
Annou	incements										
	Display Order	Title Titler	Description	Brand Any Y	Language Any 🗸	Active Trilter	Expiration Triter	Required			
\$	1	Welcome to ONeSOURCE P	Customized ONeSOURCE W		Multi	2/22/2024	1/22/2028	~	Ô		
\$	2	Old Dog	Luna		English	10/29/2024	11/7/2024	~	Ô		
		Welcome to ONeSOURCE!	Welcome to ONeSOURCE!		English	2/24/2023	2/28/2023		Ô		
		tester	test		English	5/11/2022	5/13/2022	~	亩		
		Bella	Dog manuals		English	5/10/2022	5/12/2022		亩		
		cats	cat		English	5/11/2022	5/12/2022		Ô		



- 4. Select the Add Announcement button.
- 5. The Add/Edit Announcements page will open.

SAVE ANNOUNCEMENT CLOSE	
Add/Edit Announcements	
Description	Title
Active Date ? Expiration Date ?	Announcement
mm/dd/yyyy	
Require Acknowledgement (optional) 😯 📃	
Display Order optional 3	
Brand optional	
All	
Drone Demo	
ONEIL Forklifts	Link 9 optional
User Profile Language 9	Displayed Link ? optional
All	
Deutsch	<u> </u>
English	
Espanoi	



- 6. Enter a description in the Description field (optional).
- 7. Enter a title for the announcement (optional).



- 8. Enter dates to turn the announcement on and off in the Active Date and Expiration Date fields respectively. The active date is the date on which the announcement will display to users. The expiration date is the date the announcement will no longer be displayed. Refer to Setting Start and Expiration Dates for Announcements for more details.
- 9. Check the box beside Require Acknowledgement if you want the announcement to display as soon as users open the Client. If this box is checked, users will have to acknowledge the announcement before they can close it.

Following is an example of how an announcement will appear to users that require an acknowledgement.

Announcements
INDUSTRY EXPERTISE THAT JUST RAISED THE BAR
Our onsite team of experts has unequaled real-world experience working with and documenting everything from material handling systems and nuclear submarines, to the most advanced aircraft componentry, communications equipment, heavy equipment, and household appliances. Our investment in human capital provides you with the most knowledgeable, talented,
Updated 5/19 9/8 14:13 updated
12/27 update
& https://www.oneil.com/industries/
I Acknowledge

Figure 19-5. Acknowledge Announcement

NOTE: Users must click the I Acknowledge button to close the announcement, but it will still be available under the Announcements tab in the Client.

10. Select a brand using the drop-down list (optional).



Figure 19-6. Select Brand





11. Choose a region from the list (optional).



Figure 19-7. Select Region

12. Select the display language for the announcement using the drop-down list (the default is English).

User Profile Language ?	
All	1
English	н
Deutsch	11
Español	-

Figure 19-8. Select Language

NOTE:

a. Users will view the announcement in the language it was authored in during its creation. The announcement is not translated from its original language, even if multiple languages are selected here.

b. To select more than one language but not all languages, use the Control key+Left mouse button to select each language.

c. To select all languages, click All.

d. You can create an announcement for just one day by selecting the same date for Active Date and Expiration Date.

- 13. Enter the text for the announcement in the Announcement text box. You can expand the size of the text box while typing by clicking on the lower right corner of the text box. Note that the announcement text window accepts common HTML tags to allow for bolding, underlining, increasing font size, etc.
- 14. Enter a URL in the Link field (optional).
- 15. Enter the text you would like the link to display to users viewing the announcement in the Displayed Link field (optional).
- 16. Click on the Save button when finished to save and release the announcement.
- 17. Refer to Viewing Announcements under the **Announcements and Alerts** section for instructions on viewing the announcement.



- 18. The newly created announcement will appear at the bottom of the list where it can be edited later if needed.
- 19. A maximum of 20 announcements can be displayed on screen at a time. If there are more than 20 announcements total, users can go to other screens using the number links at the bottom.

DISPLAY ORDER	TITLE Tilter	DESCRIPTION Trilter	BRAND Filter	REGION T Filter	LANGUAGE TFilter	ACTIVE Tilter	EXPIRATION R
	Announcement Text Manipula	Announcement Text Manipula			English	7/9/2022	8/27/2022
	Microsoft Announces End of	End of Browser Support for IE	ONEIL		English	8/24/2022	8/25/2022
	Test Announcement	Test Announcement	HELP		English	7/23/2022	7/30/2022
	15829 example	15829			English	7/24/2022	7/25/2022
	Title-French	Descrip-French	ONEIL		French	4/25/2022	7/19/2022
	German Title	Lang - German Description	ONEIL		German	5/3/2022	5/31/2022
	Canadian French Title	Lang - Canadian French Des	ONEIL		Canadian French	5/3/2022	5/31/2022
	Italian Title	Lang - Italian Description	ONEIL		Italian	5/3/2022	5/31/2022
	Dutch Title	Lang - Dutch Description	ONEIL		Dutch	5/3/2022	5/31/2022
	Portuguese Title	Lang - Portuguese Description	ONEIL	Fach garage can list up	Portuguese	5/3/2022	5/31/2022
	French Title	Lang - French Description	ONEIL	to 20 announcements	French	5/3/2022	5/31/2022
	English Title	Lang - English Description	ONEIL		English	5/3/2022	5/31/2022
	5/4 1459 Title	5/4 1459 Description	ONEIL		English	5/16/2022	5/23/2022
	Title: 15527 required	Description: 15527 required	ONEIL		English	5/7/2022	5/9/2022
	Coffee Brand Applicability	Coffee Brand Applicability	Coffee		English	4/29/2022	5/4/2022
	Create Edit Delete and Reord	Create Edit Delete and Reord	ONEIL		English	5/1/2022	5/2/2022
	Title-4/13-4/15	Description-4/13-4/15	ONEIL		English	4/25/2022	4/27/2022
	Title with Required 4/13-14	#2Description with Required		US, UK, Columbia, CJ Regio	English	4/24/2022	4/26/2022
	#1Test Title 413-14	#1Test Description 413-14		US, UK, Columbia, CJ Regio	English	4/24/2022	4/25/2022
	Character Counter is a 100%	#4Character Counter is a 100			English	4/17/2022	4/22/2022
<							•
							× 1 2 3 4

Navigation links to other announcement pages



NOTE:

Date format will be updated based on users profile language setting.

Editing an Announcement

To edit an existing announcement.

1. Click on the Administration tab.



Figure 19-10. Administration Tab





2. Click on Announcements on the left.

Figure 19-11. Announcements

3. Existing announcements will be listed on Announcements page. Locate the announcement you wish to edit. You may need to navigate to another screen if there are more than a total of 20 announcements, the number that can be listed on one screen. Click on the announcement's title to open it in the editor.

ADMINISTRATION - ANNOUNCEMENTS

DISPLAY	TITLE Tilter	DESCRIPTION Tilter	BRAND Filter	REGION Tilter	LANGUAGE Trilter	ACTIVE Tilter	EXPIRATION R
	Announcement Text Manipula	Announcement Text Manipula			English	7/9/2022	8/27/2022
	Microsoft Announces End of	End of Browser Support for IE	ONEIL		English	8/24/2022	8/25/2022
	Test Announcement	Test Announcement	HELP		English	7/23/2022	7/30/2022
	15829 example	15829			English	7/24/2022	7/25/2022
	Title-French	Descrip-French	ONEIL		French	4/25/2022	7/19/2022
	German Title	Lang - German Description	ONEIL		German	5/3/2022	5/31/2022
	Canadian French Title	Lang - Canadian French Des	ONEIL		Canadian French	5/3/2022	5/31/2022
	Italian Title	Lang - Italian Description	ONEIL		Italian	5/3/2022	5/31/2022
	Dutch Title	Lang - Dutch Description	ONEIL		Dutch	5/3/2022	5/31/2022
	Portuguese Title	Lang - Portuguese Description	ONEIL	Each corean con list up	Portuguese	5/3/2022	5/31/2022
	French Title	Lang - French Description	ONEIL	to 20 announcements	French	5/3/2022	5/31/2022
	English Title	Lang - English Description	ONEIL		English	5/3/2022	5/31/2022
	5/4 1459 Title	5/4 1459 Description	ONEIL		English	5/16/2022	5/23/2022
	Title: 15527 required	Description: 15527 required	ONEIL		English	5/7/2022	5/9/2022
	Coffee Brand Applicability	Coffee Brand Applicability	Coffee		English	4/29/2022	5/4/2022
	Create Edit Delete and Reord	Create Edit Delete and Reord	ONEIL		English	5/1/2022	5/2/2022
	Title-4/13-4/15	Description-4/13-4/15	ONEIL		English	4/25/2022	4/27/2022
	Title with Required 4/13-14	#2Description with Required		US, UK, Columbia, CJ Regio	English	4/24/2022	4/26/2022
	#1Test Title 413-14	#1Test Description 413-14		US, UK, Columbia, CJ Regio	English	4/24/2022	4/25/2022
	Character Counter is a 100%	#4Character Counter is a 100			English	4/17/2022	4/22/2022
•			_			_	•
							«1234
				Naviga	ition links to othe		

Navigation links to other announcement pages



4. Edit the announcement fields as needed, then click the Save Announcement button.



Figure 19-13. Save Announcement Button

5. Refer to Viewing Announcements for instructions on viewing your edits.



Deleting an Announcement

To Delete an Announcement

1. Click on the Administration tab.



Figure 19-14. Administration Tab

2. Click on Announcements on the left.





- 3. The Announcements page will open.
- 4. The list of existing announcements will be displayed. Locate the announcement you wish to delete. You may need to navigate to another page if there are more than 20 announcements.

DISPLAY ORDER	TITLE Tilter	DESCRIPTION Tilter	BRAND Filter	REGION Tilter		ACTIVE Tilter	EXPIRATION R
	Announcement Text Manipula	Announcement Text Manipula			English	7/9/2022	8/27/2022
	Microsoft Announces End of	End of Browser Support for IE	ONEIL		English	8/24/2022	8/25/2022
	Test Announcement	Test Announcement	HELP		English	7/23/2022	7/30/2022
	15829 example	15829			English	7/24/2022	7/25/2022
	Title-French	Descrip-French	ONEIL		French	4/25/2022	7/19/2022
	German Title	Lang - German Description	ONEIL		German	5/3/2022	5/31/2022
	Canadian French Title	Lang - Canadian French Des	ONEIL		Canadian French	5/3/2022	5/31/2022
	Italian Title	Lang - Italian Description	ONEIL		Italian	5/3/2022	5/31/2022
	Dutch Title	Lang - Dutch Description	ONEIL		Dutch	5/3/2022	5/31/2022
	Portuguese Title	Lang - Portuguese Description	ONEIL	Each corean can list up	Portuguese	5/3/2022	5/31/2022
	French Title	Lang - French Description	ONEIL	to 20 announcements	French	5/3/2022	5/31/2022
	English Title	Lang - English Description	ONEIL		English	5/3/2022	5/31/2022
	5/4 1459 Title	5/4 1459 Description	ONEIL		English	5/16/2022	5/23/2022
	Title: 15527 required	Description: 15527 required	ONEIL		English	5/7/2022	5/9/2022
	Coffee Brand Applicability	Coffee Brand Applicability	Coffee		English	4/29/2022	5/4/2022
	Create Edit Delete and Reord	Create Edit Delete and Reord	ONEIL		English	5/1/2022	5/2/2022
	Title-4/13-4/15	Description-4/13-4/15	ONEIL		English	4/25/2022	4/27/2022
	Title with Required 4/13-14	#2Description with Required		US, UK, Columbia, CJ Regio	English	4/24/2022	4/26/2022
	#1Test Title 413-14	#1Test Description 413-14		US, UK, Columbia, CJ Regio	English	4/24/2022	4/25/2022
	Character Counter is a 100%	#4Character Counter is a 100			English	4/17/2022	4/22/2022
4			_				► F
							× 1234
				Marrian	atom timbre an oak o		

announcement pages

Figure 19-16. List of Announcements

5. To delete the announcement, click the trash can icon at the far right of the announcement's row.



Figure 19-17. Deleting an Announcement



6. If you already have the announcement open in the Add/Edit Announcements page, you can also click the **Remove** button to delete it.

SAVE ANNOUNCEMENT	CLOSE REMOVE		
Add/Edit Announcement	ts		
Description		Title	
test	×	tester	×
Active Date ?	Expiration Date ?	Announcement	
05/11/2022	05/13/2022	party!!	
Require Acknowledgement (optio	nal) 😯 🗹		
Display Order optional	3		
Brand option	onal		
All			
Drone Demo			
ONEIL Forklifts		Link 🕄	optional
User Profile Language 3		Displayed Link 3	optional
English			
Español			
Français			
Français (Canada)	•		

Figure 19-18. Using the Remove Button to Delete an Announcement

7. After clicking the trash can icon or the Remove button, a confirmation pop-up message will display.



Figure 19-19. Confirmation Pop-Up Message

8. Click the **Yes** button to confirm the deletion.

NOTE: As shown in the pop-up message, once the announcement is deleted it cannot be undone.

Assigning Priority to an Announcement

Announcements are given a display order to dictate the order in which they will display in the ONeSOURCE Client when acknowledgement is required. If an acknowledgement is not required, the announcements will display in the order in which they were created.

To assign priority to an announcement:

1. Click on the Administration tab.



Figure 19-20. Administration Tab

2. Click on Announcements on the left.







3. The Announcements page will open.

🔏 Add Announcem	ent							
nnouncements								
Display Order	Title Title	Description	Brand Any Y	Language	Active	Expiration T Filter	Required	
‡ 1	Welcome to ONeSOURCE P	Customized ONeSOURCE W		Multi	2/22/2024	1/22/2028	~	Ť
	Old Dog	Luna		English	10/29/2024	11/7/2024	~	Î
	Welcome to ONeSOURCEI	Welcome to ONeSOURCE!		English	2/24/2023			Ť.
	tester	test		English	5/11/2022		~	Î
	Bella	Dog manuals		English	5/10/2022	5/12/2022		Ē
	cats	cat		English	5/11/2022	5/12/2022		Ô
	▲ Add Announcem nnouncements Display Order	Add Announcement Display Order Tille Traine 1 Vielcome to One SOURCE P Old Dag Vielcome to One SOURCE I tester Eetla Cats			Kod Announcement Display Order Tile Description Train	Display Order Tille Description Brand Language Active Trainer Trainer Arr Arr Trainer 1 Welcome to ONeSOURCE P Outomized ONeSOURCE W Multi 2/2/2/2/4 2 Old Dog Luna English 1/2/2/2/2/4 Welcome to ONeSOURCE II Welcome to ONeSOURCE II English 2/4/2/2/3 Matti Dog manualis English 5/11/2022 2/2/2/2/2/2/2/2/2/2/2/2/2/2/2/2/2/2/2/	Display Order Tile Description Brand Language Active Experiation 1 Weicome to ONeSOURCE P Customized ONeSOURCE W Multi 2222024 1222028 2 Old Dog Luna English 105/2024 11/7/204 Weicome to ONeSOURCE II Weicome to ONeSOURCE II Weicome to ONeSOURCE II English 10/29/2024 12/2028 2 Old Dog Luna English 10/29/2024 11/7/204 Weicome to ONeSOURCE II Weicome to ONeSOURCE II English 5/11/2022 5/13/2022 2 Bella Dog manualis English 5/11/2022 5/13/2022 3 cat English 5/11/2022 5/12/2022	Display Order Tile Description Brand Language Active Expiration Required 1 Welcome to CNeSOURCE P Customized ONeSOURCE W Multi 2222024 1222028 ✓ 2 Old Day Luna English 10/29/2024 11/72024 ✓ 4 2 Old Day Luna English 10/29/2024 1222028 ✓ 4 2 Old Day Luna English 10/29/2024 1220203 ✓ 4 2 Old Day Luna English 5/11/2022 5/13/2022 ✓ 4 Edia Dog manualis English 5/11/2022 5/12/2022 ✓ 5 cat English 5/11/2022 5/12/2022 ✓

Figure 19-22. Announcements Page

4. To assign a display order to an existing announcement, select it from the list of announcements on the announcements page.

DISPLAY ORDER	TITLE Tilter	DESCRIPTION TFilter	BRAND Tilter	REGION TFilter	LANGUAGE Tritter	ACTIVE	EXPIRATION Filter	REQUIRED	
 1	INDUSTRY EXPERTISE THA	Description: Industry Expertis	ONEIL	US, -America-I, Region10249	English	12/27/2022	12/30/2022	~	Ô
 2	Title: Lorem ipsum dolor sit a	Description: Lorem ipsum dol			English	12/27/2022	1/6/2023	~	Ô
	future announcement - Title	future announcement - Descrip			English	12/11/2022	12/24/2022		Ô
	11/30 ACK Title	11/30 ACK Descrip			English	12/1/2022	12/17/2022	~	Î
	11/30 New - Title German	11/30 New - Descrip german			German	12/1/2022	12/17/2022		Ô
	12/12 future Title	12/12 future			English	12/15/2022	12/17/2022		Ô
	12/12 ACK Title	12/12 ACK			English	12/10/2022	12/15/2022	~	Ô
	12/9 ACK - Title	12/9 ACK - Description			English	12/10/2022	12/13/2022	~	Ô
	12/10 ACK - Title	12/10 ACK - Descrip			English	12/11/2022	12/13/2022	~	Ô
	12/9 2nd ACK - Title	12/9 2nd ACK - Descrip			English	12/9/2022	12/11/2022	~	Î
	Required Acknowledgement	This is a required acknowledg			English	12/10/2022	12/11/2022	~	Ô
	12/7 ACK title	12/7 ACK			English	12/10/2022	12/11/2022	~	Ô
	11/29 New Announcement Title	11/29 New Announcement De			English	12/1/2022	12/3/2022		Ô
	11/22 New Announcement 2	11/22 New Announcement 2			English	11/27/2022	12/2/2022		Ô
	11/22 New Brand/Region che	11/22 New Brand/Region che	ONEIL	US	English	11/27/2022	12/1/2022		Ô
	11/22 Future Announcement	11/22 Future Announcement			English	11/29/2022	12/1/2022		Ô
	11/22 New Announcement - T	11/22 New Announcement - D	ONEIL	US	English	11/26/2022	12/1/2022		Î
	11/22 New 12:21 - 5 title	11/22 New 12:21 - 5			English	11/27/2022	12/1/2022		Î
	11/22 New 12:22 - 8 Title	11/22 New 12:22 - 8			English	11/27/2022	12/1/2022		Î
	11/22 New Announcement 3	11/22 New Announcement 3			English	11/25/2022	11/30/2022		Î

Figure 19-23. List of Announcements

NOTE:

- a. As a test, select the announcement highlighted above and assign it a display order of 3.
- b. Expiration dates for announcements that have already expired will be shown in red.
- 5. Open the desired announcement.

Add/Edit Announcements		
Description		Title
This is a required acknowledgement announce	ment. X	Required Acknowledgement Announcement
Active Date ? Expiration Date	e 😯	Announcement
12/10/2022		This is an announcement that requires the user to acknowledge it by clicking on the Acknowledge button before searching and viewing content in the ONeSOURCE
Require Acknowledgement 🕄 🔲 Display Orde	ег 3	Client
Brand		12/28/2022
Please Select 🗸		
Region		
All		
America		
-America-!		
Animal		
Language		Displayed Link 3
English 🗸		
Save CANCEL REMOVE		

Figure 19-24. Announcement Without an Active Display Order

6. Change an active date to one that is either the current date or in the future, and change the expiration date to one that is in the future.

NOTE: Users can enter the dates directly in the windows for Active Date and Expiration Date, or click on the calendar icon beside each date and select the dates that way.

Active Date ?	Expiration Date)
12/28/2022	12/30/2022	

Figure 19-25. Active and Expiration Dates Changed

7. Check the box beside Require Acknowledgement and enter the desired display order.



Figure 19-26. Require Acknowledgement and Display Order

- 8. Click the Save button to save your changes.
- 9. The announcement should now show up in the list in the display order you designated.



	DISPLAY ORDER	TITLE TFilter	DESCRIPTION TFilter	BRAND Filter	REGION TFilter	LANGUAGE Tritter	ACTIVE Tilter	EXPIRATION Filter	REQUIRED	
* *	1	INDUSTRY EXPERTISE THA	Description: Industry Expertis	ONEIL	US, -America-!, Region10249	English	12/27/2022	12/30/2022	~	Î
	2	Title: Lorem ipsum dolor sit a	Description: Lorem ipsum dol			English	12/27/2022	1/6/2023	~	Î
-	3	Required Acknowledgement	This is a required acknowledg			English	12/28/2022	12/30/2022	~	Ô
		future announcement - Title	future announcement - Descrip			English	12/11/2022	12/24/2022		Ē
		11/30 ACK Title	11/30 ACK Descrip			English	12/2/2022	12/18/2022	~	Ô

Figure 19-27. Announcement With an Active Display Order

10. To change an active announcement's display order (position in the list), hover the mouse over the up/down arrow icon beside it on the left, wait until the hand icon appears, and then click and drag it up or down to the desired position.

	DISPLAY ORDER	TITLE Tilter	DESCRIPTION Trilter	BRAND Trilter	REGION Trilter	LANGUAGE Triter	ACTIVE Tilter	EXPIRATION Filter	REQUIRED	
÷	1	INDUSTRY EXPERTISE THA	Description: Industry Expertis	ONEIL	US, -America-I, Region10249	English	12/27/2022	12/30/2022	~	İ
\$	3	Required Acknowledgement	This is a required acknowledg			English	12/28/2022	12/30/2022	×	Ô
* *	2	Title: Lorem ipsum dolor sit a	Description: Lorem ipsum dol			English	12/27/2022	1/6/2023	~	Î

Figure 19-28. Changing an Announcement's Display Order

11. The system will refresh the page and the numbers in the Display Order column will change automatically.

	DISPLAY ORDER	TITLE Tilter	DESCRIPTION Filter	BRAND Filter	REGION T Filter	LANGUAGE TFilter	ACTIVE	EXPIRATION Triter	REQUIRED	
* *	1	INDUSTRY EXPERTISE THA	Description: Industry Expertis	ONEIL	US, -America-!, Region10249	English	12/27/2022	12/30/2022	~	Î
-	2	Required Acknowledgement	This is a required acknowledg	-		English	12/28/2022	12/30/2022	~	Ô
	3	Title: Lorem ipsum dolor sit a	Description: Lorem ipsum dol		Announcement now	English	12/27/2022	1/6/2023	~	Ô
		future announcement - Title	future announcement - Descrip		has a display order of	English	12/11/2022	12/24/2022		面
		11/30 ACK Title	11/30 ACK Descrip		Z IIIStedu UI 3	English	12/2/2022	12/18/2022	~	前

Figure 19-29. Display Order Changed

NOTE: Only announcements with valid dates (dates that have not already expired) can have a display order. No matter where an announcement with a display order is moved within the list of announcements on the page, the system will group all active announcements with a display order together in the order you have specified.

12. When multiple announcements have been set to require users to acknowledge them, they will display on the Client home page per the display order that has been set.



Announcements



Figure 19-30. Multiple Announcements Requiring Acknowledgement

Setting Start and Expiration Dates for Announcements

Start and end dates can be set for an announcement when it is initially created. They can also be set or reset for existing announcements to display them again. Setting an announcement's start and end date



is also covered under the instructions Creating an Announcement, but since there is more than one way to set these dates, the task is covered in more detail here.

Set a Start (Active) and End (Expiration) Date for an Announcement

1. Navigate to the Add/Edit Announcements page, under Announcements, in Administration.

Administration			
Users	Add/Edit Announceme	ents	
Groups	Description		
Roles	Test Announcement		×
1003	Active Date ?	Expiration Date 3	
	mm/dd/yyyy	mm/dd/yyyy	
Announcements	Require Acknowledgement (?)		

Figure 19-31. Add/Edit Announcements Page

- 2. Create a new announcement or select an existing announcement, if one exists, from the list in the bottom half of the Add/Edit Announcements page.
- 3. Enter a date for the announcement to display in the Active Date window.



Figure 19-32. Active (Effective) Date

NOTE: You do not need to enter slashes in the date.



4. Alternatively, you can enter the date by clicking on the calendar icon beside the Active Date window.



Figure 19-33. Calendar Icon

5. This will open a calendar pop-up window.

Active Date ?										
mm/dd/yyyy										
July	July 2022 ▼									
Su	Мо	Tu	We	Th	Fr	Sa				
26	27	28	29	30	1	2				
3	4	5	6	7	8	9				
10	11	12	13	14	15	16				
17	18	19	20	21	22	23				
24	25	26	27	28	29	30				
31	5	6								
Cle	Clear									

Figure 19-34. Calendar Pop-Up Window

- a. To enter today's date, click on the Today link in the lower right of the pop-up window.
- b. To enter a date within the current month but not today's date, select the desired date on the calendar.
- c. To display the next month, click on the down arrow in the upper right of the pop-up window. Each press of the down arrow will advance the calendar to the next month.
- d. To display a date that is farther in the future, you can click on the month and year drop down to display the following pop-up window.



Active Da	ite 😯			
07/06/2	022			
July 202	2 -			
2022				
Jan	Feb	Mar	Apr	
May	Jun	Jul	Aug	Scroll bar to display more years
Sep	Oct	Nov	Dec	
2023				
2024				
2025				
2026				

Figure 19-35. Month/Year Drop-Down List

- e. Click on the month displayed in the pop-up window, or click on a different year and then click on a month.
- f. Use the scroll bar to select another year, if necessary.
- g. To clear a previously entered date, click on the Clear link in the lower left of the pop-up window.
- 6. Repeat this process to specify an expiration date.

NOTE: Note that by checking the box next to Require Acknowledgement, the announcement will be displayed to the user as soon as they log into the ONeSOURCE Client. If this box is not checked, the announcement will be displayed under the Announcements tab only.



Requiring Announcements to be Acknowledged

To require users to acknowledge an announcement, the expiration date must not be expired and the require acknowledgement box must be checked.

To require users to acknowledge an announcement:

1. Click the Require Acknowledgement box on the Add/Edit Announcements page while creating or editing an announcement.

05/12/202	Checking this box will require the user to acknowledge they have read the message.
Require Ackr	owledgement 🕄 🔽

Figure 19-36. Require Acknowledgement Check Box

- 2. Ensure the announcement's expiration date is in the future (not yet expired). Refer to Setting Start and Expiration Dates for Announcements for instructions on setting the active and expiration dates.
- 3. Click the Save button to save changes and release the announcement. It may take some time for the announcement to show up on the ONeSOURCE Client home page.
- 4. When the announcement displays on the home page of the Client, verify it displays properly. A pop-up window should display with a button to acknowledge the announcement.

Announcements
INDUSTRY EXPERTISE THAT JUST RAISED THE BAR
Our onsite team of experts has unequaled real-world experience working with and documenting everything from material handling systems and nuclear submarines, to the most advanced aircraft componentry, communications equipment, heavy equipment, and household appliances. Our investment in human capital provides you with the most knowledgeable, talented,
Updated 5/19
9/8 14:13 updated
12/27 update
S https://www.oneil.com/industries/
I Acknowledge

Figure 19-37. Acknowledging an Announcement

- 5. Click on the **I Acknowledge** button to close the announcement pop-up window.
- 6. The announcement will still be available on the Announcements page within the ONeSOURCE Client.
 - a. Click on the Announcements tab.





b. Announcements that have not expired will display.

Home Announcements		
Announcements		
	This is a big announcement	Acknowledged On:
	𝔗 https://www.google.com/	05/19/2022 16:05:51
	Our onsite team of experts has unequaled real-world experience working with and documenting everything from material handling systems and nuclear submarines, to the most advanced aircraft componentry, communications equipment, heavy equipment, and household appliances. Our investment in human capital provides you with the most knowledgeable, talented	
	Updated 5/19	Acknowledged On:
	S https://www.oneil.com/industries/	05/19/2022 15:58:59

Figure 19-39. Announcements Displayed in Client



To Reset an Announcement for Acknowledgement

Once an announcement has been acknowledged by the user, it will not have to be acknowledged again unless an Administrator resets it.

1. Select the announcement to be reset.





2. Uncheck the box next to Require Acknowledgement.



3. Recheck the Require Acknowledgement box.



Figure 19-42. Require Acknowledgement Checkbox

- 4. Ensure the date in the Expiration Date window has not expired.
- 5. Save the announcement.



Figure 19-43. Save Announcement Button

- 6. Log out of the ONeSOURCE Client and then log back in.
- 7. The announcement you reset for acknowledgement should display when users log back in.

Viewing Announcements

This section is for creating and editing announcements in the ONeSOURCE Client by Administrators. Refer to Announcements for more information on viewing announcements after they have been created.



Administration - Feedbacks

Managing Feedbacks

Feedback management is done on the Administration tab in web version of the ONeSOURCE Client. It is from here the administrator can view all feedback that has been submitted for their organization, as well as update the status, assign to specific individuals, and add comments. Refer to Sending Feedback for instructions on submitting and viewing feedbacks under one's own user account.

Viewing All Feedback Entries

From the **Administration** tab, Administrators can view all feedback submited by individuals in their organization.

To View All Feedback Entries

1. Click the Administration tab.

	Announcements	Help	Support	Administration
Administration	Q	Search for a p	roduct	
Users	Adm	inistratior	n Home	
Groups				
Roles				
Announcements				
Feedback				



2. Click Feedback on the left.

	Announcemer	ts Help	Support	Administration
Administration		${f Q}$ Search for a	a product	
Users	A	dministratio	on Home	
Groups				
Roles				
Announcements				
Feedback				

Figure 20-2. Feedback

3. The list of feedback entries will display.

Administration	EXPORT							
Users	Feedback							
Groups	ID 🗘 TFilter	SHORT DESCRIPTION 🗘	ISSUE TYPE \$	CREATED DATE \$	USER \$	LAST UPDATED \$	ASSIGNED TO 🗘	STATE \$
Roles	FB00001	Application Related Information	Application Related In	5/23/2022	brien erzeinigkoneit com	10/20/2022	xtest	Active
	FB00002	Missing Product Data	Missing Product Data	5/23/2022	latan asarlığınınlı som	6/2/2022		Active
Announcements	FB00003	Missing Product Data	Incorrect Information	5/24/2022	sameas hashmigen	7/19/2022		Awaiting User Confir
Feedback	FB00004	Updated Short Description - a	Missing Product Data	5/26/2022	and minimized grand .	8/11/2022	xAdmin	Awaiting User Respo
	FB00005	update - Application Related I	General	5/31/2022	sale risks@mail	8/11/2022		Active
	FB00006	Missing Product Data	General	5/31/2022	spin ninksford	5/31/2022		Active
	FB00007	Missing Product Data	General	5/31/2022	salar nisira@onall	7/19/2022		Active
	FB00008	General	Missing Product Data	6/2/2022	sein ninkaĝonit	6/6/2022	xtest	Awaiting User Respo
	FB00009	Missing Product Data	General	6/6/2022	salar nisira@mail	7/19/2022		New
	<u>FB00010</u>	TEST	Incorrect Information	6/8/2022	max alther@onell.com	8/15/2022		New

Figure 20-3. List of Feedback Entries



NOTE:

- a. A maximum of 10 feedback entries can be displayed per screen. If there are more than 10 feedback entries total, navigation links will display so users can navigate to the other feedback screens.
- b. Use the various filters as needed to find specific feedback entries.
- c. Date format will be updated based on users profile language setting.
- d. Click the up/down arrows in specific column headers to toggle the list in ascending or descending order.
- e. Some ONeSOURCE Client configurations may include an additional applicability field on the Feedback screen. The field can help Administrators filter feedbacks based on this additional applicability. The applicability will display between the ID and Short Description on the Feedback screen.

Feedbac	k			
ID 🗘 Trilter	REGION	SHORT DESCRIPTION \$	ISSUE TYPE 🗘	CREATED DATE \$
FB00034	US	General - admin update	General / Question	6/23/2022

Figure 20-4. Feedback Screen Showing an Additional Applicability - Region

Editing Feedbacks - Administrator

Administrators can also open individual feedbacks to view specific details, add comments, and assign them to individuals within their organization.

To Manage Feedback Details

1. Click on the **Administration** tab.





2. Click on Feedback on the left.



	Announce	ements	Help	Support	Administration
Administration		Q Se	arch for a pr	oduct	
Users		Admir	nistration	Home	
Groups					
Roles					
Announcements					
Feedback					

Figure 20-6. Feedback

3. The list of feedback entries will display.

Feedback							
ID Tritter	SHORT DESCRIPTION Filter	ISSUE TYPE Filter	CREATED DATE	USER T Filter	LAST UPDATED: Filter	ASSIGNED TO Tilter	STATE Filter
FB00011	Missing Product Data	Missing Product Data	6/14/2022	naviar minaka @azu			New
FB00012	Missing Product Data	Missing Product Data	6/16/2022	nevier.mireles@one	6/16/2022	antineires.	New
FB00013	Incorrect Information	Incorrect Information	6/16/2022	michael kontiĝonel	6/20/2022		Closed
FB00014	General	General	6/17/2022	michael.kent@urail	6/20/2022		New
FB00015	Incorrect Information	Incorrect Information	6/20/2022	savier mindes@one	6/20/2022		New
FB00016	Application Related Information	Application Related	6/20/2022	navier.mireles@ione			New
FB00017	Application Related Information	Application Related	6/20/2022	savier minetes@cove			New
FB00018	Application Related Information	Application Related	6/20/2022	navier minales@rena			New
<u>FB00019</u>	Missing Product Data	Missing Product Data	6/20/2022	savier minetes@cris			New
FB00020	Missing Product Data	Missing Product Data	6/20/2022	navia: minales@one			New

Figure 20-7. List of Feedback Entries



4. Click on the ID of the feedback entry you wish to open.





5. The Manage Feedback page will open displaying the details of the selected feedback.

SAVE CANCEL		
Manage Feedback		Bread Crumb Path: Bicycle >> North America >> Women's >> Hybrid >> BIC2000 Parts Catalog >> BIC2000 IPC >> 18143
ID.	Back To All Feedb	ack http://oneilweb.44.tst oneilinc.net/products/bicycle/north-america/womens/hybrid/24616? q=#II#content=24367
FB00013		
Email:	Phone Number:	
michael kent@onel.com	1234567	
Created Date:	Closed Date:	
06/16/2022	06/20/2022	06/20/2022 16:47:39
Issue Type		Found out the same is true for 18144 - should be 18145 - mgk
State		
Closed		√
Assigned To		
		~
Short Description:		-
Incorrect Information		
Description:		
P/N for this should be 18142 not 18143		

Figure 20-9. Manage Feedback Page



- 6. Provided the Administrator has edit/write permissions, the following fields can be changed or added:
 - Issue Type
 - Issue State
 - Assigned To
 - Short Description (see Note)
 - Description (see Note)
 - Comments

NOTE: Depending on the Administrator's customer configuration, these fields may also be available to edit.

- 7. For the **Issue Type**, **Issue State**, and **Assigned To** fields, use the drop-down lists to choose a value.
- 8. To add comments, enter them in the window and then click the **Save** button beneath the comments box.







9. You can also click on the **Save** button at the top of the Manage Feedback page to save comments.

Administration	SAVE CANCEL			
Users	Manage Feedback			
Groups				
Roles	ID:			
	FB00013			
	Email:			
Announcements	@oneil.com			
Feedback	Created Date:			

Figure 20-11. Save Button

Previously entered comments will display beneath the box and list who entered them as well as date and time stamps for each one as shown in the above screenshot.

- 10. When a feedback is updated by the Administrator, the system will send an e-mail to both the user and the Administrator with the following information:
 - Feedback ID number
 - Name of the user who submitted the feedback
 - · Name of the administrator in parentheses
 - Name of the user's company
 - State of the feedback
 - · User who the feedback is assigned to
 - Issue Type
 - Short Description
 - Detailed Description
 - Comment By (the username of the Administrator)
 - Comment
 - Changes (summary of the change/edit made)
 - Breadcrumb
 - A link to the Manage Feedback page for the specific feedback
- 11. Click the **Back to All Feedback** link to return to page one of the feedbacks.
- 12. Click the **Cancel** button to return to the feedback page you were on.



13. Following is a sample e-mail received by the user after it was edited by an administrator.

From: ONeSOURCE < <u>noreply@oneil.com</u> > Sent: Tuesday, February 14, 2023 4:26 PM To: OneSourceSupport < <u>OneSourceSupport@oneil.com</u> > Cc: Subject: (TST) Feedback Update from ONeSOURCE ONA Client						
Feedback ID:	FB00007					
Feedback From:	Joe User ([username of Administrator])					
Company:	ONEIL					
State:	Awaiting User Confirmation					
Assigned To:	Alice					
Issue Type:	General					
Short Description:	Missing Product Data					
Detailed Description:	Admin level feedback as user 220531_1612					
New Comment:						
Comment By:	[username of Administrator]					
Comment:	changed state to awaiting user confirmation.					
Changes: State:	changed from Awaiting User Response					

Figure 20-12. Sample User Feedback E-Mail with Administrator Changes

Exporting All Feedback Entries

Adminstrators can also export all submitted feedbacks to a file so they can manipulate the data.

To Export All Feedback

1. Click the **Administration** tab.

	Announcements	Help	Support	Administration
Administration	0	Search for a	product	
Users	Adı	ministratio	n Home	
Groups				
Roles				
Announcements				
Feedback				



2. Click **Feedback** on the left.



	Announc	ements	Help	Support	Administration
Administration		Q Se	arch for a pr	oduct	
Users		Admiı	nistration	Home	
Groups					
Roles					
Announcements					
Feedback					

Figure 20-14. Feedback

3. The list of feedback entries will display.

EXPORT							
Feedback							
ID 🗘 T Filter	SHORT DESCRIPTION \$	ISSUE TYPE	CREATED DATE 0	USER 0	LAST UPDATED	ASSIGNED TO 🗘	STATE 🗘
FB00011	Missing Product Data	Missing Product Data	6/14/2022	@oneil.com	9/9/2022		Active
FB00012	Missing Product Data	Missing Product Data	6/16/2022	@oneil.com	6/16/2022	and the second sec	New
FB00013	Incorrect Information	Incorrect Information	6/16/2022	@oneil.com	8/22/2022		Active
FB00014	General	General	6/17/2022	@oneil.com	6/20/2022		New
FB00015	Incorrect Information	Incorrect Information	6/20/2022	@oneil.com	6/20/2022		New
FB00016	Application Related Information	Application Related Information	6/20/2022	@oneil.com			New
FB00017	Application Related Information	Application Related Information	6/20/2022	@oneil.com			New
FB00018	Application Related Information	Application Related Information	6/20/2022	@oneil.com			New
FB00019	Missing Product Data	Missing Product Data	6/20/2022	@oneil.com			New
FB00020	Lorem Ipsum is simply dumm	Missing Product Data	6/20/2022	@oneil.com	12/2/2022		New

Figure 20-15. List of Feedback Entries

4. Click the Export button to download the feedback entries to a .csv spreadsheet.

Administration	EXPORT			
Users	Feedback			
Groups	ID	SHORT DESCRIPTION		
Roles	Filter	Filter		
	<u>FB00011</u>	Missing Product Data		
	FB00012	Missing Product Data		
Announcements	FB00013	Incorrect Information		
Feedback	<u>FB00014</u>	General		
	FB00015	Incorrect Information		
	FB00016	Application Related Information		
	FB00017	Application Related Information		
	FB00018	Application Related Information		
	FB00019	Missing Product Data		
	FB00020	Missing Product Data		
Feedback-2022081csv ^				

Figure 20-16. Export Button

NOTE: The .csv file should also appear in the user's Downloads folder.

- 5. The .csv file will have the following column headers:
 - ID
 - Short Description
 - Issue Type
 - Created Date
 - User
 - Last Updated
 - Assigned To
 - State
 - Username
 - First Name
 - Last Name



- Detailed Description
- Breadcrumb
- 6. Each field in the output will be comma-delimited.
Administration - User Management

User Management - Introduction

User management allows administrators to manage users within the system. Through user management, administrators can create users and user groups, assign roles, and grant permissions to control access to specific content. User management tools are located under the Administration tab in the web version of the ONeSOURCE Client only. The User Management tools are not available in the installed version of the Client.

	Announcements F	ielp Support	Administration				
Administration	Q Search	h for Users, Groups, or	Roles Add U	lser			
Users	All Users	;					
Groups	USERNAN Tilter	ME C FIRST N	IAME CLAST NAME		STATUS]
	Danab	David	Thebani	dave the being point of	Enabled	No	Ô
	And Mark	David	Theben	dave thisbengonel.c	Enabled	Yes	Î
Announcements	devethilds	David	Thebase	dave the being power of	Enabled	Yes	Ô
Feedback	discas.	Derek	Luces	ducas@crail.com	Enabled	Yes	Î
	diterated	Dylan	3340	dyter, stretugiones con	Enabled	Yes	Ô
	EditAll	Edit	AL	edit@a.com	Enabled	Yes	Ô
	EditGroup	<u>s</u> Edit	тисиря	edit@g.com	Enabled	Yes	Ô
	EditRoles	Edit	Raiss	Edit@r.com	Enabled	Yes	Ô
	EditUser	Edit	Uter	edit@u.com	Enabled	Yes	Ô
	Division of	t	t	two-y-skeptersonije	ndi.co Enabled	No	Ô
				« 1	23456	7 1	2 »

Figure 21-1. User Management Screen

What is a User?

A user represents a person in the system. Within the context of user management, a user is a container for roles, which control the activities and content the person may perform or access.

Roles are assigned by the Administrator but will also include roles that are inherited from the parent group.

Users are currently allowed to be a member of one group only.

What is a Group?

A group can contain another group (as a child group's parent), roles and applicabilities, and individual users.



Groups are either parent or child groups. Parent groups may only contain one child group, and child groups may only have one parent group. In addition to child and parent groups, there are guest and default groups.

A guest group is automatically created by the system if guest access has been enabled. A default group is automatically assigned to new users who are not assigned to any other group. There is only one of each of these groups per customer.

Users contained in groups may be granted or restricted access to areas of the system at one time, instead of having to go to each individual user record to do so.

What is a Role?

A role is a container for permissions and content subtypes. On the Add/Edit Role page, all available permissions and content subtypes are listed with checkoxes for the administrator to add or remove access. Enabling the permission or content subtype means the role can perform the activity tied to the permission and also access content tied to the assigned subtype.

What is an Applicability?

An applicability is a piece of metadata that describes the content. Applicabilities are authored in the ONePUBS Content Management System (CMS) and released so they're available for selection in the ONeSOURCE Client under User Management. Applicabilities are tied to **Groups** only. Assigning an applicability to a group means the group can only access content that has the same applicability.

The current applicability types are:

- 1. Brand
- 2. Class
- 3. Customer
- 4. Industry
- 5. Location
- 6. Manufacturer
- 7. Product Category
- 8. Product Group
- 9. Product Line
- 10. Region
- 11. Serial Number Range
- 12. System
- 13. Subsystem

Once an applicability has been released from the CMS, it can be selected using the Add Applicability flyout on the Add/Edit Group screen.



Figure 21-2. Applicability Flyout - Closed

		Select Applicability					
Add Applicability SEARCH	(optional)		APPLICABILITY\$	TYPE\$			
		×	CMS	Product			
		×	Ohio	Region			
		×	ONA	Customer			
		+	ONEIL	Brand			

Figure 21-3. Applicability Flyout - Open

As with roles, applicabilities can be assigned by an administrator or inherited from the parent group.

Applicability		
ONEIL	Brand	
Ohio	Region	×
смѕ	Product	×
ONA	Customer	×

Figure 21-4. Sample Applicabilities Added to a Group

NOTE:

- a. The applicability type will be listed to the right of the applicability value (e.g., Brand, Region, Product, Customer, etc.).
- b. Applicabilities assigned by an administrator will also have an X beside them to show that they can be removed.
- c. Applicabilities that do not have an X are inherited from the parent group and can only be removed from the parent group.

Refer to Adding/Editing Groups for instructions on how to add or edit groups.



What is a Permission?

A permission is the smallest unit of control in the system. Permissions are used to control functionality that is not applicability- or content-specific.

There are three types of permissions: content access permissions, general permissions, and administration permissions. Content access permissions are *granted* to all users initially until they are constrained later by assigned roles. Most general permissions are granted while all administrative permissions are *denied* to all users until they are allowed later by an Administrator. All three permissions are read-only and only tied to **Roles**.

Content Access Permissions

Content Access		
🗹 Diagrams Catalog	General	🗹 Knowledge Model
Vewsletter	Operator & Maintenance Manual	✓ Parts Catalog
Service Manual	🗹 Training	

Figure 21-5. Content Access

Since users initially are granted access to all content types, all of the check boxes are checked until they are constrained later by the roles assigned.

General Permissions



Figure 21-6. General Permissions



Figure 21-7. Administrative Permissions

For general and administrative permissions, five general permissions and zero administrative permissions have been granted.

Effective Permissions

Effective permissions refer to the combination of permissions tied to roles assigned to both individual users and groups. This means a user can have permissions as a result of roles assigned to them by an Administrator, roles assigned to the group the user belongs to, and roles assigned to the parent group of a child group.

This can be best understood by looking at the permissions tied to a sample user, a child group, and its parent group.

Since permissions are ultimately tied to roles, let us look at the roles assigned to a sample user.

1. The user belongs to the ABC Group, and has three roles assigned.



Figure 21-8. Sample User Record - Groups and Roles



NOTE: The role with an X next to it indicates it was assigned by an Administrator. The roles that do not have an X beside them indicate they were inherited, either because they belong to the group assigned to the user, or because they belong to the parent group of the assigned group.

2. To view all assigned permissions, click on the View Permissions and key icon to the right of the Roles section.



Figure 21-9. View Permissions Icon

3. The complete list of Content Access, Administration, and General permissions will display in the upper right of the browser.



Figure 21-10. View All Permissions

4. To view the permissions assigned to an individual role, click on the square, highlighted area to the right of the role, or click on the role name. Clicking on the square to the right of the role will display the permissions in the same Add/Edit User screen.



Figure 21-11. Click on End of Row

Add/Edit User			Enabled			
Usemame		Add Applicability	optional	Effective Permissions		×
joe.user	×	SEARCH	Q	0)^
First Name		Add User Group	optional			
Joe	×	SEARCH	Q	Training		
Last Name		Add User Role(s)	optional	Administration Permission	ns	
User	×	SEARCH	Q			
Email		Notes	optional	General Permissions		
joe.user@oneil.com	×			Add/Edit Notes	Feedback	Pick List
Company Name	optional			Show Previously Viewed	Show Previously Viewed	
ABC Company	×			Content	Products	

Figure 21-12. Role Permissions



5. Clicking on the role name will open the Add/Edit Role screen in a new browser window to display the permissions.



Figure 21-13. Click on Role Name

Add/Edit Role	(3) V	fiew Groups 🎇	(2) View Us	ers	
Role Name		Add User(s)		optional	
Training Role	×	SEARCH			Q
Description	optional	Add Group(s)		optional	
	į	SEARCH			Q
Content Access					
Diagrams Catalog	General	Knowledge	Model		
Newsletter	Operator & Maintenance Manua	Parts Cata	log		
Service Manual	🗹 Training				
General Permissio	ons				
🗹 Add/Edit Notes	Browse	Feedback			
Pick List	Show Previously Viewed Content	✓ Show Prev Viewed Produ	iously cts		
Administration Pe	rmissions				
Access	Add/Edit	Add/Edit F	eedbacks		
Edit Default Groups	Edit Groups	Edit Roles			
Edit Users	View All Groups	View Announcemer	ıts		
View Feedbacks	View Groups	View Roles	;		
View Users					



6. The Training Role role is an example of one that has been inherited. Although inherited roles (and their permissions) cannot be removed from a user record directly, they can be removed by removing the group assigned to the user record.



7. Conversely, the Service Role is an example of one that was assigned by the Administrator because it has an X in the square area to the right of the role name. The role and its permissions can be removed from the user record by clicking on the X.

Content Families

Content families refer to the types of content available for viewing and searching in the ONeSOURCE Client. They are also called content permissions because, when granted to a role assigned to a user, they permit the user access to that content. As with feature permissions, content permissions are tied to roles. Since all content permissions are allowed initially, denying access to specifc content families must be done at the role level by unchecking the box for the content family to be excluded.

There are eight different content families/permissions under User Management:

- 1. Diagrams Catalog
- 2. General
- 3. Knowledge Model
- 4. Newsletter
- 5. Operator & Maintenance Manual
- 6. Parts Catalog
- 7. Service Manual
- 8. Training

Content families/permissions are selected from the Add/Edit Role screen.



Figure 21-15. Content Family Permissions

NOTE:

- a. Content access can be added or removed for a specific role by checking or unchecking the box beside the content family.
- b. Refer to Adding/Editing Roles for more information on adding/editing roles.

Content families/permissions can also be viewed on the Add/Edit User screen along with other effective permissions.



Inherited Applicability

User or Group Effective Applicability is based upon the applicability type values that have already been selected. This is achieved either by direct selection or by inherited selection. Direct selection is done by the Administrator actively selecting an applicability and assigning it to a user or group. Inherited selection refers to a user or group receiving or "inheriting" the same applicabilities that are assigned to a group. This is accomplished by the Administrator assigning the group to a user or child group account but not making any explicit changes to the applicabilities that come with them. In this case, the user inherits the applicabilities of the assigned group.

The following screenshots illustrate how inherited applicability works for a User.

Add/Edit User			Enabled
Username		Add Applicability	optional
joe.user	×	SEARCH	Q
First Name		Add User Group	optional
Joe	×	SEARCH	Q
Last Name		Add User Role(s)	optional
User	×	SEARCH	Q
Email		Notes	optional
joe.user@oneil.com	×		
Company Name	optional		
ABC Company	×		//
Group			
ABC Company	×	View Gro	up Applicability

Here is the user record for Joe User of ABC Company.

Figure 21-16. Sample User Record

NOTE: Some of the fields have been omitted in this example in order to save space.

This user is assigned to the ABC Company group. By clicking on the "View Group Applicability" link, all of the assigned group's applicabilities are displayed to the right of the user information.



Group Applicability	×
Brand	
Region	
🗹 US	
Product Line	
M All	
Customer	
■ All	
Industry	
M All	
Serial Number Range	
M All	
Product Group	
M All	
Product Category	
M All	
Class	
M All	
Location	
All	
System	
M All	
Subsystem	
M All	

Figure 21-17. Sample Group Applicabilities

NOTE: The list of group applicabilities can be closed by clicking the "x" at the top right of the list or by clicking anywhere on the screen that is off of list.

Immediately following the section of the user's account is the User Effective Applicability section. This section includes both explicit selections (those chosen by the Administrator) and inherited selections



(those passively chosen by the Administrator by assigning a group but not making any explicit selections).

User Effect	ive Applicability	
ONEIL	Brand	×
US	Region	×
PL 1	Product Line	×
PL 2	Product Line	×
All	Custo	omer
All	Ind	ustry
All	Serial Number R	ange
All	Product G	roup
Branch	Product Category	×
9717PC	Product Category	×
9923PC	Product Category	×
Class I	Class	×
Class II	Class	×
All	Loc	ation
All	Sy:	stem
All	Subsy	stem
All	Manufac	turer

Figure 21-18. Sample User Effective Applicability

By comparing the sample group applicabilities to the sample user effective applicabilities, one notices some similarities and some differences. The group has access to all product lines, whereas the user has access to the PL1 and PL2 product lines only. The user also has access to some of the applicabilities for Product Category and Class but not all of the ones assigned to the group. Conversely, the "All" value shown in the other applicability fields means the Administrator has not explicitly selected specific applicabilities for the user, so the user inherits all of these applicabilities from the assigned group.



Group Records

Inherited applicability in child group records works the same way it does for user records. In user records, the applicabilities in the assigned group will be inherited unless the Administrator performs an action to limit which applicabilities are assigned. In child group records, applicabilities in the parent group, if one exists, will be inherited unless the Administrator performs an action to limit which applicabilities are assigned.

Here is a sample Group record.

Add/Edit Group	🗹 Enabl		(2) View Grou	ip Users 💏
Group Name		Add Applica	ability	optional
ABC Company	×	SEARCH		Q
Description	optional	Assign Par	ent Group	optional
The ABC Company Group is for members of the ABC group only	US	SEARCH		٩
		Assign Role	e(s)	optional
	11	SEARCH		Q
		Add User(s)	optional
		SEARCH		Q
Parent Group				
ABC Parent	×		View Parer	t Applicability

Figure 21-19. Sample Group Record

NOTE: Some of the fields have been omitted in this example in order to save space.

This group is assigned to the ABC Parent group. By clicking the "View Parent Applicability" link, all the assigned parent group's applicabilities are displayed to the right of the user information.

Parent Applicability	×
Brand	
✓ ONEIL	
Region	
V us	
Product Line	
R AI	
Customer	
Z AI	
Industry	
Z AI	
Serial Number Range	
Z AII	
Product Group	
Z All	
Product Category	
✓ All	
Class	
All All	
Location	
All	
System	
All	
Subsystem	
M AI	

Figure 21-20. Sample Parent Group Applicabilities

NOTE: The list of parent group applicabilities can be closed by clicking on the "x" at the top right of the list or by clicking anywhere on the screen that is off of list.

Immediately following the section of the Parent Group section of the child group account is the Group Effective Applicability section. This section includes both explicit selections (those chosen by the



Administrator) and inherited selections (those passively chosen by the Administrator by assigning a group but not making any explicit selections).



Figure 21-21. Group Effective Applicability

By comparing the applicabilities assigned to the child group and the parent group in this example, one can see they are the same. That is, the child group has inherited all of the applicabilities in the parent group. This is designated by the text "All" in each of the child group applicabilities.

By having the applicabilities displayed in this way for user and child group records, Administrators can see which applicabilities are selected versus those that are inherited.

Users

Adding/Editing Users

1. Click the Administration tab.



Figure 21-22. Administration Tab

2. Select Users.





Figure 21-23. Users Option

3. Click Add User.



Figure 21-24. Add User Icon



Add User Information

Below is the list of Add/Edit User fields.

Search for Users, Groups, or Roles.	Q 🔭 Save User	CLOSE RESET PASSWORD
Add/Edit User	~	Send invite email
Username	Add Applicability SEARCH	optional Q
First Name	Add User Group SEARCH	optional
Last Name	Add User Role(s)	optional
Email	Notes	optional
Company Name optic	onal	<i>"</i>
Phone Number optic	onal	

Figure 21-25. Add/Edit User Screen

4. Enter a Username/Login ID (required).

Usernames may contain: any letter (upper or lowercase), any digit, or any of the following characters (hyphen [-], period [.], underscore [_], at symbol [@], or plus sign [+]). Maximum length for usernames is 50 characters.

Usernames for a specific content provider (an ONEIL external customer) must be unique.

- 5. Enter information for the remaining required fields.
 - First Name 1-30 characters
 - Last Name 1-30 characters
 - Email must contain the at symbol (@), at least one character, a period, and at least two characters; maximum length is 50 characters



- 6. Enter information for Company Name (1-50 characters) and Phone Number (can include hyphens, parentheses, or numbers only maximum length is 30 characters). These are both optional fields.
- 7. When viewing a record for an existing user, if the Enabled box is checked it means the user is active. To disable a user, uncheck this box.



Figure 21-26. Enabled Check Box

Completed Fields

Below is a sample user record showing these fields:

Add/Edit User	
Usemame	
joe.user	×
First Name	
Joe	×
Last Name	
User	×
Email	
joe.user@oneil.com	×
Company Name	optional
ABC Company	×
Phone Number	optional
1234567	×

Figure 21-27. Sample User Record



- 8. Add Applicability (optional):
- a. If a user is assigned to a group, they will inherit all the applicabilities of the group.
- b. Click the magnifying glass icon to open the flyout window and display the list of applicabilities.

NOTE: If the user is not assigned to a group, all applicabilities will display. If the user is assigned to a group, only the applicabilities assigned to the group will display.

c. To restrict the user to only some applicabilities assigned to the group, click the plus sign next to the applicability.

The screenshots below illustrates how this works.

Add/Edit User			Z Enabled	
Username		Add Applicability	optional	
joe.user	×	SEARCH		Q
First Name		Add User Group		
Joe	×	SEARCH		Q
Last Name		Add User Role(s)	optional	
User	×	SEARCH		Q
Email		Notes	optional	
joe.user@oneil.com	×			
Company Name	optional			
ABC Company	×		1.	
Phone Number	optional			
1234567	×			
Group				
ABC Company	×			
	View	Group Applicability		
Roles				
Training Role	<i>P</i>		View Permissions 🔎	
Administrator	۶			
Service	×			

ONeSOURCE Help February 2025

Figure 21-28. Add/Edit User Screen



In this example, the user has been assigned to the ABC Company group.

9. To restrict the user to only the ONEIL brand applicability, click the magnifying glass to the right of the Add Applicability search window.



Figure 21-29. Add Applicability

10. The Applicability window opens. Find the ONEIL brand applicability by typing "ONEIL" in the filter search window or selecting "Brand" from the drop-down menu below Type.

	NAME 🗘 Tilter	TYPE
+	ONEIL	Brand

Figure 21-30. Find Applicability

11. Click the plus sign next to the applicability. The plus sign will change to an X to show it has been added to the user record.

Selec	t User Applicability	×	<
3	NAME 🗘 Tilter	TYPE	
×	ONEIL	Brand	



12. The applicability will now display under the User Applicability section of the User record.





13. The ONEIL brand applicability now shows up under the User Applicability section of the Add/Edit User screen.





Figure 21-33. User Applicability Added

- 14. Add User Group (required):
- a. A user can only be a member of one group.
- b. A group can be a child (as part of another group) or a parent (contains another group).
- c. If the group is a child group, it can only belong to one parent group.
- d. If the group name is known, enter it in the search window and press Enter.





15. Alternatively, click on the magnifying glass icon to open the flyout window and display the list of available groups.

		Select Group			×
		NAME 🗢 TFilter	PARENT 🗢	STATUS DESCRIP	PTION
Add User Group	optional	+ 1 Child	<u>1 Parent</u>	Enabled	
SEARCH		+ <u>1 Parent</u>	None	Enabled test. 123	
		+ 10249 A	None	Enabled	

Figure 21-35. Select Group Flyout



a. Locate the group by going through the list of groups or by entering the name of the group in the name filter window. To add the user to a group, click the + sign next to the group. After clicking the + sign, it will change to an X.

Select Group			×
NAME 🗘 T Filter	PARENT 🗘 Tilter	STATUS	DESCRIPTION
+ 9722	None	Enabled	
X ABC Company	ABC Parent	Enabled	The ABC Company G
+ ABC Parent	None	Enabled	Parent group for ABC

Figure 21-36. Group After Selected

b. When the flyout window is closed either by clicking the **x** in the upper right corner of the **Select Group** window or by clicking on a blank area of the screen, the group will display under the **Group** header at the bottom of the **Add/Edit User** screen.



Figure 21-37. Assigned Groups

NOTE: The assigned group displays as a clickable link that, when clicked, will open the group record in a new browser tab for the Administrator to review the group without having to leave the user record they are working in.

Add User Roles (optional)

16. If the name of the role is known, enter it in the search window and press Enter.



Figure 21-38. Add Roles Field

A user must have at least one role assigned. Roles may be assigned to users by an Administrator or may be inherited from the assigned parent group.



17. Alternatively, click the magnifying glass icon to open the flyout window and display the list of available roles.

					×
			ROLE 🗘 Y Filter		DESCRIPTION
		+	<u>123</u>	Yes	asdfa 112222252858
		+	<u>A Role</u>	Yes	test
Assign Role(s)	optional	+	Access Admin	Yes	
SEARCH		+	Administrator	Yes	
		+	AdminNoViewAllGroups	Yes	
		+	AdminViewAllGroups	Yes	
		+	All content	No	

Figure 21-39. Roles Flyout

- 18. Locate the role by going through the list of roles or by entering the name of the role in the Role Filter window.
- 19. To assign a role to a user, click the + sign next to the role. After clicking the + sign, it will change to an X.

		Select Role(s)			×
		ROLE ≎ ▼Filter	ADMIN	DESCRIPTION	٦
		Training Role	No		
		+ Validation	No	yogo	
Assign Role(s)	optional	+ <u>View Groups</u>	Yes	View the groups, no edit	
SEARCH		+ <u>View Roles</u>	Yes	View roles, no edit	

Figure 21-40. Roles After Selection

20. When the flyout window is closed either by clicking the x in the upper right corner of the Select Role(s) window or by clicking on a blank area of the screen, the role will display under the Roles header at the bottom of the Add/Edit User screen.







NOTE: The assigned role displays as a clickable link that, when clicked, will open the role record in a new browser tab for the Administrator to review the role without having to leave the user record they are working in.

- 21. To view the permissions associated with a specific role, click the link for that role. The role will open in a new browser tab and will display the permissions associated to it.
- 22. To view permissions associated to all assigned roles, if more than one role exists, click the View Permissions icon to display a combined list of permissions.





A list of permissions will display at the top of the Add/Edit User screen.



Figure 21-43. View All Permissions

23. Enter text in the Notes field (optional).



Figure 21-44. Notes Field



NOTE: The Notes field is intended for internal use between administrators. Notes will not appear in the ONeSOURCE Client. If you want to expand the size of the Notes text box, click and drag the bottom right corner to the desired size.



Figure 21-45. Resizing the Notes Field

Saving User Information and Exiting

24. Click the **Save User** icon to save additions/edits. It is recommended to save work often as the session will time out after 30 minutes.



Figure 21-46. Save User Icon

25. Click the Close button to exit the Add/Edit User screen.



Figure 21-47. Close Button

Managing All Users

A list of all users is displayed when the Users option is selected under Administration.

1. Click on the **Administration** tab.



Figure 21-48. Administration Tab



2. Select Users.

Administration	
Users 🔶	
Groups	
Roles	

Figure 21-49. Users Tab



	Announcements H	lelp Support	Administration			
Administration	Q Search	n for Users, Groups, o	r Roles Add	User		
Users	All Users	;				
Groups	USERNAN TFilter	IE C FIRST N	NAME CLAST NAME	E \$ EMAIL \$	STATUS	
NOIC3	Daneb	David	Theorem	dave the being cost of	Enabled	No 📋
	development of	David	Thisten	dave theben@oneil.	Enabled	Yes 📋
Announcements	development	David	Theorem	dave the being point a	Enabled	Yes 💼
Feedback	discas.	Derek	Lucas	ducas@oneil.com	Enabled	Yes 📋
	dylan, sited	Dylan	NDHD-	dytax, stretugiones co	Enabled	Yes 📋
	EditAll	Edit	Al	edit@a.com	Enabled	Yes 💼
	EditGroup	<u>s</u> Edit	though	edit@g.com	Enabled	Yes 💼
	EditRoles	Edit	Roles	Edit@r.com	Enabled	Yes 💼
	EditUser	Edit	Uner	edit@u.com	Enabled	Yes 💼
	Devies:	t	t	twos slephersoniji	Enabled	No 💼
				1	23412	»

The list of all users is displayed.



NOTE:

- a. Each page lists 10 user names. If there are more than 10 user names, use the page numbers or arrows displayed at the bottom of each page to go to other pages.
- b. If text in the All Users list is longer than the width of its column, the entry will appear truncated followed by an ellipsis. To view the full text, hover the mouse over the entry.

All Users						
USERNAME 🗘	FIRST NAME 🗘	LAST NAME 🗘	EMAIL 🗘 Tilter	STATUS	ADMIN	
longuserfirstname.longuserla	longuserfirstname	longuserlastname	longuserfirstname.longuserla	Enabled	No	Ô

Figure 21-51.	Example of	Long User	Name
---------------	------------	-----------	------

All Users	Hover me	ouse over text to plete username					
USERNAME \$	serlastname	FIRST NAME 🗘	LAST NAME 🗘	EMAIL 🗘 Tilter	STATUS		
longuserfirstname.long	erfirstname.longuserlastname erfirstname.longuserla longuserfirstname	longuserlastname	longuserfirstname.longuserla	Enabled	No	Ô	

Figure 21-52. Example of Long User Name (Continued)



3. To sort the list of users in ascending or descending order, click anywhere in the column header for USERNAME, FIRST NAME, LAST NAME, or E-MAIL ADDRESS.





NOTE:

- a. The default display order is ascending by USERNAME.
- b. Each click on a column header changes the sort order between ascending or descending for that column.
- 4. To filter the users list, type the search criteria in any of the four filter fields. The search performed is a "starts with" search as opposed to a "contains" search, meaning the system will look for the search string at the beginning of the content and not in the middle of the content.

USERNAME \$ F		FIRST NAME 🗘	LAST NAME 🗘	EMAIL 🗘 TFilter	STATUS]
j <u>oe.user</u>		Joe	User	joe.user@oneil.com	Enabled	Yes	Ô



NOTE:

- a. The name "joe" has been entered in the USERNAME field to filter the list of users to content that matches.
- b. Clear text entered in a field by clicking on the X in the field.
- 5. To filter results by account status or by administrative status, use the drop-down boxes to select the desired value.



Figure 21-55. Status Drop-Down List





Figure 21-56. Admin Drop-Down List

6. To view a specific user record from the list of all users, click on a username to open the add/edit user page.



Figure 21-57. Add/Edit User Page

NOTE: Administrators cannot edit their own user records, although Super Administrators can.

- 7. Click the Close button to return to the list of all users.
- 8. To delete/remove a user from the all users list, click on the trash can icon on the right.
- 9. A pop-up message will display. Click Yes to confirm the deletion.

Confirm	×
Are you sure you want to delete this user? Deleting a user cannot be undone.	
Yes No	

Figure 21-58. Confirm Delete Pop-Up Message

Groups

Adding/Editing Groups

1. Click on the Administration tab.



Figure 21-59. Administration Tab



2. Select Groups.



Figure 21-60. Group Option

3. Click on Add Group.



Figure 21-61. Add Group Icon

4. The Add/Edit Group page displays.



Figure 21-62. Add/Edit Group Screen



5. Enter a name for the group in the Group Name field (required).



Figure 21-63. Group Name

NOTE:

- a. Maximum length for group names is 50 characters.
- b. Group names must be unique for each customer.
- 6. Enter a description for the group in the Description field (optional).

Description		
		10



The Description field is similar to the Notes field on the Add/Edit Users screen. The Description text box can be expanded by clicking and dragging the right corner of the text box. It can be used to describe the users that comprise the group, their activities, etc.



Figure 21-65. Resizing the Description Field
Assign an applicability.

- 7. A group within user management can have more than one applicability. There are multiple ways of assigning applicability to a group:
 - a. Enter the name or type of the desired applicability in the Add Applicability field, if known, and press Enter (or click the Magnifying Glass Icon).



NOTE: The text "brand" has been entered in the Add Applicability window.

Selec	t Applicability	×
	APPLICABILITY 🗘	TYPE
+	CJ Brand	Brand
+	CAJ Brand	Brand
+	Brand10249	Brand
+	Brand w/ ext	Brand
+	Brand 6	Brand

Figure 21-66. Add Applicability

Figure 21-67. Filtered Applicability



b. Alternatively, leave the Add Applicability window blank and click on the magnifying glass icon to open the list of available applicabilities.

Selec	t Applicability	×
	APPLICABILITY 🗘	TYPE
+	xyz1234-xyz5678	Serial Number Range
+	XYZ1234-XYZ1234	Serial Number Range
+	XXXX10000A-XXXX2	Serial Number Range
+	Women's	Product Line
+	Wilson	Customer
+	Widget	Product Line
+	Welcome	Brand
+	WEB HELP DOC	Customer
+	Water	Product Group
+	Wagon	Customer
		1 2 3 4 20 »

Figure 21-68. All Applicabilities

NOTE:

- a. Each applicability page can display up to 10 items. If there are more than 10 items total, use the page numbers or arrows displayed below each page to navigate to other pages.
- b. Use the up or down arrows beside the APPLICABILITY header to display the items in the list in ascending or descending alphabetical order.
 - c. Yet another option for selecting the desired applicability is to use the TYPE drop-down list to filter the list of available choices.

Selec	t Applicability	×	
	APPLICABILITY 🗘	TYPE	Select a Type filter to see
+	000000-0000000	Brand Region	choices for that type only
+	02f615258x-02f6152	Product Line Customer	
+	100K10000C-100K20	Serial Number Range Product Group	
+	10702 CT	Product Category Class Location	
+	11112 PC	System Subsystem	
+	11112 PG	Product Group	
+	120K20001C-120K30	Serial Number Range	
+	150K40001C-150K50	Serial Number Range	
+	15153	Customer	
+	1bc2a7b23-1bc2cd591	Serial Number Range	
		1 2 3 4 20 »	

Figure 21-69. Type Drop-Down List

Selec	t Applicability	×
	APPLICABILITY 🗘 TFilter	TYPE Brand V
+	Welcome	Brand
+	Organism	Brand
+	ONEIL	Brand
+	Nestle	Brand
+	HELP	Brand
+	Coffee	Brand
+	CJ Brand	Brand
+	Cardinals	Brand
+	CAJ Brand	Brand
+	Brand10249	Brand
		1 2 »



- d. Click on the plus sign beside an applicability to add it. More than one applicability can be seleced.
- e. After clicking on a plus sign, it will change to an X.

Selec	t Applicability	×
	APPLICABILITY 🗘	TYPE
+	000000-0000000	Serial Number Range
+	02f615258x-02f6152	Serial Number Range
+	100K10000C-100K20	Serial Number Range
×	10702 CT	Customer
+	11112 PC	Product Category
+	11112 PG	Product Group
+	120K20001C-120K30	Serial Number Range
+	150K40001C-150K50	Serial Number Range
+	15153	Customer
+	1bc2a7b23-1bc2cd591	Serial Number Range

Figure 21-71. Selected Applicability

8. After selecting applicabilites and closing the Select Applicability window (by clicking the x in the upper right corner of the window or by clicking a blank area of the screen), the selected applicabilities will display under Applicability at the bottom of the Add/Edit Group page.



Figure 21-72. Applicability

Assign a parent group.

- 9. A child group can only belong to one parent group, and a parent group can only have one child group.
 - a. If the name of the parent group is known, enter it in the search window and press Enter or click the Magnifying Glass icon.



Figure 21-73. Assign Parent Group

NOTE: The text "abc parent" has been entered.

The Select Group window will open and show all groups, both child and parent, that satisfy the search term.

Se	elect Group			×
	NAME 🗘 Tilter	PARENT 🗢	STATUS	DESCRIPTION
>	ABC Parent	None	Enabled	Parent group for ABC

Figure 21-74. Select Group



b. Alternatively, click the Magnifying Glass icon without entering any text in the Assign Parent Group field to open the flyout window to display all available groups.

Select Group			×
NAME 🗘 Tilter	PARENT 🗘 TFilter	STATUS	DESCRIPTION
+ <u>9722</u>	None	Enabled	
+ ABC Parent	None	Enabled	Parent group for ABC
+ abe	None	Enabled	
+ Access Group Test	None	Enabled	22 32-46-8598??
+ Admin - Groups	None	Enabled	test group with no ap
+ <u>b1</u>	None	Enabled	
+ Brand 6	None	Enabled	
+ Brownie	None	Enabled	
+ <u>bug-10496</u>	None	Enabled	Testing if I can add a
+ Bug10662	None	Enabled	
		«	1 2 3 4 5 7 »

Figure 21-75. All Groups

10. To add a parent group, click on the + sign beside it.

- Select Group × NAME 🗘 PARENT 🗘 STATUS DESCRIPTION **Filter** Filter ~ <u>9722</u> None Enabled ABC Parent Enabled Parent group for ABC ... None None Enabled abe Access Group Test None Enabled 22 32-46-8598?? Admin - Groups None Enabled test group with no ap ... Enabled None b1 Enabled Brand 6 None Brownie None Enabled bug-10496 None Enabled Testing if I can add a ... Bug10662 None Enabled
- 11. After clicking on the + sign, it will change to an x.

Figure 21-76. Parent Group Selected

12. After selecting the parent group and closing the Select Group window (by clicking the x in the upper right corner of the window or by clicking a blank area of the screen), the group will display under Parent Group at the bottom of the Add/Edit Group page.



Figure 21-77. Parent Group

NOTE: The parent group displays as a clickable link that, when clicked, will open the group record in a new browser tab for the Administrator to review the parent group without having to leave the group record they are working in.

13. The Enabled checkbox at the top of the Add/Edit Group screen should already be checked by default. This is what makes the group account active in the system. To disable a group, uncheck this box.





Figure 21-78. Enabled Checkbox

- 14. Assign a role or roles to the group (optional).
 - a. If the name of the role is known, enter it in the search window and press enter or click on the magnifying glass icon.

	Selec	Select Role(s)			
		ROLE 🗘 Trilter	ADMIN DESCRIPTION		
	+	Train	No		
	×	Training Role	No		
Assign Role(s) optional					
train X					

Figure 21-79. Assign Role Window

b. Alternatively, you can leave the Assign Role window blank and press enter or click on the magnifying glass icon to open the flyout and display all roles.

,			Select Role(s)			
			ROLE \$	ADMIN	DESCRIPTION	٦
		+	<u>123</u>	Yes	asdfa 112222252858	
		+	<u>A Role</u>	Yes	test	
Assign Role(s)	optional	+	Access Admin	Yes		
SEARCH		+	Administrator	Yes		
		+	AdminNoViewAllGroups	Yes		
		+	AdminViewAllGroups	Yes		
		+	<u>All content</u>	No		
		+	All content except Parts	No		
		+	Announcement mana	Yes		
		+	Announcement nothi	Yes		
					1 2 3 4	5 »

Figure 21-80. All Roles

NOTE:

If there are more than ten roles, use the screen numbers on the bottom right of the Roles window to scroll through the list.

Enter text in the search box for Role to filter the list based on the text entered.



- 15. Click on the plus sign beside the role to add it.
- 16. After a role is selected, the plus sign will change to an X.

Sele	ct Role(s)		×
	ROLE \$	ADMIN	DESCRIPTION
×	Training Role	No	
+	Validation	No	yogo
+	View Groups	Yes	View the groups, no edit
+	View Roles	Yes	View roles, no edit
+	View Users	Yes	View users, no edit
+	xAdminRole	Yes	Admin Role for test u
+	<u>XParts</u>	Yes	For users that are onl
			« 1 2 3 4 5

Figure 21-81. Selecting Roles

a. After selecting the role, close the Select Role window by clicking on the x in the upper right corner or clicking a blank area of the screen. The role you selected will display at the bottom of the Add Role page under the Roles header.





NOTE: The selected roles display as clickable link(s) that, when clicked, will open each role record in a new browser tab for the Administrator to review the roles without having to leave the group record they are working in.



- 17. Add users to the group (optional). A group can have multiple users assigned to it.
 - a. If the name of the user is known, enter it in the search window and press enter or click on the Magnifying Glass icon.



Figure 21-83. Add User(s)

b. Alternatively, click on the Magnifying Glass icon to open the flyout to display all users.

Sele	ect User(s)				×
Γ	USERNAME 🗘	FIRST NAME 🗘	LAST NAME 🗘	EMAIL 🗘 TFilter	STATUS Enabled
+	Alice3	Alice	Anon	tannis paventijon	Enabled
+	<u>all1</u>	Dumby	Lody	twosy shepherson@n	Enabled
+	<u>Alpha</u>	Alpha	User	4sariers@gnail.com	Enabled
+	encies	Adam	Marines	alan merkes@onel	Enabled
+	americana	asdf	asdf	anontano-@onel.com	Enabled
+	manale	Angie	Ruby	angle nitly () analisons	Enabled
+	another.user	Another	User	termis peurostiĝon	Enabled
+	april ment	April	Seat	apit searagonet com	Enabled
+	auser	abc	а	hinabra aliĝoral som	Enabled
+	100 C	Brian	50	Mill@unvil.com	Enabled
				« 1 2 3 4	5 12 »

Figure 21-84. Display All Users

c. To add a user, click on the plus sign beside the user's name.

Selec	t User(s)				×
	USERNAME 🗘	FIRST NAME 🗘	LAST NAME 🗘	EMAIL \$	STATUS Enabled
+	Alice3	Alice	Anon	tennis prveotijon	Enabled
+	<u>all1</u>	Durity	Lotin	taciyatephenon@c	Enabled
+ 4	Alpha	Alpha	User	4 sovier m@gmail.com	Enabled
+	and an	Adam	Merkee	elen metienijorali	Enabled
×	enorieco	asdf	asdf	amoniano@onal.com	Enabled
+	erais adu	Angie	Ruby	angie ruby@uneil.com	Enabled
+	another.user	Another	User	tammis ganvood@on	Enabled
+	epil.com	April	Sears	no langeaseings	Enabled
+	auser	abc	а	hissing aligned over	Enabled
+	108	Brian	H	teligent.com	Enabled
				« 1 2 3 4	

18. After a user is selected, the plus sign will change to an x.

Figure 21-85. Selected User

- 19. After selecting users, close the Select User window by clicking on the x in the upper right corner or clicking a blank area of the screen.
- 20. The number of users added to the group will display as a counter beside the View Group Users icon.



Figure 21-86. View Group Users Counter

21. Click on the View Group Users icon to view the list of users assigned to the group.

Users assigned to (unsaved changes are no	o this group ot reflected)		×
USERNAME \$	FIRST NAME 🗘	LAST NAME 🗘	EMAIL \$
enschen	Anthony	Montano	anoniano@onal.com

Figure 21-87. Assigned Group Users

22. After adding all group information, click on the Save Group icon to save edits. It is recommended to save often while adding group information as it will be lost if the session times out after approximately 30 minutes of incactivity.





Figure 21-88. Save Group

23. Click on the Close button beside the Save Group icon to exit the Add/Edit Group page.

Viewing Permissions

1. To view permissions associated with assigned and inherited roles, click View Permissions icon at the bottom or the Add/Edit Group page in the Roles section.

View Permissions

Figure 21-89. View Permissions

2. The list of effective permissions will display on the upper right of the Add/Edit Group page.

Effective Permissions		×
Content Access		
Diagrams Catalog	General	Mowledge Model
Vewsletter	Operator & Maintenance Manual	Parts Catalog
Service Manual	🗹 Training	
Administration Permission	5	
Access Administration	Add/Edit Announcements	Add/Edit Feedbacks
Edit Default Groups	Edit Groups	Edit Roles
🗹 Edit Users	Super Administrator	View All Groups
View Announcements	View Feedbacks	View Groups
View Roles	View Users	
General Permissions		
Add/Edit Notes	Browse	V Feedback
Pick List	Show Previously Viewed	Show Previously Viewed Products

Figure 21-90. Effective Permissions



View Group Applicability

All applicabilities assigned to the Group are listed under Group Effective Applicability towards the bottom of the Add/Edit Group screen. This section appears after Parent Group information and before Role information.

Group Effective Applicability					
ONEIL	Brand >				
US	Region >				
Bike	Product Line				
Widget	Product Line >				
All	Custom	er			
All	Indust	ny j			
All	Serial Number Rang	je			
All	Product Grou	ıp			
All	Product Catego	ry _			
All	Clas	ss			
All	Locatio	on			
All	Syste	m			
All	Subsyste	m			
All	Manufacture	er			

Figure 21-91. Group Effective Applicability

Please note applicability categories and their values will vary by customer. The ones shown in the screenshot above are just for illustration purposes.

Some things to keep in mind when working with applicabilities at the group level:

- A group does not have to have a parent group assigned.
- If one is assigned, a group can only have one parent.
- If no applicabilities are assigned to a group by an Administrator, and the group in question has a parent, the group will inherit the applicabilities assigned to the parent group.
- If a group record originally inherited applicability from its parent group for a given category, and then later the group record was manually changed to have less applicability, the group will lose the other applicabilities belonging to the category.
- A group cannot have *more* applicability in a given category than its parent group, if one exists.
- A user assigned to a group cannot have more applicability in a given category than their assigned group, if one exists.



If a group record is modified to have less applicability than any of its assigned users, the system will generate the following error:



Figure 21-92. Error When a User Has More Applicability than the Group

View Parent Group Applicability

To view applicability assigned to a group's parent group while inside the child group record, click on View Parent Applicability which appears in the Parent Group section.



Figure 21-93. View Parent Applicability

A read-only list of all applicabilities assigned to the parent group will display to the right of the child group information.

Add/Edit Group	Enabled	(2) View Group Use	ers 💦	
Group Name	Add	Applicability	optional	Parent Applicability
ABC Company	X SE	ARCH	Q	Brand
Description opt	ional Assi	gn Parent Group	optional	
The ABC Company Group is for US members of the ABC group only	SE	ARCH		
	Assi	gn Role(s)	optional	Region
	// SE	ARCH	Q	🗹 us
	Add	User(s)	optional	
	SE	ARCH		Product Line
Required	Has	Default	optional	✓ All
US accounts	×			Customer
SSN opt	ional MinL	ength	optional	
				A II
MaxLength opt	ional Min	MaxLength	optional	Industry
Optional opt	ional			
				Serial Number Range
				II All
Parent Group				Product Crown
ABC Parent	×	View Parent App	licability	Parent Applicability
	_			
Group Effective Applicabili	ty			Product Category
ONEI				All
Brand				
US Region	×			Class
Bike Product Line	×			All

Figure 21-94. Parent Applicability

Please note applicability categories and their values will vary by customer. The ones shown in the screenshot above are just for illustration purposes.

Some things to keep in mind when working with applicabilities at the parent group level:

- A parent group can have multiple child groups, but a child group can only have one assigned parent group.
- A parent group will either have more applicabilities in a given category than its child groups, or it will have the same applicabilities. It cannot have fewer applicabilities than its children.
 For example, Product Line applicability has been set to All for the parent group in the above screenshot while for the group record it has been set to Bike. This is allowed. The reverse would not be allowed as the group record would have more Product Line applicability than its parent group.
- If no applicability is manually assigned to a group, it will inherit the applicabilities of its parent group, if one has been assigned.
- Parent applicability can also be viewed by clicking on the name of the parent group shown in the screenshot. Doing so will open the parent group record in a new browser window.
- To change applicability assigned to the parent group, it needs to be done to the parent group record.



Edit Default Group

2.

A default group is assigned to a user automatically when a group is not assigned to them by an Administrator. The default group does not include any Administrators or Super Administrators.

Adminstrators can edit the default group from the Groups option under Adminstration. To edit the settings for the default group:

1. Click on the Administration tab.



Figure 21-96. Group Tab



3. The All Groups page displays.

All Groups				
NAME 🗘 Tilter	PARENT 🗘 Tilter	STATUS	DESCRIPTION	
Group 1	None	Enabled	Admin role	Î
Group 2	Group 1	Enabled	View role	Ô
Group 3	None	Enabled	Admin Role	Ô
Group 4	None	Enabled	Testing applicability	Ô
EDIT DEFAULT GROUP)			



4. Click on the Edit Default Group button at the bottom of the page.



Figure 21-98. Edit Default Group Button





5. The current settings for the default group will display.

Figure 21-99. Default Group Settings

NOTE: With the exception of Group Name and the list of users displayed after clicking on the View Group Users icon, which are read-only and cannot be edited, all other fields can be edited.

6. Refer to Adding/Editing Groups for instructions for editing group records, including adding applicabilities and roles.

7. Click the Save Group icon at the top of the Add/Edit Group page to save changes.



Figure 21-100. Save Group

8. Click the Close button beside the Save Group icon to return to the All Groups page.

Edit Guest Group

The Guest group is for users who do not log into the ONeSOURCE Client but click on the Continue as Guest option (if this option is available to the customer). If the customer configuration supports guest access, it is set up by an Administrator with limited functionality. Administrator or Super Administrator roles cannot be added to the Guest group.



Figure 21-101. Guest Group Sign-In



To edit the settings of the guest group:

1. Click on the Administration tab.





2. Click on Groups.

Administration
Users
Groups
Roles

Figure 21-103. Groups Tab

3. The All Groups page displays.

All Groups				
NAME 🗘 Tilter	PARENT 🗘 Tilter	STATUS	DESCRIPTION	
<u>1 Child</u>	<u>1 Parent</u>	Enabled		Ô
<u>1 Parent</u>	None	Enabled	test. 123	Ô
<u>10249 A</u>	None	Enabled		Ô
<u>10249 B</u>	<u>10249 A</u>	Enabled		Ô
<u>10249 C</u>	<u>10249 B</u>	Enabled		Ô
<u>10506-1</u>	None	Enabled	test	Ô
<u>10506-2</u>	None	Enabled	test	Ô
2 Child	<u>1 Parent</u>	Enabled		Ô
<u>5150</u>	None	Enabled		Ô
9698 Bug Test	None	Enabled	Test for the 10034	Ô
EDIT DEFAULT GROUP	EDIT GUEST GROUP)	12347	»

Figure 21-104. All Groups Page

4. Click on the Edit Guest Group button at the bottom of the page.



Figure 21-105. Edit Guest Group Button



5. The current settings for the default group will display.

Add/Edit Group		🗹 Ena	bled
Group Name		Add Applicability	optional
Guest		SEARCH	Q
Description	optional	Assign Role(s)	optional
test		SEARCH	a la
	1.		
Required		HasDefault	optional
t	×		×
SSN	optional	MinLength	optional
MaxLength	optional	MinMaxLength	optional
Optional	optional		
Applicability			
ONEIL	Brand X		
Roles		View	Permissions 🔎
Guest User Roles	\sim ×		

Figure 21-106. Guest Group Settings

NOTE:

- a. With the exception of Group Name, which is read-only and cannot be edited, all other fields can be edited.
- b. You cannot view users assigned to the Guest group. This is because they do not actually have accounts in the system. Guest user accounts are given usernames that are generated by the system.
- 6. Refer to Adding/Editing Groups for instructions for editing group records, including adding applicabilities and roles.
- 7. Click the Save Group icon at the top of the Add/Edit Group page to save changes.



Figure 21-107. Save Group



8. Click the Close button beside the Save Group icon to return to the All Groups page.

Manage All Groups

The list of all groups is displayed when the Groups option is selected under Administration.

1. Click on the **Administration** tab.



Figure 21-108. Administration Tab

2. Select Groups.



Figure 21-109. Groups Tab



Administration	Q Search for a produ	ict	Ad	ld Group	
Users	All Groups				
Groups	NAME 🗘	PARENT \$	STATUS	DESCRIPTION	
Roles	<u>9734</u>	None	Enabled		Ô
	ABC Group - Non-US	ABC Group - Parent	Enabled	ABC Group Non-US is a group tha	Ô
Announcements	ABC Group - Parent	None	Enabled	The ABC group is for US and non	Ô
Feedback	ABC Group - US	ABC Group - Parent	Enabled	ABC Group US is a group that con	Ô
	agroup	None	Enabled		Ô
	group	None	Enabled		Ô
	Group 1	agroup	Enabled		Ô
	group 2	g <u>roup 3</u>	Enabled	test	Ô
	group 3	None	Enabled	brand 2 applic	Ô
	group 4	None	Enabled	admin role	Ô
	EDIT DEFAULT GROUP	P EDIT GUEST G	ROUP	1 2	»

3. The list of all groups is displayed.

Figure 21-110. List of Groups

NOTE:

- a. Each page lists 10 groups. If there are more than 10 groups, use the page numbers or arrows displayed at the bottom of each page to go to other pages.
- b. If text in the All Groups list is longer than the width of its column, the entry will appear truncated followed by an ellipsis. To view the full text, hover the mouse over the entry.

All Groups				
NAME 🗘 Tilter	PARENT 🗘	STATUS	DESCRIPTION	
<u>9722</u>	None	Enabled		Ô
ABC Company	None	Enabled	The ABC Company Group is for U	Î



All Groups					
NAME 🗘 Tilter	PARENT 🗘	STATUS	DESCRIPTION The ABC Company Group is for	H	over mouse over text to iew complete description
<u>9722</u>	None	Enabled	US members of the ABC group only	Î	
ABC Company	None	Enabled	The ABC Company Group is for U	· 💼	

Figure 21-112. Example of Long Description (Continued)

4. To sort the list of groups, click anywhere in the column header for NAME or PARENT.

Click anywhere in these headers to change the sort order

NAME 🗘	PARENT 🗘	
T Filter	Filter	

Figure 21-113. Column Headers

NOTE:

- a. The default display is ascending by NAME.
- b. Each click on a column header changes the sort order between ascending or descending for that column.
- 5. To filter the list of groups, type the search criteria in either the NAME or PARENT filters. The search performed is a "starts with" search as opposed to a "contains" search, meaning the system will look for the search string at the beginning of the content and not in the middle of the content.

All Groups				
NAME 🗘	PARENT 🗘	STATUS	DESCRIPTION	
ABC Group - Non-US	ABC Group - Parent	Enabled	ABC Group Non-US is a group tha	Ô
ABC Group - US	ABC Group - Parent	Enabled	ABC Group US is a group that con	Ô





NOTE:

- a. The text "abc" has been entered in the PARENT field to filter content that matches.
- b. Clear text entered in a filter field by clicking on the X in that field.
- 6. To filter results by a group's status, use the drop-down box and select the desired status.



Figure 21-115. Status Drop-Down List

7. To view a specific group record from the list of all groups, click on its name.

Add/Edit Grou	р	🗹 Ena	abled	(1) View Group Us	ers 🔭	
Group Name			Add Applica	bility	optional	
ABC Group - US		×	SEARCH			Q
Description			Assign Pare	nt Group	optional	
ABC Group US is a US users only of th	a group that cont ie ABC parent gr	ains oup	SEARCH			Q
			Assign Role	(S)	optional	
		10	SEARCH			Q
			Add User(s)	1	optional	
			SEARCH			Q
Applicability			Parent G	roup		
Applicability	Brand		Parent G	roup p - Parent	×	
Applicability ONEIL Ohio	Brand Region	×	Parent G	roup p - Parent	×	
Applicability ONEIL Ohio CMS	Brand Region Product Line	×	Parent G	roup p - Parent	×	
Applicability ONEIL Ohio CMS ONA	Brand Region Product Line Customer	× × ×	Parent G	roup p - Parent	×	
Applicability ONEIL Ohio CMS ONA	Brand Region Product Line Customer	× × ×	Parent G	roup p - Parent	×	
Applicability ONEIL Ohio CMS ONA Roles	Brand Region Product Line Customer	× × ×	Parent G	roup p - Parent View Permiss	x sions 2	

Figure 21-116. Add/Edit Group Page

8. To view the users in the group, click on the View Group Users icon.



Figure 21-117. View Group Users Icon



NOTE: A counter displays next to the icon that shows the number of users in the group.

9. A pop-up window opens displaying the users included in the group.

Users assigned (unsaved changes are	to this group not reflected)				×
USERNAME \$	FIRST NAME \$	LAST NAME 🗘	EMAIL 🗘	STATUS	
j <u>oe.user</u>	Joe	User	joe.user@oneil.com	Enabled	Yes
j <u>ohn.q.public</u>	John Q	Public	john.q.public@oneil.c	Enabled	Yes

Figure 21-118. Assigned Users Window

- 10. To delete/remove a group from the list of all groups, you must first remove its users. If all the users in the group have already been disabled, you can delete the group.
- 11. If you try to delete a group with enabled users the following error message will display.



Figure 21-119. Error Pop-Up Message

12. Once all of users in the group have been removed, click on the trash can icon on the right of the group record to delete it.



13. A pop-up message will display. Click the Yes button to confirm deletion.

Confirm			1
Are you s users with and any removed	sure you want t this group will permissions th I. Deleting a gro	to delete this have the grou he group gran oup cannot be	group? All up removed ts will be e undone.
	Yes	No	

Figure 21-120. Confirm Delete Pop-Up Message

Edit Default and Guest Groups

The Default group is assigned to users automatically, when a group is not assigned to them by an Administrator. The default group does not contain any users who are Administrators or Super Administrators.

The Guest group is for users who do not log into the ONeSOURCE Client but sign in as guests, if this option exists. If the customer group supports group access, it is set up by an Administrator with limited functionality. Administrator or Super Administrator roles cannot be added to the Guest group.

Refer to Edit Default Group and Edit Guest Group for instructions on editing these groups.

Roles

Adding/Editing Roles

1. Click on the **Administration** tab.





2. Select Roles.



Figure 21-122. Roles

3. Click on the Add Role icon.



Figure 21-123. Add Role



4. The Add/Edit Role page opens.



Figure 21-124. Add/Edit Role Page



5. Enter a name for the role (required).



Figure 21-125. Role Name

NOTE: Role names must be unique across the system. Before entering a name for a role that may already exist, use the search window on the Add/Edit Role page to see a record exists for that name.



Figure 21-126. Search Window

6. Add a description of the role in the Description field (optional).

Description		

Figure 21-127. Description

The Description field is similar to the Notes field on the **Add/Edit Users** screen. The Description text box can be expanded by clicking and dragging the bottom right corner.



Figure 21-128. Expand Description Box



7. Add users (optional).





- a. If the name of the user is known, enter it in the search window and press enter or click on the Magnifying Glass icon.
- b. Alternatively, leave the Add User(s) window blank and click on the Magnifying Glass icon to open the flyout to display all users.

Sele	ct User(s)				×
	USERNAME 🗘	FIRST NAME 🗘	LAST NAME 🗘	EMAIL 🗘 TFilter	STATUS Enabled V
+	Alice3	Alice	Anon	tanvnis garvoodgon	Enabled
+	<u>all1</u>	Ounity	Lody	Twosy shepherson@n	Enabled
+	<u>Alpha</u>	Alpha	User	4seriem@gnal.com	Enabled
+	entin	Adam	Marken	alan.merkes@onel	Enabled
+	attention	asdf	asdf	anostano@onei.com	Enabled
+	tomotix:	Angie	Pulty	angia naby@amail.com	Enabled
+	another.user	Another	User	termis peurooi@en	Enabled
+	april ment	April	Seat	apit seen gonet.com	Enabled
+	auser	abc	а	hinaba alignati any	Enabled
+	88	Brian	-	Millipseni con	Enabled
				« 1 2 3 4	5 12 »

Figure 21-130. All Users

- 8. To add a user, click on the plus sign beside the username.
- 9. After clicking the plus sign, it will turn to an X.

Sele	ect User(s)				×
	USERNAME 🗘	FIRST NAME 🗘	LAST NAME 🗘	EMAIL 🗘 T Filter	STATUS Enabled
+	Alice3	Alice	Anon	termin proceediges	Enabled
+	<u>all1</u>	Dunks	Lody	have stightened to	Enabled
+	<u>Alpha</u>	Alpha	User	4 several pratices	Enabled
+	amerikas	Adam	Horizon	scianumeniaes@oneil	Enabled
×	amontana	Anthony	Ibetaru	amontano@onali.com	Enabled
+	execution	Angie	Rates	angia nubudjamak com	Enabled
+	another.user	Another	User	tammis ganvood@on	Enabled
+	concises	April	lines	epileeen@enal.com	Enabled
+	auser	abc	а	biseles aligned are	Enabled
+	108	Brian	158	thigh out can	Enabled
				« 1 2 3 4	5 12 »

Figure 21-131. Select Users

- 10. When finished adding users, close the flyout window either by clicking the **x** in the upper right corner of the Select User(s) window, or by clicking a blank area of the screen.
- 11. Add group(s) (optional).
 - a. If the name of the group is known, enter it in the search window and press enter.



Figure 21-132. Add Group(s)

b. Alternatively, click on the magnifying glass icon to open the flyout and display all groups.

Sele	ect Group			×
Γ	NAME\$	PARENT\$	STATUS	DESCRIPTION
+	<u>9267 group</u>	Parent	Enabled	
+	ABC Group	<u>9267 group</u>	Enabled	The ABC Group-1 is f

Figure 21-133. Select Group



c. To add a group, click on the plus sign beside the group name. Clicking on the plus sign will change it to an X.



Figure 21-134. Select Group

d. Close the flyout window either by clicking the x in the upper right corner of the Select Group window, or by clicking blank area of the screen.

NOTE: Before a role is assigned to a group or user, the counter displayed beside each category is zero.



Figure 21-135. View Groups and View Users Counters

e. Click the Save Role icon to save your work. The counters will be updated to show how many groups and/or users have been added.



Figure 21-136. View Users Counter

12. Edit Content Access.

The Content Access section lists the content a role can access. If a box is checked, it means access is granted. To remove access, uncheck the box next to the content type.







13. Edit Permissions.

The General and Administration Permissions sections list the permissions granted to a role. If a box is checked, it means the permission is granted. To remove access, uncheck the box next to the permission. When an Administrator creates a new role, the five General permissions checked below are already granted because they are inherited from the default group.

General Permissions					
✓ Add/Edit Notes	Browse	Feedback			
🗹 Pick List	Show Previously Viewed Content	Show Previously Viewed Products			



Administration Permissions					
Access Administration	Add/Edit	Add/Edit Feedbacks			
Edit Default Groups	Edit Groups	Edit Roles			
Edit Users	View All Groups	View Announcements			
View Feedbacks	View Groups	View Roles			
View Users					

Figure 21-139. Administration Permissions

14. When all information has been entered for the role, click on the Save Role icon to save your changes. It is recommended to save often while adding information as session times out after approximately 30 minutes of inactivity.



Figure 21-140. Save Role

15. Click on the Close button to exit the Add/Edit Role screen.



Figure 21-141. Close Button



Managing All Roles

The list of all roles is displayed when the Roles option is selected under Administration.

1. Click on the **Administration** tab.

		Announcements	Help	Support	Administration
		Figure 21-142. Adm	inistration	Tab	
2.	Select Roles .				
		Administrat	tion		
		Users			
		Groups			
		Roles			

Figure 21-143. Roles Tab
3. The list of all roles is displayed.

All Roles			
ROLE 🗘	ADMIN	DESCRIPTION	
<u>123</u>	Yes	asdfa 112222252858	Ô
A Role	Yes	test	Ô
Access Admin	Yes		Ô
Administrator	Yes		Ô
AdminNoViewAllGroups	Yes		Ô
AdminViewAllGroups	Yes		Ô
Announcement management	Yes		Ô
Announcement nothing else	Yes		Ô
Announcement Viewing	Yes		Î
Client	No	tester	Ô
		12345	5 »

Figure 21-144. List of Roles

NOTE:

- a. Each page lists 10 roles. If there are more than 10 roles, use the page numbers or arrows displayed at the bottom of each page to go to other pages.
- b. If text in the All Roles list is longer than the width of its column, the entry will appear truncated followed by an ellipsis. To view the full text, hover the mouse over the entry.

All Roles		
ROLE 🗘 Tilter	ADMIN	DESCRIPTION
Super Admin	Yes	Super Admin role. This role





All Roles				
ROLE 🗘 Trilter	ADMIN	DESCRIPTION Super Admin role. This role cannot be modified.	/	Nover mouse over text to view complete description
Super Admin	Yes	Super Admin role. This role		

Figure 21-146. Example of Long Description (Continued)

4. To sort the list of roles, click anywhere in the column header for **ROLE**.



Figure 21-147. Column Header

NOTE: The default display order is *ascending by ROLE*.

5. To filter the list of roles, enter text in the ROLE field. The search performed is a "starts with" search as opposed to a "contains" search, meaning the system will look for the search string at the beginning of the content and not in the middle of the content.

All Roles		
ROLE ≎ ▼train	ADMIN DESCRIPTION	
Train	No	Ô
Training Role	No	Ô

Figure 21-148. Filtered List

NOTE:

- a. The text "train" has been entered in the ROLE field to filter content that matches.
- b. Clear text entered in a filter field by clicking on the x.

6. To filter results by ADMIN status, select a value from the drop-down list.



Figure 21-149. ADMIN Drop-Down List

7. To view a specific role from the **All Roles** list, click on the role name.

Add/Edit Role	(3) V	ïew Groups 💏	(2) View Users	
Role Name		Add User(s)	optional	
Training Role	×	SEARCH		Q
Description	optional	Add Group(s)	optional	
		SEARCH		Q
	<i></i>			
Content Access				
Diagrams Catalog	General	Knowledge	e Model	
Newsletter	Operator & Maintenance Manua	Parts Cata	log	
Service Manual	🗹 Training			
General Permissio	ons			
🗹 Add/Edit Notes	Browse	🗹 Feedback		
Pick List	Show Previously Viewed Content	✓ Show Prev Viewed Produ	viously icts	
Administration Pe	rmissions			
Access Administration	Add/Edit Announcements	Add/Edit F	eedbacks	
Edit Default Groups	Edit Groups	Edit Roles		
Edit Users	View All Groups	View Announceme	nts	
View Feedbacks	View Groups	View Role	s	
View Users				

Figure 21-150. Add/Edit Role Page

8. Click the **Close** button to return to the list of all roles.



- 9. To delete/remove a role from the list of all roles, click on the trash can icon to the right of the role.
 - a. A pop-up message will display. Click Yes to confirm deletion.

Confirm	×
Are you sure you want to delete this role? All groups and users with this role will have the role removed and any permissions the role grants will be removed. Deleting a role cannot be undone.	
Yes No	

Figure 21-151. Confirm Delete Pop-Up

User Management Search Field

The search window in the user management system is an effective tool for searching across users, groups, and roles. It is available on the Administration home page, the All Users, All Groups, and All Roles pages, and on all Add/Edit pages for users, groups, and roles.



Figure 21-152. User Management Search Field

The User Management search bar works the same way as the search bar on the main page of the ONeSOURCE Client. When the user places the cursor in the search bar, they are first presented with a list of previously entered searches (if any), then a list of suggested searches based on the first few characters entered, and finally, if the user does not select a previously entered search or one of the suggested searches, the system will execute the search that they type in. In addition, the searches performed are "starts with" searches as opposed to "contains" searches, meaning the system will look for the search string at the beginning of the content and not in the middle of the content.

For more information on how to enter a search, refer to Entering a Search and the rest of the Main Search Window section of this document.



1. Search results will be displayed in up to three distinct categories: Users, Groups, and Roles.

Q admin			User	Mana	geme	nt Search Fi	eld	
Search Results for ad	lmin							
Users								
USERNAME \$	FIRST N	IAME \$	LAST NAME 🗘		EMAIL (>	STATUS	
AdwithGroup	Admin		WithGroup		a@a.co	m	Enabled	No
daveadmin	David		Thieben		104.00	ang na sa	Enabled	Yes
SAUser	Super		Admin		s@a.co	n	Enabled	Yes
<u>xAdmin</u>	xAdmin		AdminLN		104401	and an engineer	Enabled	Yes
xsuperadmin	No		Group		in section,	a section of the sect	Enabled	Yes
Groups								
NAME \$		PARENT \$		STATUS	6	DESCRIPTION		
Filter		Filter			~			
Admin - Groups		None		Enabled	I	test group with no a	pplicability	
No Parent Group		None		Enabled	i -	This group is being	added by	
Only Admin		None		Disable	d			
Roles								
ROLE \$			ADMIN	DESCRIP	PTION			
Filter			~					
Access Admin			Yes					
Administrator			Yes					
AdminNoViewAllGroups			Yes					
AdminViewAllGroups			Yes					
Edit All			Yes	No Admir	1 Access			
New Admin			Yes					
<u>No-Admin</u>			No					
Super Admin			Yes	Super Ad	min role. 1	his role c		
<u>xAdminRole</u>			Yes	Admin Ro	ole for test	users giv		

Figure 21-153. User Management Search Results List

- 2. From these categories, the Administrator can view details for any user, group, or role records in the search results. If they have been granted edit permissions, they can edit the information in the records as well.
- 3. To view or edit information for a specific user, group, or role, click on the username, group name, or role to open its **Add/Edit** page.



Appendix A - Mobile Device Screenshots

Mobile Device Screenshots

Following are screenshots for ONeSOURCE Client screens on devices like tablets and mobile phones. Only screenshots that differ significantly from those on a desktop computer are included. If there is no major difference in appearance between desktop and mobile screens, the desktop view is shown throughout the document.

Mobile - Client Ribbon

For mobile devices, there is no ribbon going across the top of the screen as there is for desktop PCs. Instead, mobile users expand and collapse a navigation menu in the upper left of the screen to select other options.



Figure 22-1. Mobile Navigation Menu - Collapsed

E Click to c	ollapse	Welcome		
Home		Browse Products		
	username	Heavy Trax	Heavy Trax	Reach Trucks
Pick List 1				C
Change Pick List				
Announcements				
Help				
Support				
Desktop View				
Copyright Information				
Terms and Conditions of Use				
Log out				





Mobile - Previously Viewed Products and Publications

On mobile devices, there are navigation dots instead of arrows to scroll through the list of sources, and the options to display Products or Publications appears across the top of the list of sources instead of to the side.



Figure 22-3. Previously Viewed Publications



Figure 22-4. Previously Viewed Products

Mobile - Main Search Window

The main search window for mobile devices is expanded or collapsed by clicking on the magnifying glass icon in the upper right of the screen. The list of search filters is expanded by clicking on the arrow beside the Filter drop-down box.







APPENDIX A - MOBILE DEVICE SCREENSHOTS

Search for Products or Parts	Filter	, ,	drop-down list of filters
HELP DOCUMENTS			
service			
1102890			
BICYCLE			
troubleshooting	List of previous searches		
help			
lawn			
Lawn Mower Guide			
troublesh			
bic2000			





Figure 22-7. Search Filters - Expanded

Mobile - Product Details Screen

Following a search and clicking on a product, the Product Details page displays.



Figure 22-8. Product Details Screen





Figure 22-9. Expanded list of Sources

APPENDIX A - MOBILE DEVICE SCREENSHOTS



Figure 22-10. Selected Source



Mobile - Operating and Service Publications

After selecting the source, users will see the list of contents.

Demo Model 123- Lawn Mower	-OM	~
0 2 9	Contents	
SAFETY RULES		
PRODUCT SPECIFICATI	ONS These modules are the manual's front matter	
	BILITIES	
Assembly		>
Operations	These are the sections in the manual. Click the arrows on the right to view list of included	>
Maintenance	modules	>
Service and Adjustments		>
Storage		>
Appendix		>

Figure 22-11. Source contents

APPENDIX A - MOBILE DEVICE SCREENSHOTS

2	Demo Model 123-OM Lawn Mower		~
0 i	Contents		
	SAFETY RULES		
	PRODUCT SPECIFICATIONS		
	CUSTOMER RESPONSIBILITIES		
Assem	bly	~	-
	TOOLS REQUIRED FOR ASSEMBLY		
	REMOVE TRACTOR FROM CARTON	Modules contained in the Assembly section	
	BEFORE REMOVING TRACTOR FROM SKID		
	ROLL TRACTOR OFF SKID		
Operat	ions	;	>
	Figure 22-12. Sectior	Contents	



Mobile - Parts List Screens



After selecting the source, users will see the parts illustrations.

Figure 22-13. Parts Illustrations

1. Click on an illustration to open the parts list.



Figure 22-14. Parts Illustration



2. Click on the up arrow or anywhere on that row to open the parts list line items.

Ξ	Parts Catalog CT660 Truck-PM	٩
← CT(660 Truck-PM	Front Cab Floor
	Serial Number:SN4534223	
~	Parts List	922
	Find within Front Cab Floor	Q
1 B.	ACK LH STEPW ELL AUX BATT BOX	Ð
P	N: 01902239-W	Qty:1
2 5	/W ELL FRONT LH SPECIFY WIDTH	0
Ρ	N: 01902313-W	Qty:1
3 **	FILLER LW R ENG COVER	0
Ρ	N: 01902314-W	Qty:1
4 S	/WLASY RH TP W/BA T ACCESS	0
Ρ	N: 01902631-W	Qty:1
5 S	W ELL ASSY, LH AUX BATT BOX (Lower)	θ
Ρ	N: 06003895-Length	Qty:1
6 IA	45028 ANGLE 2.00 06003903	θ
Ρ	N: 06003903-00200	Qty:1
7 C	ROSSMEMBER SIDE SPECIFY WIDTH	θ
Ρ	N: 06014433-W	Qty:1
8 X	MBR LH 06003873 SPECIFY WIDTH	Q

Figure 22-15. Parts List Line Items

3. Click on a line item to display the corresponding hotspot in the parts illustration.



Figure 22-16. Selected Line Item and Corresponding Hotspot

4. Click on the information icon for the line item to display details about the selected part, as well as the notes and feedback icons.





Figure 22-17. Line Item Details

Supersession History

When supersession information is available for a specific part, it will display below the Feedback section:







Mobile - Parts List - Cart Icon

Mobile device users can add items in a parts list to the selected picklist by clicking on the cart icon for the desired line item.



Figure 22-19. Mobile - Parts List Cart Icon

Mobile - Knowledge Model and Diagnostic Troubleshooting Manuals

After selecting a source, users will see the list of symptoms/Diagnostic Troubleshooting Codes.



Figure 22-20. Knowledge Model Symptoms

1. Click a symptom to open a session.

Ξ	Knowledge Model Troubleshooting Guide - KM			Q
\leftarrow Troubleshooting Guide - KM		(Cutting Not Act	curate
				* *
Is the knife cutting a good clear	n pattern?			*
Yes				
No				ו
Click to see causes and lo	g	Click to end the session		
^	Session		(4)	

Figure 22-21. Knowledge Model Session



Mobile - Schematics Manuals



After selecting a source, users will see the schematic diagrams.

Figure 22-22. Schematic Diagrams

1. Click on a schematic to open it in the viewer.



Figure 22-23. Schematic in Viewer



2. Users can click on circuits and components, and use the mouse wheel to zoom in or out.



Figure 22-24. Schematic Zoomed In with Circuit Selected

Mobile - Pick Lists

The following are steps for selecting an existing pick list from a mobile device or creating a new pick list.

1. Click on the mobile device navigation menu in the top left of the screen.



Figure 22-25. Mobile Navigation Menu

2. The menu will show options for pick lists.

≡	
Home	
michael.kent	
Log out	
Pick List	Click this header to open the pick list page
Pick List 1	This indicates the
Change Pick List	active/selected pick list

Figure 22-26. Pick List Options



3. Click on the Pick List option to open the selected Pick List.

Ξ	Pick List	C
Pick List 1	Pick list Title	
Parts for Yps	Pick List Description	
Pick List 1	Selected Pick List	~
	Options -	
(Add Part Enter Part #	
	Bolt Hex Hd 1/4-20 unc x 3/4	×
	PN: 74760412	Qty: 1 UOM: EA
Тех	t Box for Notes	
	"BOLT - changing description	×
0	PN: F182510025	Qty: 1
		UOM: EA
	CIRCUIT BREAKER, TRIP FREE PUSH-PULL, 5 AMP (3841CB002)	×
	PN: 8600-005-6	Qty: 1
		UOM: EA
S.	"TAN PN: 92A0103700	Otv: 1
A CONTRACTOR		UOM: EA
	ECU,TIM 8-9T 3SP	×
	PN: 16A2212000 Superseded	Qty: 2

Figure 22-27. Sample Pick List - Mobile

4. To create a new pick list or change the selected pick list, click on the Change Pick List option.



Figure 22-28. Create New Pick List

5. The Select Pick List window will open.

Select Pick List	×
Pick List 1	
Pick List 2	
+ Add New	

Figure 22-29. Select Pick List Window



- 6. Select the new pick list or click on **+ Add New** to create a new one.
- 7. Users can also change the selected Pick List from within an open Pick List by using the drop-down list and selecting the desired list.

Pick List		
Pick List 1		
Parts for Ypsilanti Plant		
	Use drop down list to	
	select a different Pick	/
	List	
Pick List 1		~
Pick List 1		
Pick List 2		
Pick List 3		

Figure 22-30. Select Pick List Drop-Down List



© 2025 O'Neil & Associates, Inc. All rights reserved.

All trademarks referenced in this manual are the property of their respective owners.



www.oneil.com